T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Children, Young

People and
Learning Policy
Overview
Committee
Date: WEDNESDAY, 7 OCTOBER
2015
Time: 7.00 PM
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE,
HIGH STREET, UXBRIDGE
UB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

Councillors on the Committee

Jane Palmer, (Chairman)
Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman)
Teji Barnes

Jem Duducu

Duncan Flynn

Becky Haggar

Tony Eginton

Peter Money

Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead)

Other Voting Representative
Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan.

Published: Tuesday, 29 September 2015

Contact: Jon Pitt
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: jpitt@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=323&Year=2015

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking \/ N
& A
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at J
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a

! Uxbrid
short walk away. Limited parking is available at F'a--llmn wla-e}b\\
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shopping [l 0008

. Centre Il"l_t_U'—"'
how to book a parking space, please contact ’ i
Democratic Services. Please enter from the ‘> o
Council’s main reception where you will be car gurk

directed to the Committee Room. Gl i

Muzimring

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



Terms of Reference

A central role of a Policy Overview Committees is to undertake in-depth policy reviews on
specific issues. Reviews provide the opportunity to hear from members of the public and
expert witnesses, including people from a wide range of external organisations. Reviews
usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council could improve its work.
They therefore perform an important role in opening up the policy-making process to a
wider audience, including people who would not normally have the opportunity to
participate.

This Committee undertakes the policy overview role in relation to the following matters:

Education Services and statutory education authority functions
School performance and attainment

School Transport

Relationships with Local Academies / Free Schools
Pre-School & Early Years Services

Youth Services & Careers Services

Juvenile justice & probation services

Adult Learning

Education and learning partnerships

Music & The Arts

Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs
Adoption and Fostering

Family Services



Agenda

10

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before the meeting

To confirm that items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in
public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

To Agree the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 9 September 2015

Major Review - The Effectiveness of Early Help to Promote Positive
Outcomes for Families - Witness Session 2

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Progress
Report

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Implementation Update

Consideration of Topics for Minor Review

1-8

9-102

103 - 132

133 -138

Verbal
Report

For the Committee to consider which topic they wish to select for a minor (single meeting)
review. Elective Home Education has previously been identified as a possible review topic.

Forward Plan

Work Programme 2015/16

139 - 142

143 - 146



Agenda ltem 4
Minutes N;%”

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

HILLINGDON
9 September 2015 LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Teji Barnes,
Duncan Flynn, Becky Haggar, Allan Kauffman, Tony Eginton, Peter Money and
Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead).

LBH Officers Present:

Nikki Cruickshank (Interim Assistant Director of Safeguarding and Quality Assurance),
Dan Kennedy (Head of Business Performance, Policy & Standards), Tom Murphy
(Head of Early Intervention Services), Andrea Nixon (Children and Young People's
Services - Safeguarding Children), lan Anderson (Complaints and Service
Improvement Team Manager) , Neena Singh (Business Manager - Technical and
Business) and Deborah Mbofana (Health Promotion Manager)

Also Present:
Steve Ashley (Independent Chairman of Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children Board

23. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from ClIr. Jem Duducu, with Clir. Allan Kauffman
substituting and from Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan representative.

24. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

No Declarations of Interest were made.

25. | TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda ltem 3)

It was confirmed that all agenda items were Part | and would be discussed in public.

26. | TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 15 JULY
2015 (Agenda Item 4)

Resolved: That:

1. The minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2015 be agreed as a correct
record.

Page 1




27.

MAJOR REVIEW - THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO PROMOTE
POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES - WITNESS SESSION (Agenda Item 5)

The Head of Early Intervention Services and the Health Promotion Manager gave a
presentation in support of their withess submission. The submission had been
circulated to the Committee Members prior to the meeting.

The presentation had two key aims, to provide an understanding of early help available
to families and to provide an understanding of the way in which these services were
organised and coordinated.

The provision of early help was seen as being a high priority. This included prevention
work to stop problems from arising in the first place and early intervention in order to
identify action as soon as possible and tackle problems that had already emerged.
Early intervention work was undertaken in collaboration with universal services and
with individual families. The purpose of Early Intervention Services was to 'work
together with families who need our support so that they may develop the skills,
knowledge, resilience and capabilities required'. Negative family outcomes had
associated costs, both financial and human and it was therefore important to take
action in order to reduce these.

It was noted that a range of interventions were used with the aim being to improve
health and wellbeing. For example, the provision of green spaces.

Four levels of early help were provided by the Council and partner organisations. Level
1 focused on prevention and was about providing universal services to all families in
order to prevent problems from arising in the first place. Level 2, Early Intervention
involved working with children and families that had additional or complex needs, while
Levels 3 and 4 involved social care services for children and families with complex
needs (Level 3) and children and families with acute needs (Level 4).

The Early Intervention and Prevention Services provided at Level 1 and Level 2 were
outlined. Some of the Level 1 Services included schools, GPs, leisure services,
libraries and Children's Centres, while Level 2 services included Youth Offending
Services, Key-working Services, Targeted Programmes and counselling services. The
aim was to use a joined-up approach when identifying families in need of additional
support delivery in order to effectively prevent initial problems from escalating.

The maijority of universal services e.g. libraries, sports development and family
information were provided by the Council's Residents Services directorate. Children
and Young People's Services were responsible for providing Early Intervention
Services. These included Key-working, Children's Centres and youth offending
services. These targeted services worked with specific families. Partner organisations,
such as the NHS, voluntary sector, schools and faith groups also had a role to play.

A refreshed Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy was in the process of being

developed. Good arrangements for collaboration and coordinating the the work of a
range of agencies were being developed, along with clear 'step up' and 'step down'

procedures to outline when services should be provided. The aim was to ensure the
early identification of and engagement with, families in need of early help.

It was noted that The Hillingdon Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy Group had
the following vision:

Page 2




'Hillingdon families are safe, healthy, prosperous and self-reliant because they have
aspirations and means to succeed'.

The Group was developing the Strategy with a range of partners. This would be based
upon the vision and a number of principles that aimed to help families prosper. A three
stage approach would be adopted in order to understand needs and priorities and the
role of each partner organisation; to embed principles and practice and jointly plan and;
to jointly deliver, evaluate and commission.

Evidence from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and local intelligence had been
used to develop four headline outcomes that work would be organised under. These
outcomes included helping families to be strong, safe, healthy and economically
prosperous. Key areas of concern had been mapped in relation to each of these areas
and these would be used to enable partners to undertake work in relation to each
theme. This was seen as an evolving document, which would be revised based upon
future revisions to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and changing partner
priorities.

Services provided would be targeted by age group, including Early Years (0 - 5), Early
Childhood (6 - 12), Adolescent (13-19) and Transition to Adulthood (19-25). There
would be a particular focus on Early Years as intervention at this stage could help to
prevent or reduce problems in later years. There was particular concern about dental
health and obesity, with dental health of young children being among the worst in
London. It was anticipated that two new NHS dentists in the Borough would help to
address the issue, as would the various activities being undertaken with local primary
schools.

Members reflected that improvements to early intervention and early help were only
likely to be effective if they were based upon robust data. It was questioned how
outcomes were monitored and what they told the Council about the effectiveness of
service delivery. Officers advised that a number of performance indicators were used
but that these needed further development. A scorecard was being developed to
enable the effective rating and comparison of services.

A Member asked what work was being undertaken prior to a child being born in order
to identify potential problems. For example, where the expectant mother was drinking
alcohol, smoking, was in poor housing or was not emotionally ready to be a mother.
Officers advised that maternity and health were part of early intervention, alongside a
variety of other preventative work. It was important to host such sessions at facilities
where people would feel comfortable, such as local libraries or Children's Centres. It
was noted that Members would hear from persons responsible for the delivery of such
services at future witness sessions.

It was questioned how the vision to ensure that families were prosperous, self-reliant,
safe and healthy would be realised, given that these were not always mutually
exclusive. It was also questioned what steps were being taken to ensure that data was
shared more effectively with Children's Centres. It was confirmed that the vision
statement was a working vision that could be revised if alternative wording was
considered more appropriate. It was acknowledged that the information provided to
Children's Centres was not comprehensive enough. Some improvements had already
been made and work was ongoing to address the issue, including the development of
an action plan for use by the Council and partners.

A Member expressed concerns that although schools could be quite proactive in

Page 3




contacting parents with concerns about their children, they did not often share
concerns with the Council or other partners. In specific relation to the 6-12 age group, it
was questioned how early intervention issues would be picked up and how cooperation
would take place with GPs and schools. It was felt that cooperation with schools could
present a challenge as the majority were not controlled by the local authority. Officers
advised that schools were being encouraged to share more general information about
issues requiring potential early intervention and that the situation was felt to be an
improving one. Efforts were being made to strengthen working relationships with
schools.

There was a discussion about the capacity of existing services, such as Children's
Centres, to provide the targeted support required by families, especially given that
some wards lacked children's centres or early years facilities. It was acknowledged that
capacity would need to be considered as part of the developing strategies and that
both qualitative and quantitative analysis would be required of relevant data.

Concerns were raised by the Committee that although there were a broad range of
facilities in the Borough, such as libraries, youth centres and children's centres, these
were not necessarily being used as effectively as they could be or to full capacity. It
was questioned how these services were being promoted. Officers advised that a
number of information raising activities were undertaken through the Team Around the
Family and that consideration was being given to how information could be shared with
other organisations more effectively. This information sharing was governed by various
protocols and agreements.

A paragraph in the supporting officer report talked about the need to foster a culture of
shared learning across agencies and the need to invest in learning fully about the role
of these partners. It was questioned how this would be achieved in practice. It was
confirmed that staff training and workshop sessions would have a role to play and that
the need to better share intelligence was further emphasised.

Members asked what the excepted timescales were for the proposed changes. Officers
advised that changes were already being realised and that the long term objective was
to ensure partner buy in. It was anticipated that in three years time, all partners would
be fully aware of their responsibilities and that they would have a full suite of data
available to support their work.

The Committee thanked officers for their informative presentation and requested that
any similar presentations in the future be provided to Members in advance of the
meeting. The Chairman reflected that there was a need for a firm evidence base in
order to move forward effectively with improving service provision.

RESOLVED: That:

1. The evidence provided be noted.

28.

HILLINGDON LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
2014 - 15 (Agenda Item 6)

The Independent Chairman of the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB)
introduced the 2014/15 Annual Report. This highlighted the main achievements, in
addition to current and future priorities. It was noted that publication had been delayed
while the verification of performance data took place, but that it was the intention for the
report to be published by the end of May in future years.

Page 4




Publication of the report fulfilled the Board's statutory obligation. The Board had also
been required to develop an improvement plan by Ofsted as the Board had previously
been identified as requiring improvement. However, although this was a requirement, it
was not seen as being particularly useful to enable the Board to make the
improvements it required.

It was noted that the Board was not able to be assured that children and young people
were as safe as they could be across the Borough. Further work would be needed by
the Board and by partners before such an assessment could be made. It was
acknowledged that this situation was unacceptable and assurances were given that it
would not be repeated in the future. Much work to improve the Board had taken place
since March 2015, including improvements to auditing and the provision of a clearer
assessment of the effectiveness of the Board. It was also confirmed that the Chairman
and other key staff were new in post and had been appointed since the timeframe
covered by the report.

The 2015-16 proposed LSCB priorities were seen as being a start, but it was
suggested that an additional five or six priorities could be included. Work would be
undertaken in order to better evidence what the priorities should be in the future. The
priorities also formed part of the Business Plan that the LSCB was required to produce.
In response to a Member question, the LSCB Chairman advised that a list of the top
three priorities for the Board would be developed and reported back to the Committee
at a future date.

Children's Social Care was funding work being undertaken to put a business unit in
place for the Board. This was seen as being critical to enable the Board to move
forward with required improvements. The finances of the Board were also a cause for
concern and it was noted that an Operations Group would be reviewing the various sub
groups of the Board.

A Member questioned whether the budget provided in the report had incorrectly being
labelled as being for 2013-14, rather than for 2014-15. It was agreed that this was a
mistake and it was also noted that the Member had identified other mistakes within the
report. Concerns were raised that the Council was contributing a relatively small
amount to the Board, when compared to neighbouring London Boroughs. The
contribution of £96k in 2014/15 compared to Harrow (£125k) and Hounslow or Ealing
(each £160k). The LSCB Chairman confirmed that the 2014-15 Hillingdon contribution
was an increase on the previous figure of 60k.

Concerns were also expressed that the Annual Report did not list all the Member
organisations of the LSCB and also that it did not give the names of the person that
represented each Board Member. It was requested that future reports provide
attendance statistics for individual Members and that a glossary be provided. This had
been included in previous annual reports but was absent from the 2014-15 report under
consideration.

The Board thanked the Chairman of the LSCB for the honesty in admitting that
significant improvement was required.

RESOLVED: That:
1. The report be noted.

2. The top three priorities for the LSCB be developed and provided to the
Committee at a future meeting.

Page 5




29.

COMPLAINT REPORT FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SERVICE FOR 1
APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 (Agenda ltem 7)

Officers provided an overview of the complaints and Members' Enquiries received by
the Children and Young People's Services (including Education Services) for the period
1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. This satisfied the requirements to publish annual
information about complaints.

Feedback in the form of complaints and compliments was seen as being an important
source of information to enable the Council to improve services. The focus was on
trying to resolve complaints informally. It was for this reason that the number of
informal complaints about Children’s and Young People’s Services had increased from
26 in 2013/14 to 49 in 2014/15. It was envisaged that this would continue to rise in the
year ahead.

Complaints made by children, or on their behalf, are governed by the Children Act
1989, Representations Procedure (England) Regulations 2006 (Statutory Instrument
2006 No. 1738). The Council operates a three stage complaint procedure. At Stage 1,
a senior manager within Children's Services investigates and responds to a complaint
within 10 working days. At Stage 2, complaint investigations are undertaken by an
Investigating Officer (10) and Independent Person (IP), not employed by the Council,
with specialist knowledge of the Children’s Act. At Stage 3, a panel of three people
independent of the Council review what has happened and put forward options for
resolution.

It was noted that all Stage 1 responses were seen by the Complaints and Service
Improvement Manager prior to them being sent out. This was in order to ensure that a
full response was provided to all the concerns raised.

The number of Stage 1 complaints received in 2014/15 was 30, which was a reduction
when compared to the 2013/14 figure of 58. Two Stage 2 complaints had commenced
in 2014/15 and would be concluded in 2015/16. One of the complaints related to
allegations of historic abuse and the other to transport. No Stage 3 Complaints had
been received during 2014/15.

There was a target of 10 working days for responding to Stage 1 complaints. During
2014/15, responses to 19 of the 30 complaints (63%) met this target. However, 13
Stage 1 complaints had been received since the start of April 2015. All of these had
met the 10 working day target, with officers considering that there had been a cultural
change. However, it was acknowledged that some improvement was required as
complaint responses were not always clear or empathetic enough and there were also
sometimes delays in communicating with members of the public.

The number of compliments received was increasing and exceeded the number of
complaints. 47 compliments had been received in relation to Children’s Services in
2014/15.

Complaints regarding education and schools were dealt with separately under the
Council's Corporate Complaints Procedure. This involved a three stage complaint
procedure with escalation to the Local Government Ombudsman if a complainant
remained dissatisfied.

Page 6




During 2014/15, there were 17 informal complaints, 6 Stage 1 complaints, 1 Stage 2
complaint and 1 stage 3 complaint (subsequently withdrawn by the complainant) about
education and schools. Most education and schools complaints were about school
admissions. For 2014/15, six complaints had been referred to the Local Government
Ombudsman of which five had complained direct to the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman
had found in the Council’s favour in all six complaints.

A Member asked whether there was a pattern to the type of complaints that were dealt
with informally. Officers advised that these tended to be the more simple complaints
where customers were not happy with the service they had received, but that there
were a few examples of more complex concerns being dealt with informally.

The Committee thanked officers for the report provided and the positive position that it
presented.

Resolved: That:

1. The Report be noted.

30.

QUARTERLY SCHOOL PLACES PLANNING UPDATE (Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the Quarterly Schools Place Planning Update to inform the
Committee about the demand for school places in Hillingdon.

The annual July 2015 school places forecast for Hillingdon had been submitted to the
Department for Education. There had been no significant change from previous
forecasts. This included no change in the Northwood and North Ruislip areas and a
slight increase in Ruislip / South Ruislip. Increased demand for places in the north of
the Borough was being caused mainly by children moving into the Borough from
neighbouring Boroughs. Further expansion in the Hayes Wood End Park area may be
required in the future. Members asked why proposed developments in the area did not
include provision for a new primary school. It was noted that future requirements
depended in part on the development of the former Nestle site.

Feasibility studies of three primary school sites to assess potential for expansion were
underway. The findings were due to be discussed by officers in the week following the
Committee meeting and would be reported for consideration by the Cabinet Member
for Education and Children’s Services.

With regard to secondary schools, the demand for additional places from 2016/17
onwards remained high and was likely to grow in future years. It was anticipated that
an additional 24-25 forms of entry would be required between 2016 and 2020.

Officers had been investigating a range of options for the provision of additional school
places. This included the possibility of expanding an additional five secondary schools
in the Borough. All options were under consideration, including options for a new
school.

The new school term had started in the week before the Committee meeting, with all
children having been offered a place. There had been some late applications, due to
children moving into the Borough, but there had been enough capacity to
accommodate this. It was noted that St Martin’s CE Primary School had opened on
time for the start of the new term in September 2015.

Page 7




A number of families in West Drayton had applied for places at schools outside their
immediate area. For example, there were six children living in the West Drayton area
whose parents had chosen John Locke Academy as their preferred school, which was
in the Uxbridge area.

Work to rebuild and expand Northwood School had commenced and a planning
application had been submitted for the expansion and rebuilding of Swakeleys and
Abbotsfield Schools. These expansions would add a total of 5.5 forms of entry.

A requirement for an additional five forms of entry had been identified in the south of
the Borough. A new school may be required as existing schools in the area reached
capacity, although it was noted that some pupils travelled to Swakeleys or Abbotsfield
Schools or to schools outside the Borough e.g. to Grammar schools in Slough. This
helped to alleviate the demand for places.

Members asked whether officers knew how many of the expected 180 places at the
new Pinner High School would be allocated to children from Hillingdon. It was not
possible to predict this, but it was noted that the school was expecting to serve a 1.5
mile radius area rather than basing admissions on administrative boundaries. The
school would open for year 7 pupils only initially, with other years being established as
the initial intake progressed through the school.

Resolved: That:

1. The Report be noted.

31. | FORWARD PLAN (Agenda ltem 9)
Resolved: That:
1. The Forward Plan be noted.
32. | WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 (Agenda Item 10)

Resolved: That:

1. An update report or verbal update on the progress made by the Hillingdon
LSCB be provided to the January 2016 meeting of the Committee.
2. The Work Programme be noted.

The meeting, which commenced at 7:00 pm closed at 9:00 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Jon Pitt 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 8




Agenda ltem 5

MAJOR REVIEW - THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO
PROMOTE POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES

WITNESS SESSION 2 - UNDERSTANDING AND RESPONDING TO NEED
Contact Officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655
REASON FOR ITEM

To enable the Committee to gather evidence as part of its Major Review 'The effectiveness
of early help to promote positive outcomes for families.'

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE

1. Question the witnesses.

2. Highlight issues for further investigation.

3. Propose possible recommendations for the review.
INFORMATION

For this witness session, Members will hear evidence from:

Name Position

Dan Kennedy Head of Business Performance, Policy & Standards
Belinda Hearn Early Intervention Officer

Deborah Bell Service Manager, Key Working Service

Public Health is unable to send a representative to the meeting. A written statement from
this service is attached to this report.

PAPERS WITH THE REPORT

Written Submission: Belinda Hearn
Written Submission: Deborah Bell
Written Submission: Dan Kennedy
Written Submission: Dr. Steve Hajioff

W D D

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO PROMOTE
POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Dan Kennedy
Role: Head of Business Performance, Policy and Standards
Organisation: London Borough of Hillingdon

SUMMARY OF EARLY PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION IN HILLINGDON / ROLE
OF YOUR SERVICE OR ORGANISATION

The Business Performance, Policy and Standards service area provides support to front-
line services by undertaking analysis of needs for services and working closely with senior
managers to put our residents first by evaluating what difference services are making.

To support the review of early help in Hillingdon, this report presents the headline analysis
of current and future need for children in Hillingdon drawing on the Hillingdon Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment.

OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

Research studies demonstrate that a child's future development and achievements are
built on their experiences early in life.

Early help to work with children/families and particular population groups can come from a
range of sources:

e Council

e Voluntary and community sector
e Schools

¢ Public Health services

e Health services

Joint working across agencies to intervene early and quickly to tackle emergent problems
and working preventatively with groups most at risk of developing problems is understood
to be key to achieving better outcomes because emergent challenges will not become
entrenched or have the chance to escalate.

The following information helps to paint the current picture of need across the Borough to
inform the review of services providing early help.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 11



Population

There are 78,000 young people aged 0-19 years in Hillingdon (26% of the total
population), which is slightly higher than the London proportion of 24.4%. Generally
the wards in the south of the borough have both greater numbers of young people
and a higher proportion of their population aged under 20 (see appendix 1).

Just under half (45%) of the population represent a White British ethnic group;
Asian/Asian British: Indian (12%); Asian/Asian British: Other (7.5%); Black/Black
British: African (6.4%); White: Other (4.5%), then Asian/Asian British: Pakistani
(4.3%). Wards in the north of the Borough have a higher proportion of residents
representing a White British ethnic group. The highest number of traveller children
are in the wards of West Drayton, Yiewsley, Harefield, Botwell and Barnhill.

Between 2006 and 2014 there has been an increase in annual births in Hillingdon of
20%, more than 700 births per year, with a total of 4423 births in 2014 compared
with 3,691 in 2006. Projected trends over the next few years suggest that the rate of
increase in numbers of births will be much less than it has been over recent years.
There is wide variation between Hillingdon wards in the numbers of births annually,
ranging from 84 per year in Ickenham to over 340 per year in Botwell, and with
more births in the south of the borough.

The graph below shows population projections for young people up to 2021. The
biggest increase is expected in the 5-9 year age group, with increases also in 0-4
year olds and 10-14 year olds. The number of 15-19 year olds is expected to fall
slightly, before rising again.

Graph 1: Population projections, Hillingdon children and young people 2011- 2021.

Population size, Hillingdon (2011 to 2021)

Population size (thousands)

Source National Statistics, SNPP

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 12



e The expected change in the 0-19 year old population for each ward over the years
2015-20 is shown in graph 2 below. This shows that the expected net change in
the population of children and young people varies significantly between wards. In
nearly all wards the number of 15-19 year olds is expected to stay the same or fall.
The net change in the number of 0-19 year olds is the smallest in West Ruislip and
Manor, with small increases in the 0-14 year old population. In West Drayton (in the
centre of the chart) a slightly larger increase in the number of 0-14 year olds is
predicted, whilst in Uxbridge North the increase is much larger. In Hayes and
Harlington a larger increase in 0-14 year olds is predicted. Uxbridge North is an
outlier and this is a consequence of the development of the RAF Uxbridge site.

Graph 2: Projected change in population for each age group by ward

Expected change in population by ward, 2015-2020

000
c Age 15-19 W Age 10-14
S 800 m Age 5-9 - )
= ge N Age 0-4
E]
Q.
<]
Q
£
]
oo
c
©
£
o

e There are more births in the south of the borough than the north (see graph 3
below).

e An increasing proportion of mothers to children living in Hillingdon were not born in
the UK.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 13



Graph 3 - Estimated average annual number of births by ward over the next five
years
The average annual number of births
projected for 2015-19

400
350
300
250
200
150
100

Source: GLA 2014 round demographic projections, trend-based ward projections

Levels of Disadvantage

e There are 15,000 children aged 0-15 in poverty using the national standard
measurement for income deprivation for children (IDACI). Children in poverty can
be found in all wards from Ickenham (6%) to West Drayton (43%) (see appendix 2).

e Pupils eligible for free school meals or statemented with Special Educational Needs
or subject to School Action Plus is at or lower than the England average rate.

e Wards in the south have a higher proportion of pupils (age 5-16 years) eligible for
free school meals.

Vulnerable Groups

e There were 2,300 children in need (CIN) using the latest, official published statistics
for Hillingdon and the rest of the Country (as at 31.03.14). Analysis of data shows
that the number and rate of children in need on 31 March 2014 in Hillingdon rose
by 19%, after having decreased by 25% the previous year. The rate in Hillingdon in
2014 (347 per 10,000) was lower than the average for London (368) but slightly
higher than the rate for England (346).

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 14



Table 1 - Children in need throughout the year and on 31 March, Hillingdon, London and
England 2011-2014

2011 2012 2013 2014
Hillingdon (number at 31" March) 2,147 2,622 1,954 2,334
Hillingdon (rate/10,000 at 31%' March) 352.8 406.9 299.3 347.2
London (rate/10,000 at 31 March) 419.6 361.8 368.4 367.8
England (rate/10,000 at 31%' March) 346.2 325.7 332.2 346.4
Hillingdon (number throughout year) 4370 4,835 5,600 3,799
Hillingdon (rate throughout year) 750.3 857.6 565.2
London (rate throughout year) 678.4 680.5 688.0
England (rate throughout year) 651.9 645.8 680.5

Source: Characteristics of children in need SFR43/2014 gov.uk

The most common primary cause of CIN status was abuse/neglect (47%) followed
by absent parenting (17%) and family dysfunction (15%).

The proportion of disability of CIN in Hillingdon (7%) was lower than London (11%)
and England (13%). 1,200 children have a Special Educational Need (SEN) (2.9%
of school population). The most common SEN is speech, language and
communication needs.

Statistics from the end of 2014 for Hillingdon estimate that there were 250 young
people aged 16-18 classed as not in education, employment or training (NEET),
2.5% of the population of that age. This compares with 3.5% of the 16-18
population in London and 4.7% of the 16-18 population in England. Residents from
a white British group are over-represented within NEET figures.

The largest numbers of the NEET cohort live in Botwell, Townfield, Uxbridge South,
Yiewsley, South Ruislip, Charville and Yeading.

There are 2,500 carers aged less than 25 years in Hillingdon; the majority of adults
being cared-for by a young person have a mental health issue.

Health Outcomes

The proportion of low birthweight babies in Hillingdon (6.9%) is similar to the
England average. Low birthweight babies are more prevalent in the wards of
Botwell, Pinkwell and Townfield.

Smoking in pregnancy is lower in Hillingdon (8%) than in England.

In Hillingdon 60% of mothers are still breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks which is higher
than England.

Immunization rates for children aged 0-5 years are similar to the England rates.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 15



e The stillbirth rate and infant mortality rates are lower in Hillingdon than London or
England.

e Healthy habits start in childhood:

o Oral health as measured by decayed, missing and filled teeth is not as good
for children living in Hillingdon as the national average.

o 21% of 4-5 year olds and 34% of 10-11 year olds in Hillingdon are
overweight or obese.

o Hospital admissions for conditions causally related to alcohol for young
people is higher in Hillingdon than London

e Positive chlamydia tests in those residents aged 15-24 is low in Hillingdon.

e The highest number of A&E attendances across Hillingdon are in the younger age
categories. A&E attendances in 0-4 year olds were 22% lower in 2013/14 than
2012/13 because of the opening of the Urgent Care Centre. 16% of 0-4 year olds
attending A&E have nothing abnormal detected

e Graph 4 below shows the trend in teenage pregnancy rates since 1998 (the
baseline year for the Teenage Pregnancy Strategy). There has been a decline since
2007 which has been even more marked in Hillingdon than in the country as a
whole. The rate in Hillingdon in 2013 was below the national rate, 23 per 1000 15-
17 year olds, and slightly higher than but not significantly different from the average
rate for London.

Graph 4 - Trend in under 18 conceptions, Hillingdon, London and England, 1998-
2013

Rate par 1,

L e

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

e The rate of hospital admissions of young people aged under 18 for alcohol specific
conditions is higher in Hillingdon than the rest of London and England, and the

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 16



trend has fallen only slightly in Hillingdon in the last few years compared with a
steeper decline nationally.

Graph 5 - Hospital admissions for alcohol specific conditions, under 18s, Hillingdon
and Outer London boroughs

Source: http://www.lape.org.uk/downloads/Lape guidance and methods.pdf

Graph 6 below shows the percentage of current smokers at age 15 years in Hillingdon is
similar to those nationally but above the London average. There has been a continuing
decline in any reported substance misuse.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 17




Graph 6 - Percentage of current smokers at age 15 years in Hillingdon compared
with London and England.

(3]

ston ups

Marmmersem

Rich

Source: Public Health England, 2014

COMMENTS ON PROVISION OF SERVICES E.G ANYTHING THAT YOU THINK
COULD BE IMPROVED OR DONE DIFFERENTLY ETC.

The Committee are asked to give consideration to the range of needs presenting in this
report, in particular how these needs vary across the Borough and over time.
Consideration should also be given to early action which has a higher likelihood of tackling
issues and promoting effective family functioning for young people to raise aspirations,
achievement and keep young people healthy and safe into adulthood.

OTHER COMMENTS

The information presented in this report is not intended to be exhaustive. The Committee
may wish to give consideration to requesting further information to assist with the review.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 18



Appendix 1 Figure 2: Proportion of population of each ward aged 0-19

Figure 1: number of 0-19 year olds in each ward Total | % of ward
0-19s aged 0-19
1 | Barnhill 4156 30.9
2 | Botwell 4732 31.5
3 | Brunel 3980 28.8
4 | Cavendish 2982 25.6
5 | Charville 3765 29.8
6 | Eastcote & ER 2765 22.8
7 | Harefield 1746 23.6
Heathrow 2995 24.6
8 | Villages
9 | Hillingdon East 3698 28.7
10 | Ickenham 2462 23.7
11 | Manor 2773 24.2
S-DU 12 | Northwood 2035 194
< 13 | Northwood Hills | 2703 233
© 14 | Pinkwell 4701 318
15 | South Ruislip 3076 24.9
16 | Townfield 4202 29.8
17 | Uxbridge North 2710 22.5
18 | Uxbridge South 2893 20.7
19 | West Drayton 4011 27.9
isli 21.8
Qui1ntiles Low (>=) (<) HighOccuzrren 2(1) r:zti::s“p iiig 311 Quiqtiles L;)\g ‘(;/:) (;_gi&ih Occu(rg)snces
% %2888 %288 (g) 22 | Yiewsley 3600 27.7 i 31 .2://0 ;g.g:f g
4 3500 4100 553 Total 72529 26.5 4 6.9%  29.4% @
5 4,100 4,732 (5) 5 29.4% 31.8% (6)

Source: 2011 Census

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS



Appendix 2

Deprivation and child poverty
Figure 3 shows the proportion of children aged 0-15 in each ward living in income deprived
households, according to the Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI).

Figure 3: Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index by ward

Census 2011: Children aged 0-15 by poverty status by ward
childrenin other

poverty children childrenin
persons persons poverty %

1 Barnhill 1117 2154 34%

2 Botwell 1458 2295 39%

3 Brunel 640 1508 30%

4 Cavendish 293 2110 12%

5 Charville 740 2137 26%

6 Eastcote & East Ruislip 177 1982 8%

7 Harefield 340 1083 24%

8 Heathrow Villages 798 1742 31%

9 Hillingdon East 687 2296 23%

10 Ickenham 113 1823 6%

11 Manor 242 2074 10%

12 Northwood 194 1463 12%

13 Northwood Hills 361 1823 17%

14 Pinkwell 1418 2470 36%

15 South Ruislip 472 2024 19%

16 Townfield 1281 1991 39%

17 Uxbridge North 306 1807 14%

18 Uxbridge South 503 1392 27%

19 West Drayton 1409 1861 43%

20 West Ruislip 228 1667 12%

21 Yeading 1343 2163 38%

22 Yiewsley 1176 1723 41%

Quintiles  Low (>=) (<) High  Occurrences

1 6.0% 13.4% (6)
2 13.4% 20.8% (3)
3 20.8% 28.2% (4)
4 28.2% 35.6% (3)
5 35.6% 43.0% (6)

Source: 2011 Census

In this indicator, income deprivation is based on a summation of the following five

indicators:

e Adults and children in Income Support families

e Adults and children in Income-Based Jobseeker's Allowance families

e Adults and children in Pension Credit (Guarantee) families

e Adults and children in Child Tax Credit families (who are not in receipt of Income
Support, Income-Based Jobseeker’'s Allowance or Pension Credit) whose equivalised
income (excluding housing benefits) is below 60% of the median before housing costs

¢ Asylum seekers in England in receipt of subsistence support, accommodation support,
or both.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 20



THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO PROMOTE
POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Belinda Hearn
Role: Early Intervention Officer
Organisation: LBH

SUMMARY OF EARLY PREVNTION AND INTERVENTION IN HILLINGDON / ROLE OF
YOUR SERVICE OR ORGANISATION

| work in the Early Help Co-ordination team which is within the Key Working Service, and
part of the council's Early Intervention Service. The team's role is to act as a ‘front door’ to
the key working service and be the link between children’'s social care and Early
Intervention and Prevention Services. My team is responsible for the Early Help
Assessment (EHA), Team Around the Family (TAF) and ensuring that the Lead
Professional role is embedded across partner agencies throughout Hillingdon.

Access to the Key Working Service for partner agencies is via the Early Help Assessment
(EHA). The Assessment tool was designed with partner agencies from Hillingdon's Local
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) to ensure that the process was inclusive of all
agencies from the onset, following guidelines suggested in Working Together 2015. The
EHA and TAF processes are overseen by the LSCB.

My team ensures that all agencies working with families with children aged 0-18 are aware
of Hillingdon’s Early Intervention and Prevention Services and the offer of a range of
services that are on offer from Children’s Centres, Youth Programmes and the Key
Working Service. We do this by attending service area team meetings, training events and
offer 1:1 bespoke training for all agencies.

All partner agencies can access an e-learning programme and there is detailed guidance
for practitioners and a leaflet for parent/carers, please see Appendices 1 and 2. There is a
website which provides information for practitioners and residents. My team also offer
practitioners advice on the EHA process when required.

Early Help principles:

Assessing Need

e The Early Help Assessment (EHA) will be the tool used to help families and
professionals identify needs and how these may be met.

e All family members will be supported to contribute to the EHA.

e The EHA will be most effective when undertaken with the professional who knows
the family best.

e The EHA will be considered a ‘live document’, shared and updated as
circumstances change with the aspiration of achieving a ‘tell us once’ approach.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 21



e The family’s wishes with respect to the sharing and storage of EHAs will be
paramount.

Intervention Planning

e The child/family is maintained in the universal context wherever possible.

e Professionals will have good local knowledge of and be able to access the local
services that can support children and families.

e When additional needs are identified, the targeted service is brought into the
universal provision to add to the support being provided in the universal context.

e Where the family may need to access a number of targeted services the Team
Around the Family (TAF) approach will be used to manage the process and ensure
activity is integrated and seamless.

¢ The lead professional role is central to the successful delivery of co-ordinated
services.

e All professionals within the children's work force will understand and undertake the
lead professional role where appropriate.

¢ Intervention plans will build on the existing strengths of the family.

e All family members will be supported to develop the intervention plan and review its
effectiveness.

e Where at all possible there is one integrated intervention plan agreed by all relevant
parties. However, it is recognised that some services are legally required to have
their own plan, but all plans will correlate and support each other.

e Targeted services are withdrawn when the need has been met.

We have also recently recruited EHA Champions. EHA champions are identified from
service areas outside of the local authority to give their colleagues advice on the EHA and
TAF processes. | meet with the EHA champions every quarter in person and
communicate any updates via email. The EHA champions give the champions the
opportunity to discuss any barriers they may be facing with the EHA tool and accessing
Early Intervention.

To ensure the smooth running of processes between social care and early intervention
and prevention services | work closely with social care, and | am the named link person for
early intervention. | attend social care team meetings on a bi-monthly basis, | am available
for discussion by phone or email and | make sure | speak with social worker managers at
least once per week in person and ask them if they have any cases or queries they wish to
discuss.

The TAF is a multi-agency meeting with the relevant practitioners and the family present.
My team will support practitioners with arranging the first TAF meeting and assist with the
formulation of any outcome based TAF plan and identify the relevant lead professional.
Once a lead professional is appointed my team will no longer attend meetings but the
Lead Professional keeps the team informed of the review TAF meetings and can contact
the team for further advice and support when needed.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 22



OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

The number or Early Help Assessments (EHA) from January 2015-August 2015 is
currently 92 which is the same figure for the same period in 2014 which demonstrates the
tool is being used consistently.

The aim of my team is to increase the number of EHA’s completed across partner
agencies, particularly schools

The number of Team Around the Family (TAF) meetings held for the period January 2015-
August 2015 were 68 which is slightly lower when compared to the same time period in
2014; this is likely to be due to recent changes within service processes.

With recently increased capacity in the team it is envisaged that the number of EHAs and
TAF meetings will increase in line with increased communications, training and
awareness.

The number of ‘step down’” TAF meetings from social care has increased in 2015 and this
trend is likely to continue with the new link between the two teams.

The EHA and TAF process provides positive outcomes for families which is demonstrated
in the case study in Appendix 4. The family in this particular instance felt they were "stuck"
and after successful intervention said that the TAF was a "wonderful process" and that
things would not have changed for the family without the TAF meeting.

COMMENTS ON PROVISION OF SERVICES E.G ANYTHING THAT YOU THINK
COULD BE IMPROVED OR DONE DIFFERENTLY ETC.

e Consistently ensuring all relevant colleagues are aware of and using the EHA
process and tools. This is a challenge as our ambition is to enable and ensure
usage across all internal and external partner services. We aim to continually
increase and improve application with ongoing communication with partner
agencies, and attendance at service area meetings, and continued review.

e The development of a service specific area to support families who are struggling
with children’s behaviour due to ASD/ADHD is an area requiring focused attention.

¢ Meeting the needs of children with emotional well-being issues is also a key issue.
The development and implementation of the CAMHS Strategy is an important
development in response to these needs.

e A single database to facilitate information sharing across agencies would help
improve service provision to families and identify those of need of early help at an
earlier stage.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 23



e Some agencies are reluctant to take on the Lead Professional role as they feel they
are being given extra responsibilities. Through training, information and support it is
hoped that this view will change in time.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 24



THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO PROMOTE
POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Deborah Bell
Role: Service Manager
Organisation: Key Working Service

SUMMARY OF EARLY PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION IN HILLINGDON / ROLE
OF YOUR SERVICE OR ORGANISATION

The Key Working Service is designed to work in support of families to resolve problems,
that without key-work intervention would escalate, become more entrenched and difficult to
resolve.

This is achieved by delivery and coordinated personalised, evidence based early and
preventative interventions for children, young people and their families with the aim of de-
escalating issues of concern, achieving sustainable change, promoting capability and
capacity within families to problem solve difficulties they are or may experience in the future
and preventing the need for statutory intervention services. These concerns relate to a
variety of challenges a family might face alongside those of a more specific nature such as
children's participation in education, employment and training, low family income as a
consequence of unemployment and involvement in criminal activity and anti-social
behaviour.

The service also working in collaboration with social work teams in support of higher need
families (Level 3) with complex and multiple difficulties which may include low income as a
consequence of worklessness, involvement in or at risk of being involved in crime, alcohol
or substance misuse, antisocial behaviour, disengagement with education and risk of
homelessness or children on the edge of care.

Lower need families (Level 2) experiencing difficulties that are likely to become more
complex and entrenched without a brief solution focused intervention.

In addition to these key-working functions, the service includes support and promotion
principles and processes designed to enable the identification of the need for early support
and to facilitate appropriate and swift responses for residents. These processes include the
application of the Early Help Assessment and Team Around the Family (TAF) methodology.
This service is informed by the fact that families often experienced multiple and sometimes
common issues that were not always responded to in a unified manner. This could lead to
families experiencing numerous interventions that had not been collectively conceived
based on a common understanding of what the problems were and how they may best be
resolved.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 25



The new Key Working Service operates so that these needs are best served by a service
delivery model that adopts a collaborative approach to resolving presenting issues as
opposed to a 'team for an issue' arrangement. Integrated key-worker teams with the
capacity and expertise to attend to a range of presenting issues have consequently been
established from 1% April 2015. The teams comprise key-work practitioners with core as
well as more specialist skills, knowledge and expertise relevant to the accountabilities of
the role and the needs of the families it serves. Practitioner and team knowledge and
expertise is applied and shared across the service in response to family need. Knowledge
and expertise is being developed through the continuous professional development of team
members and a core workforce development programme. Partnership work with Social
care colleagues, Police, Schools, Children's Centres, Targeted Programmes and Health
professionals is key to success.

e The Key-working Service is developing, implementing and reviewing evidence
based and time-bound intervention plans, based on assessed needs, which
address areas of concern whilst promoting problems solving skills/strategies within
the family. Plans can be for the family as a whole or specific to individual members.

e It works intensively with family members in their own homes and community
settings. Key-workers apply modelling and coaching techniques to promote the
development of practical skills, such as budgeting and domestic management, and
social skills. They also provide guidance, advice and training to parents on child
care and parenting skills at different stages of child development and support family
members in managing difficult and challenging behaviour.

e The key-working function combines case-work and client tracking as part of the
process of monitoring the impact of interventions made. The tracking process is
being developed and supported by the Performance and Intelligence Team.

e Statutory duties in relation to the provision of education welfare services and
support, information, advice and guidance are located and discharged within the
Key-working Service. This includes the need to fulfil the duty to prosecute, where
necessary and appropriate, parents who do not ensure their children attend school
as required or ensure their children receive full time and appropriate education.

OUTCOMES ACHIEVED SINCE 1°T APRIL 2015:-
DEMAND FOR SERVICE:

Requests for Early intervention and Prevention Services direct intervention: 227

Demand allocation (*Cases in addition to schools specific case-work)

Preventative Preventative | Intensive | Early help Participation | Targeted | Intensive Services | Total
team 1 team 2 team co-ordination | team* youth team and outside
Team services participation | El
team
56 56 39 14 11 4 1 46 227

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 26




OUTCOMES:
Families 'stepped down' to universal context: 37
Cases escalated to children's social care: 7

COMMENTS ON PROVISION OF SERVICES E.G ANYTHING THAT YOU THINK
COULD BE IMPROVED OR DONE DIFFERENTLY ETC.

1.

2.

The role of the intensive key working team leader is being reviewed to strengthen
and sustain the interface with children's social care.

The use of data is being developed. 'Clearcore', data matching software, has
provided an opportunity to identify families who are experiencing multiple
challenges but may only be known by individual agencies.

Co-location of key working services is a current project to enhance soft data
exchange and improve consistent practitioner standards.

. Links with children's centres are improving through the appointment of a service

manager responsible for this element of Hillingdon's early intervention and
prevention offer.

All academies have commissioned the participation team for early intervention and
prevention input prior to statutory intervention. The one exception to this is Stockley
academy. Operational relations with this school are sound and effective.
Improvements in strategic links are sought on an ongoing basis.

Residents will benefit from the newly configured key working service receiving a
comprehensive continuous professional development package currently being
designed.

OTHER COMMENTS

Data sharing arrangements with partners can be challenging when identifying and
supporting vulnerable families, particularly with Health. Working is being progressed via
the early intervention and prevention strategy group to strengthen arrangements.

The Key Working Service is contributing to the development of a revised CAMHS Strategy
and is also working with associated services and partners in response to the needs of
young people on the autistic spectrum. .

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



A practitioners guide to the
Early Help Assessment and
Team Around the Family

THILLINGDON Page 29

LONDON www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Appendix 1

Contents
Introduction to Early Help Assessment (EHA)........................ 4
Early Help PrinCiples ... 5
Role of the Team Around the Family (TAF) Co-ordinator ............ccccooeeiiiiiiiiiininnnnnn. 6
TRresholds ..., 7
Referrals to social Services.....ccccvvviiiimmmmmmccnniirreess e e 8
The Early Help Assessment procCess......cccccceevrremncerrrensnrreennnnns 9
When to complete an Early Help Assessment ...........cccooeiiiiie 10
Consent and Information Sharing ...............ooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 11
Completing the Early Help Assessment ..........ooovveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceee e 12
The Assessment FrameworkK ... 13
ASSESSMENT GUIAANCE ... e e e e e e 14
The Outcome Wheel ... 18
Elements of @ good assesSmMeNnt.............ouuiiiiiiiiiiiiice e 19
ANalysis @and NEXE STEPS ......uuiiiiiiiie i 20
Team Around the Family .......ceceiiiiiciiiieccirrecc e, 21
Arranging the TAF Meeting ........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee et 22
The Team Around the Family Process..........cccccciiiiiiii e, 23
The First TAF MeEetiNG ......ccooiiiiiiii e e e e e eeaaaes 24
The Lead Professional ..o 25
TAF ACHion Plan ... 27
Reviewing the TAF action plan.............oooiii e, 28
Ending the Team Around the Family process ...........cccceeeeieeiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeen, 29
Use of the outcome wheel ... 29
Measuring OULCOMES.......cciveiirreiirnerer e rrnas s e s e na e e manas 30
Measuring the views of the family ... 30
Team Around the Family-'step down' cases......cccc.ccovrrreeeeee. 31
Auditing ProCess......ccoiiiiieeeciiii e s e s e e e e e e nnnnas 32
EHA/TAF Champions......ccccciiimmeceessnsirrssmsssssessssmsssssssesssnmsssnns 33



Appendix 1

Retention ... e e 34
Links to other Services ........ccocciiiiirecccss s e e e 35
Useful contact numbers and websites...........cccervireeeennnnnnee. 36
APPENAICES ..o e e 37

Appendix One-Example Early Help Assessment
Appendix Two-Example TAF plan

Appendix Three-Early Help Assessment Audit Tool
Appendix Four-TAF plan Audit Tool

Appendix Five-Outcome Wheel

Appendix Six-Parent evaluation form

Appendix Seven-Young person feedback form

Page 31



Appendix 1

Introduction to Early Help Assessment (EHA)

The EHA is an early intervention assessment tool designed to assist practitioners to
identify the needs of all children and young people within a household, ranging from
unborn children to 18 years, analyse the information and plan what to do next. The EHA
can be completed by any professional working with a family, including the private and
voluntary sector.

The EHA was launched in Hillingdon in June 2013. This guidance has been prepared on
behalf of the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) and the Hillingdon Children and
Families Trust Board (CFTB), by a multi agency group of practitioners using jointly
developed early help principles.

Families who live outside Hillingdon

This process is only applicable to families that live in the borough of Hillingdon,
even if a child attends a school/college/group in Hillingdon.

If you have contact with and have concerns for a family who live outside
Hillingdon contact the TAF Co-ordinator for advice.

Child Protection Concern

If you have a child protection concern, or are unsure whether a family should
be referred to social services, speak to the safeguarding officer in your
organisation or contact social services for further advice.

Page 32



Appendix 1

Early Help Principles
Assessing Need

e The Early Help Assessment (EHA) will be the tool used to help families and
professionals identify needs and how these may be met.

¢ All family members will be supported to contribute to the EHA.

e The EHA will be most effective when undertaken with the professional who knows
the family best.

e The EHA will be considered a ‘live document’, shared and updated as circumstances
change with the aspiration of achieving a ‘tell us once’ approach.

e The family’s wishes with respect to the sharing and storage of EHAs will be
paramount.

e Electronic means of completing and storing EHAs are the most efficient and will be
explored.

Intervention Planning

e The child/family is maintained in the universal context wherever possible.

e Professionals will have good local knowledge of and be able to access the local
services that can support children and families.

e When additional needs are identified, the targeted service is brought into the
universal provision to add to the support being provided in the universal context.

¢ Where the family may need to access a number of targeted services the Team Around
the Family (TAF) approach will be used to manage the process and ensure activity is
integrated and seamless.

e The lead professional role is central to the successful delivery of co-ordinated
services.

e All professionals within the children's work force will understand and undertake the
lead professional role where appropriate.

¢ Intervention plans will build on the existing strengths of the family.

e All family members will be supported to develop the intervention plan and review its
effectiveness.

e Where at all possible there is one integrated intervention plan agreed by all relevant
parties. However, it is recognised that some services are legally required to have
their own plan, but all plans will correlate and support each other.

e Targeted services are withdrawn when the need has been met.

Page 33



Appendix 1

Role of the Team Around the Family (TAF) Co-ordinator

The primary role of the TAF co-ordinator is to work alongside agencies to embed the EHA
and TAF process.

The TAF Co-ordinator can assist practitioners by providing:

Advice on whether an EHA would be appropriate.

Updates and checks of the EHA register.

Advice on agencies that could work with the family or attend TAF meetings.

Help to agencies with arranging their first TAF meeting, including advising and
contacting agencies to attend the TAF meeting.

Attendance at the first TAF meeting to provide support to practitioners who are
not familiar with the TAF process.

Advice on complex TAF meetings.

Auditing of completed EHA and TAF action plans.

Bespoke training sessions for agencies regarding EHA and TAF.

Data for senior management teams for EHA and TAFs.

Information on existing TAF meetings and Lead Professionals and maintaining
these records.

Contact details for TAF co-ordinator

@ Non-secure email (ensure the

document is password protected) taf@hillingdon.gov. uk

Q@’ Secure email Belinda.Hearn@hillingdon.gcsx.gov.uk
London Borough of Hillingdon
ﬂ Postal address Link 1A, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Page 34



Appendix 1

Thresholds

Hillingdon has adopted the London continuum of need which is shown below. The
continuum of need provides a model to help professionals identify and assess the most
appropriate threshold of intervention and support for a particular child. It is intended to
be used as guidance, not a prescriptive procedure, to support practitioners and
managers to exercise sound professional judgement.

£ >
/ Children and families with \ 5.
Y additional needs (level 2) B
y A\ O
4 p— ke
i \ £o)
/ All children and famifies {level 1) 9
/ \
/ \
/ Universal services recened by all children and young pecple ‘\

Level 1: Universal services

At level 1, children with no identified additional needs will have their developmental
needs met by universal services. Examples of universal services include schools, health
visitors and children’s centres.

Level 2: Additional needs

Children at level 2 will have additional needs that are not clear, not known or not being
met. This is when the Early Help Assessment should be completed to identify the family's
needs and which service(s) could work with the family. Agencies working with families
could include universal services and /or targeted services. These services are typically
early intervention and preventative services.

Level 3: Complex needs

Children at level 3 have complex needs that are likely to require longer term
intervention from statutory and/or specialist services. This is also the threshold for a
child in need, which will require children’s social care intervention.

Level 4: Acute needs
Children at level 4 have acute needs requiring statutory intensive support. This includes
the threshold for child protection, which will require children’s social care intervention.

7
Page 35



Appendix 1

Referrals to social services

When considering making a referral to social services you should refer to the Hillingdon
Threshold document www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/15540/Key-documents and the
Working Together 2015 guidelines:
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/working-together-to-safeguard-
children-revisions

If you are still unsure whether a family meet the threshold for children’s social care,
before conducting an EHA or making a referral call children’s social services and ask to
speak to a social worker for advice on 01895 556644. The team are available Monday-
Friday 9.00am-5.00pm.

They will be able to guide you as to whether your concerns meet the social services
threshold, and if not which action to take next. If you are advised to make a referral to
social services then use the Inter-Agency referral form and seek the family's consent as
advised by the social worker. The Inter-Agency referral form has its own guidance and is
available to download at the website: www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/15540/Key-
documents

"In need” referral criteria

The decision about whether a child is eligible for an assessment or on-going service from
children'’s social care rests with the social care managers. The assessment of whether a
child’s needs fall within the “in need” eligibility criteria takes into account and is
informed by the:
e age of the child
¢ level of the child’s need and the impact of the concern on the child’s welfare and
development
o level of risk facing the child, currently and in the future, and any risk that they
may pose to others
e child and family’s wider circumstances
¢ level of support that is being provided, or may be provided, by other agencies and
professionals
e risk of deterioration if services are not provided
e local authority’s statutory responsibilities

Page 36



The Early Help Assessment process

b

Contact social
services with
YOur concerns

Concern about a child(ren)

M= Yes -

Does the concernm meet the

threshold for social care or

is there an allocated social
worker?

1
Mo

}

Is there an existing
EHA/TAF plan in place?

Mo

}

Does the parentyoung
person consent to the
Early Help Assessment

T
Yes
¥
Complete the EHA
including the
family, and all
children

L Yes

= No

Contact the lead

professional

Yes

Consider
whether there
- are No
safeguarding
CcOncems

Possible outcomes of EHA

L 4

Do you have
safeguarding
concerns?

Do a number of
services need to
work together to
meet the family's

needs?

Can another
single agency
meet the family's

Can the family's need be
met by your service?

needs? T

Yes

Yes +*

+

Arrange a Team
Around the Family
meeting

agency

Use the EHA to
support your

Yes

)

Continue to
work with family

[ Y

referral to that

v and review "

regularly

Appendix 1

When you complete an EHA send a copy to the TAF Co-ordinator so the
EHA register can be kept up to date

Page 37



Appendix 1

When to complete an Early Help Assessment

If you are working with a family you may notice some changes with the child/children
that you are working with, or the parent/carer may approach you with a worry or
concern they have. The EHA can be used to clarify your thinking on what the needs of
the family are and how they may be met.

Example situations or observations that may lead to an EHA being completed

e You notice a change in the appearance or behaviour of a child/young person
e Persistent non/late attendance

e Child/young person appears hungry and does not have packed lunch or money to buy
food

e You become aware of a significant event, eg pending eviction, divorce, or
bereavement

Concerns about the family's home environment

Child/young person is making slower progress than expected
Challenging or aggressive behaviour

Becoming bullied or being a bully

Family breakdown

Acting as carer to sibling or parent

Mental health or illness with child/young person or within family
Exposure to substance misuse in family home

Exposure to domestic violence

Suffering discrimination

Becoming homeless

Becoming a teenage parent

Frequent non attendance to medical appointments/meetings

If you are unsure whether an EHA should be completed you can contact the TAF Co-
ordinator on 01895 556144 who will be able to talk through the process with you.

REMEMBER

1. The EHA is an early intervention assessment tool and is not for making a
referral to social services (to do this you will need to complete an Inter-
Agency referral form (see page 8)

2. If you have any doubts about whether to make a referral to social care you
should speak to the safeguarding officer in your organisation or contact social
services for further advice.

3. If you start an EHA and then identify more worrying concerns you can always
stop and make a referral to social care

4. If there is already a social worker allocated to the family you do not need to
complete an EHA. You should instead share your concerns directly with the
social worker and participate in any planning processes already in place.

10
Page 38



Appendix 1

Consent and Information sharing
Getting consent
Before completing the EHA you need the consent of the parent/carer and in some cases

the young person. They will want to understand the purpose of the document and there
is a leaflet available to explain the process to the family www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha

You must ensure that the parent/carer/child or young person giving consent to the EHA
fully understands what they are consenting to and the implications of giving or not giving
their consent. This conversation is an important part of making sure that you fully
understand their needs and agreeing how best to meet those needs, including which
other practitioners may be able to work with them.

Young people can give consent to the EHA without their parent/carers consent;
however, you should try to encourage the young person giving consent to include their
parent/carer in the process.

It is presumed that young people over the age of 16 have sufficient understanding to
give consent. This may also be applicable to young people over the age of 12; however,
you must use your professional judgement as to whether this is the case. When making
this decision you should consider whether the young person has the capacity to
understand and make their own decisions to give or refuse consent.

Information sharing

The last page of the EHA asks the parent/carer/young person to give their consent to
the EHA process and also records their consent to sharing of the EHA with other
agencies.

The EHA should record which agencies you wish to invite or contact regarding a Team
around the Family meeting (TAF) allowing families to give informed consent as to the
sharing of the EHA.

The Department for Education has issued guidance regarding information sharing and
consent which is available on the website:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/safeguarding-practitioners-information-
sharing-advice

You should explain that you will only share information without their consent in
exceptional circumstances, such as when you believe that they or another child or young
person may be at risk of significant harm, or an adult may be at risk of serious harm, or
to prevent, detect or prosecute a serious crime.

NB This guidance around consent is based solely around the EHA and TAF processes.
Professionals should consult their own organisational guidance on consent issues in their
area of work.

11
Page 39



Appendix 1

Completing the Early Help Assessment

If the family consent to completing an EHA, contact the TAF Co-ordinator to check if an
EHA or TAF is in place or if the family have an allocated social worker. If an EHA or TAF
is already in place you will be given the contact details of the lead professional so you
can contact them with your concerns. Similarly, if the family has an allocated social
worker you should share your concerns directly with him/her.

If there is no EHA, TAF or allocated social worker, you should then arrange a date with
the parent/carer/young person to undertake the EHA. There is a leaflet to explain the
process to the family at www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha

Pages 1-3 of the EHA are for recording the demographic details of the family and the
reasons why the EHA is being completed. Remember, the EHA is a family assessment
and should include all children aged 0-18, including unborn children. If you are not
working with all children you should ask the parent/carer for consent to contact other
agencies that are working with the children and ask them to contribute to the EHA.

Page 3 is key in recording other agencies that work with the family and some prompts
are given to assist in this. Page 3 also includes the views of the family as to why they
think the EHA is being completed and what they hope will be achieved by completing
the EHA.

REMEMBER
Families who live outside Hillingdon

This process is only applicable to families who live in the borough of Hillingdon,
even if a child attends a school/college/group in Hillingdon.

If you have concerns for a family who live outside Hillingdon, contact the TAF Co-
ordinator for advice.

12
Page 40



Appendix 1

The Assessment Framework

The assessment section is on pages 4-6 of the EHA document. As the EHA is a family
assessment there are boxes for up to 3 children/young people. If there are more then 3
children in the household you can print off pages 4-6 and attach them to the EHA to
include all family members.

The EHA is based on the assessment framework which some practitioners may be
familiar with.

The framework sets out the key areas of assessment under 3 headings. Although the
headings in the EHA are slightly different from those below, they are based on this
framework.

Not all areas will be relevant to every assessment; however, each area should be
considered to ensure a full assessment of the family's needs.

Assessment Framework

Health A Basic Care
V.
Education ‘9 .
% Ensuring Safety
Emotional & < A
Behavioural Development é/ @
o Emotional Warmth
&
Identity (@)
.ZO Stimulation
Family & Social Safeguarding &
Relationships Guidance &

promoting
/ Boundaries

Social Presentation \? L welfare

o3 / Stability
Selfcare Skills ¢

FAMILY & ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

c Py ,%

& % < 4, ¢ >
%‘5‘0%%0 6@ L%o-/ﬁ-a % %, '5/% %, “};,o)f/;f ;
) O,; %{ el '%/(}’ %‘og'_

This diagram is from the Working Together to Safeguard Children guidance 2013

Page 41



Appendix 1

Assessment guidance

On the following pages there are some questions and areas you could consider when
completing the EHA. These are examples and will not cover every situation. The
assessment should consider the family's strengths and needs and include the views of the
family including children and young people, if they are old enough to give their views. If
there are differences of opinion these should also be recorded. The assessment should
be evidence based, giving examples and evidence for any concerns.

When recording the assessment, do not repeat information or be too concerned if you
are putting the information in the "right box". The most important thing is to ensure
that the information is recorded in the EHA. In time, completing the assessment will
become easier. For a completed example of an EHA see Appendix one.

There are no deadlines or time scales for completing the EHA with the family; however,
the response should be timely so that the family's needs neither drift nor escalate.

Development needs for each child

Look at how the child/young person thrives, and their physical, social and mental
development based on your observations and from your knowledge of working with the
family

Physical and mental health

Fine and gross motor skills, nourishment, disability and additional needs, recurring or
chronic health problems, physical and mental wellbeing, weight and height

Possible questions

o Do you have any concerns about the children’s health?

o Have you seen a Doctor about any concerns?

o What do the children like to do outside school?

Education

School/nursery attendance and punctuality, SEN support, barriers to learning,
including access to books and toys, ICT, language, qualifications-both undertaken and
achieved, SEN, exclusion history, attainment and peer relationships, EP or EWO
involvement

Possible questions

o Is your child attending nursery/playgroup/children’s centre?

o Do the children have difficulty coming into school as their attendance is X or
they have X number of lates?

o What books do the children like to read at home?

o Do you think your child has any difficulties with school and learning, have you
sought any advice?

o Does your child like school, what reasons do they have for their answer?

o What is their favourite toy(s)?

Emotional and behavioural development

Poor self esteem, engaging in risky behaviours including offending behaviour and
substance misuse, attachment disorder, violence and aggression towards parent/carers
and peers and adults outside the family, coping with stress and feeling isolated, self
harm, eating disorders, depression, pregnant or expressing wish to become pregnant

14
Page 42



Appendix 1

Possible questions

o Have there been any significant events in the family which may be impacting
on your children, for example bereavement or separation?

o Do the children have difficulty sleeping or eating?

o Have they deliberately hurt themselves?

Identity development

Perception of self-image and self esteem, knowledge of personal/family history and
sense of belonging, positive sense of individuality eg race, religion, age, gender,
sexuality and disability

Possible questions

. Do you think your child has inappropriate self esteem (too high or low)?

o Do they see themselves as victims of unfair treatment - eg in home, school or
community?

o Do they display discriminatory attitudes to others?

Family and social relationships

Able to build stable relationship with family, peers and wider community, helping
others, age appropriate friendships

Possible questions

o Who are the main carers?

o What names do the children mention as school friends?

o Who do the children play with outside of school?

o Do the children see siblings/grandparents/aunts/uncles wider family?

o What do the children like to do with you at the weekend?

Presentation

Appearance of child/young person, age appropriate dress, cleanliness and personal
hygiene

Possible questions:

o Are they polite, sociable, mature?

o Do the children take care over their appearance?

Self-care skills

Age appropriate behaviour, independent living skills, decision-making, practical skills
of dressing and feeding, opportunities to gain confidence. Give consideration to any
additional needs a child/young person may have

Possible questions

o Can the children get themselves dressed in the morning?

o Do the children need help with anything?

Other points to consider

o Is the child a young carer?

o Any significant family events including divorce, new baby, bereavement?

About the parent(s) capacity in relation to each child
How is the child/young person when they are at home and in the care of their
parents/carers?

Basic care

Child care arrangements, supervision of children, parent/carer learning disability,
substance misuse, parental non compliance, providing for the child’s physical and
health needs, provision of food, drink, warmth, shelter, clean and appropriate
clothing and adequate personal hygiene,

15
Page 43



Appendix 1

Possible questions

o What are the children’s favourite meals?
o Who helps look after the children in the evenings?
o Who collects the children from nursery/school?

Ensuring safety

Supervision and parenting of child, ensuring the child is adequately protected from
harm or danger both in the home and elsewhere, domestic violence - historic or
current

Possible questions

. Have the children witnessed or heard domestic violence?

o Are there stair gates in the home?

Emotional warmth

Inconsistent parenting and effect this has on development of child/young person,
affection and attachments, ensuring the child’s emotional needs are met and giving
the child a sense of identity, feeling valued and a positive sense of own racial and
cultural identity, appropriate physical contact, domestic violence - current or historic.
Possible questions

o What do you do with the children at the weekend/evenings?
o How do you enforce boundaries and rules, eg reward/sticker charts?
Stimulation

Promoting child’s learning and intellectual development, encouraging and joining the
child’s play, ensuring school attendance or equivalent opportunity

Possible questions

o What games do the children like playing?

o What toys do the children like to play with?

. Do the children like to read/be read to?

Guidance and boundaries

Boundaries set by parent/carer, positive role models set by parent/carer/adults,
positive activities

Possible questions

o How do the children respond if you are telling them off?
o What happens if you tell the children to return home at a certain time?
16

Page 44



Appendix 1

Stability

Frequency of house moves and around boroughs, household relationships between
family members/parents/carers

Possible questions

o How long have you lived at the current property?
o Where did you live previously?
o Who else lives in the family home?

Environment and family circumstances for each child

What are the family’s current circumstances and what is their ability to manage the
current situation? This includes housing, domestic violence, financial situation and
wider family support. Please provide as much information as you can or that the
family are willing to share.

Family history and functioning

Parent/carer unable to manage child’s behaviour, relationships between parents -
including domestic violence and/or separated parents - which may affect child/young
person, composition of household, childhood experiences of parents, nature of family
functioning, including sibling relationships and its impact on the child and whether the
child is acting as a young carer.

Possible questions

o How do the children get on with their siblings?

o Do the children have regular contact with mum/dad (if parents are separated)?

Wider family network

Support from family or non family members, who are considered to be members of the
wider family by the child and the parents?

Possible questions

o Which family members/family friends do the children see regularly?
o Do you get any help looking after the children in the evenings or at weekends?
Housing

Property size, temporary accommodation, social housing or privately owned,
overcrowding, is the housing accessible and suitable to the needs of disabled family
members, basic amenities including water, heating, sanitation, cooking facilities,
sleeping arrangements and cleanliness, hygiene and safety and their impact on the
child’s upbringing

Possible questions

o What is the family's housing situation, eg. private or council rental?
o How many bedrooms in the house?

o Do the children share a bedroom with siblings or parent?
Employment

Are parents/carers working, is this full or part time, permanent, temporary or
voluntary work, does a parent do more than one job? Does the parent's work impact
on the child?

Possible questions

o Are you working at the moment?
o Would you be interested in help looking for work?
o Do you need any training so you are available to work? Do you need child care?

17
Page 45



Appendix 1

Income

Benefits the family receive, income received into family home, risk of homelessness
due to rent arrears or debt, is there enough money for utility bills and food?

Possible questions

o What benefits do you receive?

o Are you affected by recent benefit changes?
o Are you facing eviction?

o Do you use the food bank?

Social integration

Parent/carer involved in anti-social or criminal activity, social networks, social
exclusion. Are the family suffering from harassment or discrimination?

Possible questions

o Do you get on well with your neighbours?

o Do you have friends nearby?

Community resources

Are the family accessing community groups in their area, leisure facilities, shops and
access to transport? Accessibility to resources for family, including disabled members
Possible questions

o Do you live close to shops?

o Are you or the children a member of any local clubs/groups?

o Do you or the children attend a children’s centre/young people's centre

. What do you like to do if you have any free time?

Other points to consider

o Relationship between family members,

o Adult carers

o Private fostering

o Financial concerns

o Any family members involved in anti social behaviour, or victims of harassment,
redundancy

o Domestic violence

The Outcome Wheel

The outcome wheel is at the end of the EHA and should be used when undertaking the
EHA with the family for the first time. This tool can be used to help aid the assessment
and gives families the opportunity to have their say on where they feel their needs lie
and can also be used with children and young people too.

The wheel is used with families to mark where on the wheel they would place
themselves and can be used throughout the EHA to inform your assessment of the
family. Not all areas of the wheel will be applicable, so just complete the areas which
the family feel they need support with.

The outcome wheel is kept with the EHA and is not added to or changed. There is an
opportunity at the end of the process to review this if the family's needs have been met.

18
Page 46



Appendix 1

Elements of a good assessment

Family
focused

The views of the family, including those of children and young
people where they are old enough to give their views, should be
included in the assessment.

The family should be kept at the centre of the assessment to
ensure their needs are met.

Apart from a pre-natal assessment, it is not possible to complete
the Early Help Assessment (EHA) without seeing or involving the
child(ren).

Non
discriminatory

The EHA should be based on equality of opportunity and takes
into account disability, communication, gender, and sexuality,
cultural and racial needs.

Personal information should always be dealt with in a sensitive
and non-discriminatory manner.

Take into account whether an interpreter may be required to
complete the assessment.

Current

The assessment should be based on the current concerns of the
practitioner and the family, ensuring these are recorded in the
EHA.

Sufficient and

The EHA should provide sufficient information so that the needs

formative are clearly identified.

o The EHA should take into account strengths as well as needs to
help with the decision making process as to the next steps to
take.

Collaborative | e The EHA should be completed with the family, including children
and young people.

o If another agency is working with a child/young person you do
not know then, where possible, they should be contacted to
contribute to the assessment (eg. Sibling in a different school or
attending a children's centre).

Transparent o Throughout the process, all work with the family should be
honest and open.

o The purpose should be clear to all.

o The family should have access to information held about them.

Consensual . The informed consent of the child/young person and /or
parents/ carers should be obtained.

o You cannot undertake an EHA unless the child and/or their
parent agree. The EHA is entirely voluntary.

Evidence o A good assessment is grounded in evidence based knowledge,

based current research and an understanding of human growth and
development.

Language o The language used should be non-judgmental in the discussion

and in the EHA.

19
Page 47




Appendix 1

Analysis and next steps

The EHA should have helped you to identify the family's needs. It should be shared with
the family to see if they recognise the difficulties identified, and then to explore what
they would like to happen next and what they would like to achieve. Discuss your goals
and aims too and agree a plan. The goals and plan are recorded on page 7 of the EHA.

e Your own service can meet the family's needs
If your own agency has resources it can use to meet the family's needs, continue to
work with them as before. Use the EHA to record your plan and continue to meet
with the family and review the plan regularly. If other services need to be involved
in the future, the EHA and updated plans and reviews can be used to access other
services.

e A referral to one single agency
If you identify that another single agency for example a children's centre, young
people's centre, educational psychologist, could meet the family needs you can use
the EHA to support your referral to that agency In some cases the agency may still
require you to complete their own referral form. You would need to discuss this
referral with the family.

¢ A number of agencies are identified as being required to meet the family's needs
Arrange a Team Around the Family (TAF) meeting. Further information about the
TAF process is on pages 22-30. A TAF meeting will bring agencies together to identify
how they can meet the needs of the family. The TAF co-ordinator can be contacted
for help with arranging the first TAF meeting or suggesting agencies that could be
part of the TAF meeting.

¢ You have safeguarding concerns
If, based on the additional information you have gathered during the assessment
process, you have safeguarding concerns or are not sure whether the family should
be referred to social services, contact social services for further advice. If a formal
referral is the outcome of those discussions, the EHA can be used to support the
referral.

If you are not sure you can contact the TAF Co-ordinator for advice on the next steps.

Once you have completed an EHA send a copy to the TAF
co-ordinator so the EHA register can be kept up to date.
See contact details on page 36

NB: The family are always given a copy of the EHA.

20
Page 48



Appendix 1

Team Around the Family

A Team Around the Family (TAF) is one of the possible outcomes from the EHA. As with
the EHA, the family have to consent to the TAF meeting, including who is invited to the
meeting.

The TAF is made up of the different agencies that are already working with the family or
could work with the family in the future, based on the needs identified in the EHA. The
family, including the children where they are old enough, should attend the meeting. In
most circumstances a child would only attend part of the meeting. It may not be
appropriate for a child/young person to attend the meeting if they have special needs
which mean they would find it difficult to express their views in a meeting environment,
for example some types of learning disability. In these situations the parent/carer or
another person working with the child should ascertain their views prior to the TAF
meeting.

Examples of when a TAF meeting may be held

Below are some situations where a TAF meeting may be necessary, with examples of
agencies you could invite.

These are just examples, and not all situations are explored. Each family will be
different and so agencies and suggested actions may differ

Situation Agencies that could attend TAF meeting

Family facing eviction Housing

Nursery/school/college

Children's centre

Health visitor/school nurse

Young Carers

Nursery/school/college

Children’'s centre/young people's centre
Health visitor/school nurse

Children’'s centre

Health visitor/midwife

Home-start

School/college

School nurse

Young people's centre

Young Carers

Adult mental health services
Nursery/school/college

Children’s centre/young people's centre
Health visitor/school nurse

Child who is a young carer

Teenage mother struggling
to cope

Parent/carer has mental
health issues

21
Page 49



Appendix 1

Arranging the TAF meeting

Usually the person who completed the EHA will arrange the first TAF meeting. The TAF
Co-ordinator can give advice as to who could attend the meeting. The family
information directory may also help to identify agencies that could attend the TAF
meeting www.hillingdon.gov.uk/families

When you are arranging a TAF meeting, check the family's availability first. Agree
venue, dates and times when the family can attend the meeting and who you can invite
to the meeting. When discussing a venue bear in mind any accessibility needs for the
family, how easy it is for the family to get to the venue and whether they will feel
comfortable in the venue.

When contacting agencies to attend the TAF meeting it will not always be possible for
everyone to attend. Prioritise agencies that are a must to attend the meeting. If an
agency that is already working with the family cannot attend then ask them for a
report/update prior to the meeting. Other agencies can be asked in advance what
services they may be able to provide and this can be shared at the meeting.

You may find it helpful to prepare an agenda prior to the TAF meeting to ensure that all
areas are discussed.

22
Page 50



Appendix 1

The Team Around the Family Process

Obtain the family’s consent to 1\1
TAF meeting
+
Using the Early Help Assessment identify the
professionals that could attend the TAF meeting. If
you are not sure contact the TAF Co-ordinator

¥
Arrange date time and venue
with family and professionals > Prior to
! TAF
Confirm date, time and venue with .
family and professionals in writing meeti ng
!
Obtain reports from any
professionals that cannot attend
Prepare agenda for meeting —/
Agree who will chair and \
minute meeting
Introductions
L 3
Chair explains purpose of
meeting
Agree strengths and During
needs of family ' TAF
l meeting

Agree with family and agencies
desired outcomes for TAF

¢

Form Action Plan

1!

Appoint Lead professional

|

Agree review date /

Send copy of TAF action plan to the TAF Co-ordinator

23
Page 51



Appendix 1

The First TAF meeting

This is usually chaired by the EHA author, or the person who arranged the TAF meeting,
but could be any professional working with the family. If the TAF Co-ordinator is
attending the first TAF meeting, they could be asked to chair the first meeting.

Guide to Chairing a TAF Meeting

All attendees should always avoid professional jargon. Practitioners should not share
information or concerns without the family being present.

1. Welcome all attendees to the meeting.
2. Explain the purpose of the meeting and confirm who the meeting is about.

3. Explain the confidentiality status of the meeting - for example, explain what
information will be recorded and who it will be shared with.

4. Ask all attendees to introduce themselves and explain their current involvement
and/or possible future role.

5. Discuss the needs identified in the Early Help Assessment, if applicable, and possible
support available to meet those needs. The views and opinions of the family should
be sought throughout the meeting.

6. Agree outcomes and actions. Draw up an action plan, agree who should become the
Lead Professional and set a date for review (ensure a venue is agreed and available).

7. Summarise the outcomes of the meeting and ensure the young person or child and
parent/carer are in agreement with and clear about who is involved, who will do
what and what happens next. The family and all members of the TAF are sent a copy
of the minutes.

8. Send a copy of the minutes to the family, TAF group and the TAF Co-ordinator.
In between meetings the TAF group continue to communicate and share information

with the family and within the group. If any member of the TAF group, including the
family, has concerns they contact the lead professional.

24
Page 52



Appendix 1

The Lead Professional

The term ‘lead professional’ is not a job title but a set of functions carried out as part of
targeted and integrated support. Most professionals working with children, young
people and their families carry out these functions on a day to day basis without
necessarily identifying themselves as doing so.

The purpose of formally identifying a lead professional is to reduce the duplication that
can happen when a number of individuals are working with the same family. This is
particularly important at a time when all organisations are facing significant resource
pressures. For the family, it reduces the experience of repeated lengthy meetings,
conflicting or confusing advice and uncertainty about who to approach for up to date
information.

A lead professional is not responsible for the work of other practitioners. All
practitioners working with the family will have their own responsibilities for delivering
specific services as part of the action plan identified in the Team around the Family
meeting.

A lead professional:
e acts as a single point of contact for the child or family and a sounding board for
them to ask questions and discuss concerns
e co-ordinates the delivery of the actions agreed by the practitioners involved in
the Team Around the Family process
e reduces overlap and inconsistency in the services offered to families

Typical tasks may include:

e building a trusting relationship with the child and family (or other carers) to
secure their involvement in the process

e being the single point of contact for all practitioners who are delivering services
to the child/young person and family

e reviewing the action plan at review Team Around the Family meetings

¢ understanding key transition points in a child’s life, for example, moving into the
next key stage at school.

e being able to challenge the child/young person, family and professionals when
necessary and help them move on in their thinking

Decisions about who is the most appropriate lead professional should be considered on a
case by case basis. One practitioner may take the lead professional role for the purpose
of organising the initial Team Around the Family meeting; however, at the meeting an
alternative may be identified based on the following considerations:

25
Page 53



Considerations

What are the predominant needs of the
child or family?

Appendix 1

Who should be lead professional?

Once these are identified a practitioner
from this area of work should be lead
professional.

Which agency has main responsibility for
addressing the child or family’s needs
including statutory responsibility?

Once the main agency has been identified
a practitioner from within that service
should be lead professional.

Does anyone have a previous or potential
ongoing relationship with the child or

If a practitioner has this previous or
potential experience then they should be

young person?

Does anyone have an  ongoing
responsibility to carry out an advocacy
role for the child or young person?

lead professional.
If anyone has this responsibility then they
should be lead professional.

The views and wishes of the child young
identifying the lead professional.

person and family will be a key factor in

Who can be the lead professional?

Many practitioners working with children and young people can be a lead professional at
certain times for some of their cases. The following list gives some examples of who may
take on the role, but is not exhaustive.

Children’s centre workers
Early years workers
Volunteers

Family workers

Health visitors

Community children’s nurses
School support staff

Learning mentors
CAMHS worker

Youth workers

Midwives

Nursery nurses

Education welfare officers
GPs

School nurses

Housing support staff
Community support officers
Teachers

Reviewing the lead professional

At the review TAF meeting the lead professional role should be reviewed. Due to the
changing needs of the family, the lead professional may need to change or a member of
the TAF group could leave. The role of the lead professional must always be transferred
with the knowledge and agreement of the family. Change of lead professional can be
noted on the action plan and the TAF Co-ordinator notified.

26
Page 54



Appendix 1

TAF Action Plan

At the TAF meeting the minutes and agreed outcomes are recorded on the TAF meeting
plan template. This can be downloaded from the website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha

An example of a completed TAF plan can be found in Appendix two.

Hillingdon Children & Families Trust TAF Delivery Plan & Review

(Actions from the assessment should be brought forward into the delivery plan and added to where a multi-agency team around the child response is
required and/or used to review progress)

Personal details

Given name(s) Family name Date of Birth or
Estimated Due Date

Address Postcode I:I Male [] Female (]  Unbom []
Lead Professional details
Name l ‘ Agency/Relationship | ‘ Email ‘ ‘
Address Contact
Number(s)

Review date ‘ ‘

Desired outcome (as agreed
with child, young person, Action Who will do this? By when? Progress & comment
family)

Date
closed

The action plan should be outcome focussed, based on the needs identified in the EHA
and discussions at the TAF meeting.

Action plans should be SMART:

Specific - clear about what needs to be done.

Measurable - the frequency or duration of the action is specified.

Achievable - actions are achievable and have the capacity to succeed.
Related/Realistic - related to the EHA and actions and outcomes are realistic.

Time bound - the time for completion of each plan is specified making it easy, at

review, to determine whether or not the action has been achieved. The decision about
when to set a formal review date is helped by specified timeframe in the action plan.

27
Page 55



Appendix 1

Reviewing the TAF action plan

At the first TAF meeting it should be agreed when the action plan will be reviewed.
There are no set timescales for reviewing the TAF, however, it should be within 3
months. The needs of the family and the outcomes and actions identified at the TAF
meeting will be a factor in deciding the date of the next TAF meeting. It is always
better to set a review date at the first TAF meeting so that the family and the TAF group
have the date in their diary.

Things to consider at a review TAF meeting:

e The family’s views - what do they think has gone well, or not so well, since the
previous meeting?

e Have there been any notable successes for the family since the last TAF meeting?

e |f TAF members are not present at the meeting, have they provided an update? If
not who will ensure this is received and considered and how will this be done?

e Have the actions from the plan been completed, if not, why not?

e Revise priorities and agree new actions.

e TAF membership - do new agencies need to be invited to the TAF meeting or will
some agency support end? Remember, the family have to consent to new agencies
joining the TAF group.

e Does the lead professional need to change?

e Are the TAF group communicating effectively in between meetings?

e Does the TAF need support from the TAF Co-ordinator with any particular
challenges the TAF group are experiencing?

e Does the TAF need to continue, can the TAF be closed and /or family supported

by a single agency?

The minutes and action plan are sent out to the TAF group and the family, including
members of the TAF group that were not able to attend the meeting.

After each TAF review meeting send a copy of the action plan
and minutes to the TAF co-ordinator.

28
Page 56



Appendix 1

Ending the Team Around the Family process

The EHA and TAF process is about empowering families so they will eventually need
support only from universal services or a single specialist agency. The aim of the TAF is
that it meets over a short period of time to meet a specific set of objectives. There is
no recommended time frame for the TAF being in place but it should usually last no
longer than 12 months. If there are still needs that are unmet then the TAF group and
action plan should be reviewed to ensure that the TAF action plan and the TAF group are
able to be effective in meeting the family's identified needs.

Some reasons why a TAF may close are:

¢ all the identified needs and outcomes are met.

o the family is able to access services without support or with minimal support, from
one service/universal services.

e concerns have escalated and a referral has been made to social services.

e the family withdraw their consent.

When the TAF process ends please notify the TAF Co-ordinator,
including minutes from the meeting to ensure records are kept
up to date

Use of the outcome wheel

At the end of the EHA process the outcome wheel should be completed by the lead
professional with the family. The visual nature of the wheel is useful for families and
young people to 'see change' that they and others recognise as having occurred and
demonstrates how their needs have been met. The second outcome wheel should only
be completed if the process has gone well and has not escalated to statutory services.

A copy of the outcome wheel is in Appendix 5

29
Page 57



Appendix 1

Measuring outcomes

To ensure that the Early Help Assessment and TAF processes are achieving the outcomes
expected for the family, an outcome wheel is included at the end of the EHA. The
wheel is completed when you first undertake the EHA. The wheel is completed by the
practitioner completing the assessment with the family, ensuring the views of the family
are recorded on the wheel. The outcome wheel covers the same assessment domains as
the EHA and will be a useful tool to show a family how they have made progress
throughout the process. The wheel is again used as the end of the process to clearly
demonstrate outcomes to the family and also your organisation and inspectors.

A copy of the outcome wheel is in Appendix 5

Measuring the views of the family

Two questionnaires have been devised to capture the views of the family as to the
benefits of the process. These are to be completed at the end of either the EHA or TAF
process and can be completed with the family and the lead professional, via post or a
phone call from the lead professional or another member of the TAF group.

There are questionnaires for the parent/carer to complete and also the child/young
person.

Copies of both questionnaires are in Appendices 6 and 7.

Copies of completed questionnaires are sent to the TAF Co-ordinator.

Please send completed copies of the outcome wheel and
questionnaires to the TAF Co-ordinator

30
Page 58



Appendix 1

Team Around the Family-'step down' cases

The Team Around the Family process is part of the early intervention offer in Hillingdon
and is not applicable when statutory services such as social services are working with a
family. However, if they are closing a case then a TAF meeting could be considered to
ensure the family's needs continue to be met by targeted and universal services as part
of the exit strategy. These are called "step down" cases.

The "step down process” can also apply where another agency has undertaken an
assessment of the family and has either delivered a service or identified that the needs
don't meet their service thresholds.

Where an agency has undertaken their own assessment, it is not expected that an EHA
would also need to be completed. Rather, the practitioner considering a TAF should
discuss this with the family and seek their permission to share the findings of the
assessment with the agencies likely to be attending the TAF. The practitioner should
also explore the outcomes being sought from the TAF with the family and share these
with the family.

The TAF process is not for monitoring families and TAF members would not offer
unannounced visits. The family have to give consent to the process and cannot be
forced to engage with the TAF process.

Where the family and practitioner agree to proceed with the TAF process, a meeting is
arranged by the practitioner prior to case closure. This meeting is used as a
closure/step down TAF meeting. The family and the agencies working with the family
are invited to the meeting. The practitioner would attend and chair this meeting. At
this meeting the outcomes and action plan are agreed and a new lead professional is
appointed to take forward future review TAF meetings.

The TAF Co-ordinator can be contacted for advice on the process and suggest agencies
that could be invited to the TAF meeting, and if required invited to the meeting to
facilitate the handover.

31
Page 59



Appendix 1

Auditing process

To ensure there is consistent quality of completed Early Help Assessments and TAF plans
within Hillingdon, an auditing schedule has been agreed and audit tools developed (see
Appendices 3 & 4). This is to ensure that the quality of EHA and TAF plans is being
monitored by the partnership, as required by Ofsted, and any training needs can be
identified. Agencies will be expected to audit 5% of completed EHAs and 5% of TAF
plans within their organisation or one assessment or plan, whatever is greater.

The audit tools can be completed using an on line Google form or using the Excel format
(which will need to be sent to the TAF co-ordinator). The TAF Co-ordinator will also
undertake a number of audits each month. All the auditing data will be collated on a
central data base and the outcomes reported to the LSCB and CFTB at least annually.

Both audit tools will be available via a link on www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha Please note
that the audit tool will look different when using the tool in Google forms.

32
Page 60



Appendix 1

EHA/TAF Champions

Each organisation will have a named EHA/TAF champion and an updated list can be
found on the website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha. You can ask your champion for
advice regarding the process. However, you can also contact the TAF Co-ordinator with
any queries should the champion for your organisation not be available.

33
Page 61



Appendix 1

Retention

Retention of documents by partner agencies will be in keeping with their own respective
Retention and Destruction Policy and Procedures.

Documents logged with the TAF Co-ordinator will be held for three years.

34
Page 62



Appendix 1

Links to other services

Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) (Statutory Assessment)

Prior to applying for an Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) it is advised that an Early
Help Assessment is completed to identify the needs of the family. The EHA process may
identify the need for a Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Team Around the Child
(SENDTAC) which is different from the Team Around the Family process detailed in this
guidance. The SENDTAC is arranged by the setting following completion of an EHA. The
setting can refer to the Hillingdon EHCP guidance for accessing an EHCP for support and
information, or contact their SEN co-ordinator.

Statutory Services, eg. Social services/Youth Offending Service
If the family are working with statutory services, the TAF and EHA process will not
apply. However, a TAF meeting could be considered as an option when a case is closing.

These are known as 'step down' cases. Further guidance regarding 'step down' cases is on
page 31.

CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services)

There is a set process agreed with CAMHS as to when a TAF meeting may be appropriate.
The TAF Co-ordinator can be contacted for further advice if needed.

35
Page 63



Appendix 1

Useful contact numbers and websites

TAF Co-ordinator Telephone: 01895 556144 (ext 6144)
Non secure email: taf@hillingdon.gov.uk

Secure email: Belinda.Hearn@hillingdon.gcsx.gov.uk
Address: London Borough of Hillingdon, Link 1A,
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Children's social services 01895 556644

Adult social services 01895 556633

EHA website-EHA and other http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/eha

templates and guidance

Hillingdon LSCB website-Inter www. hillingdon.gov.uk/lscbh

agency referral form and guidance  http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/15540/Key-
documents

Working Together guidance https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/wor

king-together-to-safeguard-children-revisions

Eileen Munro report https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/munro
-review
Information sharing guidance https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/safe

guarding-practitioners-information-sharing-advice

What to do if you are worried a https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/what
child is being abused guidance -to-do-if-youre-worried-a-child-is-being-abused--2
36

Page 64



Appendix 1

Appendices

ssssss



Appendix 1

Appendix One - Example Early Help Assessment
This is an example of a completed Early Help Assessment. This EHA was completed by a school in

Hillingdon.

Early Help Assessment

Names of child(ren) and young people who are part of this assessment. Include unborn
children and children not living in the family home.

Last Name First Name Age/DOB/E | Gender | Religion

DD M/F/

Unborn

Example Child 1 18/08/09 M Christian
Example Child 2 17/01/12 M Christian
Address:
1 A road
Uxbridge

Postcode: UB8 1AB
Telephone number: 071895 123 456
Home number or mobile number(s) of parent/carer/young person

Names of other household members who are significant to child(ren) young person

Last Name First Name Age/DOB/E | Gender | Religion
DD M/F

Example Parent 1 10/08/89 F Christian

Example Parent 2 24/06/82 M Christian

Name of parents or carers with whom the child(ren) lives (give address if different from the
child)

Telephone number: 01895 123 456 Mobile number: 07541 123 456
Home number of parent/carer if Mobile number of parent/carer
applicable

Are there any communication/interpreting needs for the child and /or family? /nclude any
communicates needs, eg sign language, interpreter needed

Do the child and/or family have a disability or special needs? Include any additional
needs of parent or child/young person, inc

Ethnicity
. s . . White & Black . Other Asian
White British ¥ | Caribbean [] Indian [] Caribbean [ ] Chinese [ ] ]
Page 1 of 13

Page 66



1

Annendix
What services are already working with the child / family? s
Name Agency Address Telephone
School name- | School/Nursery | Address 01895 1212 12
child 1
Nursery name- 01895 11 11 11
child 2
Dr name GP Address 01895 131313
School nurse | Health Address 01894 14 14 14
name-Child 1 visitor/School
Health visitor| ™" ° 01895 15 15 15
name-Child 2

Was this Assessment completed at the Team Around the Family Meeting?
Yes [] Nov”~
Date of TAF meeting

Has any other agency carried out an Early Help Assessment? If so please give details with
names of services and professionals involved

No

Has any other agency carried out any other assessments? ie social services, youth offending,
education reports? If yes please give details

No

What work has your or any other agency completed with the family?

Our Family Support Worker has supported the family in the past with
regards to housing.

Why has the early help assessment been started?

Parent/Carers views: Mum explained that she is worried Child 1 puts himself at
risk. He can explain the consequences for his actions but will still follow
through with the action. For instance he knows it is dangerous to play with
scissors but will continue to do so even when told not to. Compared to his
younger sibling, Child 1 does not follow instructions. He finds it very
difficult to concentrate and distracts himself away from the task he should
be doing. He uses his imagination to make up stories, sometimes to cover
up some wrong he has done e.g. he threw a teddy and some foam handles
from his bicycle on a neighbours’ roof. He told mum a bird had taken them
and flown away. At the time she was not sure what he was talking about
until she discovered the items on the roof. Mum is not sure whether he
does this on purpose or whether he cannot stop himself, she wants to
understand why he is making these choices.

Child/young persons views: Our family support worker has spoken with Child 1
to get his views. Child 1 said that he does not know why he acts this way
and does not understand why people get upset with him. Child 2 is too

young to give his views

Page 2 of 13
Page 67



Annendix
APpe

LA EFAN

Practitioners views:

Child 1 disclosed to a member of staff that he is hit with a running shoe if
mum gets cross with him. Also that this form of discipline is used on his
younger brother. When mum was asked (22/09/2014) about this she said
she does ‘tap’ him with her shoe when he does not follow instructions and
that she needs help with Child 1. When | met with mum the following day to
complete the assessment, she said that the incident had only happened
once and that it was a year ago. | spoke to social services for advice and
they suggested that an assessment was completed with the family to
identify the needs of the family.

In class, adults do find that they sometimes need to repeat instructions to
Child 1but he is able to follow them too. This was much more evident at the
start of term but since routines have been in place he has made
improvements. On occasions he will tidy the table and insists he should
continue with the task rather than join the other pupils on the carpet. He
will, when the instruction is repeated, join the carpet reluctantly. He can
use avoidance tactics to avoid completing work. He can be stubborn and
selective about what he listens to with regards to instructions.

Details of professional completing assessment

1

Name Role
Author Name School name
Address of School address
organisation
Contact Number 01895121212 | Email name@hillingdonschool.hgfl.
address
org
Page 3 of 13

Page 68




€T Jo i 93ed

‘wayy) yyim abebuad

0} J10JJd Uk Sayew ay punodJe ale
uaipjiyd 4ad3ainb uayp "uaipiyd
J9y3)o yyim buifeid sAolus

pue ajqeidos AIoA sI o "auly

aJe yybray pue 3ybrom s,z piyo

‘abe jooyas-aid sem

Y UdYyM UDAD [Ie}ap JO }O] B Y}Im
0Ss op p/nom pue buime.ip sayl|
oH ‘poob aue s|[I)S 10}ow dui-
ybrom Buisoj j|13s sem

ay Jnq papuswuwodal Junowe
9y} wily paj ays ples wnpy

‘pay Buraq sem ay junowe ayj
uonsanb pjnom iexyiom yjjeay ayj
Se SIy}) Jnoqe paLLIOM Sem wnj
‘Aqeq Aibuny e sem ay )nq Aqeq
e se jybram sapun sem L pjiyd
"yynay ayy buijjay s,ay

41 mouy 0} }InaiIp Si ) sAes wnw
‘@a10y9 buoim ay) apew sey ay
uaym Ajjersadss ‘ypnay ayy buijoe)
sploAe | pjiy9 jey) sAes wnpy
‘suoljsanb Bunyse

sAemje siI pue siayjo Jnoqe
aanisinbui AiaA si ap ‘suonsanb
woayj) syse pue siobuenys
soyoroidde ay se ajqeldoos

00} buraq se wiy saqlIdsap
wnyy ajqerd0s AidA sI oym pliyds
juspyuod ‘Addey e sy | pjiyo

yieay [elusw pue |eoisAyd

¢ PIyd

l PIlYD

P11y yoea 10} spaau jJuswdojanag

Page 69



€T Jo G 93ed

Aiasinu ui [jam Buiop
pue sauojsajiw siy bunoaw si

Z PIYD jey) pies sey iaxiom Aay
Aiasinu ayj ‘Aiasinu je s1 gz pliyd

yaiym sjidnd uayjo jo suoiysanb
ay} somsue [jim ay ‘dnoub buipea.
e ‘6 @ dnoub e yjm bunjiom

uaym jnq buiyjawos op j,ued ay
Aes suoIsesso uo |[IM aH 1d)a1s
e Se Yyans aApuadul ue uaaib

J1 abebua ||im )}nq Ajjesiwapese
buiyiom Jo anjea ay)

99S ),usaop aH "os buiop piore
SOWIpdWOS [[IM INq [[oMm pead

0} 9/qe sI oH -abeiare se Ajjiqe
S.L PlIYD SSasse p/nom [ooYIS

L PIYD

uaalb ues ays jioddns ayj uo
joedw ue aAey aiojoiday) pjnom
S1Y} ‘Jjasiay ynatyip bunlum pue
buipeal spuly ays paurejdxs wnjy
‘pusLy siy yyum

awioy s,pualiy idy je yiomawoy
op 0} L pJiyo 404 sI yuswasbuele
8yl ‘L plYo Sse sse|d awes

dY) Ul S1 UOS dSOYM SJdY JO pudliy
e yum jJuawoabuelie ue spew

sey wnjy ‘syiom Ajaieu siyj ynq
wiy yym uiebieq pjnom ays ‘oo}
buipeau siy yyum sajbbniys ays
"9)IIM ), ued 91 op ),ued ay sAes

us)jo ay shes ays ‘L plIyd Yim
yiomawoy op o} sa|bbniys wnpyy

uoneonpsg

Page 70



€T J0 9 23ed

‘djay Jo4 wnw 0} suin} pue }oeal
jJou s80p Z PIIYD ‘Wiy S}y pliyd
Jayjoue jI ;oremoy yoeq wiy sy
pue wiy syyy pjiyd uaym Ajuo
sjoeaJ 8 "suonenyis snosabuep
JO aieme aJow sI g pliyo

18y buibbeup ‘boaj 4oy Jjo

sbuey pue wue s,wnuw uo sjind
‘60 Aem umo si1y )ab jou saop

8y uaym [0JpU0I SIS0 ‘Ydoewols
ayj} ur wnw payosund sey s
puasaud buiaq soyjoiq

Jabuno/ jnoyjim uonuajye wiy
aAlb 0} Z pj1yd yym puads o) awipy
puly o3 3ndiyip si 31 sAes wnpy
"19Yy}o.1q 18bunoA spiemo} umoys
u2aq sey inoianeyaq jJus|oIA

awog “Jayjo.q i8bunoA je sbuiy)
smouy) ‘wiy wouy Aeme sAoj
9seyyealq siy buiye) ‘62 Aibue
wiy ayew o} ‘iayjo.q sobunoA

s1y josdn o} sbuiyj saop aH
‘snolias buiyjowos

auop s,ay uaym sybnej ay

sAes ays ‘sajiwis pue smouy ay
sAes ay ‘snosabuep sI inoireyaq
ay) yey) paurejdxa s,j1 uaym
‘wnw siy 1oj buniem ynoyim peou
ay) sso.uoe Buiuunu ‘b6 suonenyis
snoJabuep ul jjoswiy ynd saop ay
paurejdxa wnyy “syinpe buipnjoul
SJ19Y)o spaemoy bulied si | pjiyo

JuawdojaAep |einOIABYS(J pUE [BUOIIOWT

"WIOM
ay) a)ajdwoa 0} a|qe sI 8y smoys

Page 71



€T Jo £ 93ed

Apeal wiy j)ab o) buiAsy s1 wny
usym djay pue A jjim 3nq jjasuwily
ssaip o) bunoA 00} s1 g pjiys

pue aiay} sys ysnf ay ‘passaip
job 0} awi) buo| e saye} o

‘peou

ay) sso.Joe sunu ‘b suonenyis
snoJabuep ui jjesuwiy ynd

Sa0p L pjiyo ‘enoqe pauiejdxs Sy

SIS 218019

‘0S/e pajuasald-jjom pue ueaj|)

‘aualbAy yum swo|qo.d

ou YjIm uea|d ‘pajyusasaid
ApespN ‘wuoyiun jooyss

burLieam sAemje ‘pajyuasaid |jaM

uonejussald

‘abe s1y ualp|iyd
bunoA yyum buisijeroos sayi a4
‘'SI9Y)o ypim suoipoeayul sAolus

pue suoanjsul o) suajsi| ‘Ajiwey
oY) JO siaquidaw JdY)o YIm aul-

‘uoljuajje
a9y 1oj sem )1 3ybnoyy wnyy
‘uajsi| j,usaop ay Aym ains jou

sI1 ays fwnw o0} buipiosoe awoy
je auoAue wo.uy suonannsul

0} ud)si| j),usaop s "wiy doys
jou saop Ssiy) }nq asuanbasuod
oY) spuejsiapun ay ‘enissaibbe
aJow s| | p|iyo pasnou

sey Jayjowpueib paurejdxs wnpy

sdiysuonejai [e1oos pue Ajiwe

‘WwNWw woJuy SoA1899a.
¢ PIlYyQ uonuaye ayj pue iayjoiq
JabunoA siy jo snojeal s1 ay moys
0} Woaas saop (aAoqe paqliosap
se) unoineyaq siH ‘Addey sieadde
oym pjiyad yuspiyuod e sl | pjiyo

wawdojanap Aluap|

Page 72



€T Jo g 23ed

‘9jdoad mau sj)esw ay uaym
aoueinssead )das [|IMm pue wnuw
0} aAIsuodsau Ai1dA s1 g pliyH
‘Jlooyas wouy | pjiyd dn syaid ays
uaym g pjiyd pue wnuw yjim puoq
poob e uaas aAey jooyas ay|

‘urebe )1 saop jnq Ayybneu buiraq
4104 A1ios Aes Ajpuepsuod jjim

oy 9210Yy92 Buoim ay) sayew ay
uayp) ‘wnw sanoj ay sAes uayjo
‘awny ay} jje wnw sajppna | pjiyd

yiwiem |euonowg

‘Buljqis S1y Je Jno yse| Sawi}auios
[I1M L PJIYD JeY) POLLIOM S| BYS
Inq awoy je uaipjiyd ypoq uo afe
uo daay 0} }saq Jay saop wnyy

*19yj0.1q 49bunoA siy yum

Ao21u sAeyd ay xd2ayd 0} L plIY9
Ajjeroadsoa sAoq ay) uo afa ue
sdooy sAemje ays paulejdxa wnyy

Ayojes buunsug

L piyo Aq paqunysip si dasjs siy
pnq wdpQ’/ ye paq o} saob g pjiyo

Wiy pay j,usey wnw ey} ¥iom
wo.y suinjal ay usym Jayjej sjjal
‘ayeme jloswiy Bbuidasy ‘siayjo
pue jjaswiy spoensip ay ‘desjs
J,ueay ppyo "wdog:/-00:/ ye doays
0} uaJp|iys ay} }ab o} saLy wnyy

aJed olseq

¢ PIYD

l PIYO

PIIY2 yoes oj uonejaa ui Ayoedes (s)ualed ayj Jnoqy

‘Alaea Aiaa dn uaip|iyo

ay) sjob uayo wnw sueaw Yyarym
Jjosuwiy spaaj 0} Anoy ue saye)
pue pooy siy yjim Aejd saop ap
‘wiy abeianoosus 0}

wiy yjim sys wnpyy ‘pjoa s,ay *b-o
passaup }ob 0} Jou sasnoxa sanlb

Page 73



€T J0 6 23ed

Aigers

‘Aem

umo siy jab j,usaop ay JI puno.e
sbuly) smouy) pue sweaids

oH “49)e] urebe )1 saop jnq
salbojode ay ‘suiejdxe ays uaymp
‘dn

Apn ‘6@ op 0} wiy payse sey ays
jeym saop wnuw pue ase|d auo ul
Aejs 0} wiy syse wnuw ‘pPamojjoy
j.usey ay yaiym uoinoniysul

ue uaalb sey wnuw jJ Jnoawin)

e aAeY 0} Jleyd ay) uo }is o) wiy
S)yse ays 'suonanisul SMoj|oJ
uayj [/Im ay sawippwos pue
aiued | pjiyo sayew yaiym dn
pue}s uay) pue Lz ‘€ umopiunod
e soop ays paulejdxa wnyy

selepunoq pue soueping

‘bunyby dn pus Aay) se sAoq

ay} yyum aweb juiof Aeid jJou saop
wnyy uonuaje sy ioj bunyby
aJe Aay) 1onamoy ‘uaip|iyd

ay} yum Aejd o} saLiy wny

uone;nwinNg

Page 74



€T Jo 0T a3ed

‘paurejdxa wnw uaipjiyd ayj jo
juouy uj Jou ynq syuswoaibesip o)
buipea| ‘diysuonejai ,syuaied uo
joedwi saop aaeds bBuial pajiwi]
‘sieaA unoyj 1oj aiay) usaq

aney Ajiwey ayy ‘usyayy ayeledss
‘@asnoy ayj jo jied awes ay)

ul aJe eale wooupaq pue BuiAll
oy ‘poajuad Ajopeard s yaiym
jejj oipnys e ul aAll Ajjwej ay |

BuisnoH

‘SoAll S Allwey
ui1 yoeq Ajpuasau iaysis s.soupied
‘PoAJOAUI ) udle AWy S, soulied

Jayjow 4oy uo Ajal uey)

Joyjel djay s soupied yjim jjosiay
Aq sbuiy) jeap o3 siajaid wnpyy
"9 0} )|e} 0} spaau

wnuw J1 aanioddns si pue peou
9y} SS0.Uok SdAll Jayjowpue.ls)

yJomiau Ajiwies Japipn

‘SjuaAd albe.)
oM} asay) usamjpaq 6002 }snbny

ur uioq semip pjiyo "600¢ sunr ul
Jooued yyum Aeme passed sayjow

s.Jayje) pue 6002 1oquasa(
ui1 apI2INS 0} Jayjey 1dy }Soj wnyy

Buiuonouny pue Aiojsiy Ajjwe

€ PIYD

¢ PIYD

l PIlYO

PIIY2 yoea 10} S9ouUelswnaI0 Ajiwe) pue JuswuodiAug

Page 75



€TJO TT 93ed

19)ybnep

s.inoqybiau ay} yym sAejd

Z pilyd pue ajim s .anoqybiau

oY) Ssjoow uayjo wnyy ‘yno pasow
sey inoqybiau ay) asuis Japainb
S13] "a49Y} BulAj] [|13S SI d4IM S1Y
}nq }no paAow Mmou sey uew ay |
,‘urebe bunnoys

si1 siiepsdn uew ayj, ‘Aes

pinomi pjiyo -abenbue| peq pasn
pue ayim umo siy buiuajealy) sem
aAoqe paall oym inoqybiau p|O

uoneibajul |e1os

‘awoaul Juswalddns o) poaiodal
S1}1paid Xe) pue jiyauaq pjiyo
‘swajqoud

asnes o) buiie)s si yaiym
wajqoud buiiqueb e sey sayje4
10b6pnq pjoyasnoy ayj) sabeuew
wnw ‘yqgap awos Ss1 aidy|

‘Juda. pue s|[Iq J9A0I O} }IOM Bi}Xd
SO0p By ‘awn) [[ng SHIOM Jdy)e

awoou|

‘buiuap.ieb uo buiyiom ‘jooyss

u1 burieajunjoA Appuaiind si

pue 493junjoA saop ays “ualp|iyd
bunoA omy ypim jnatyip

spulj }nq 44om o} ayi| pjnom wnjy
owl ||nj SYI10M Jdyjej s,uaipjiy)

WswAodwg

Page 76



Appendix 1

What are the families’ goals? What outcomes are being sought?

o Would like to see changes in Child 1’s behaviour so that he listens to
instructions.

e He has a more caring and loving relationship with his younger
brother and does not seek to upset him.

e Improvements in his attitude to his learning, wanting to do his
homework and learning independently.

e Would like to see Child 1 making decisions where he does not put
himself in danger. He understands the risks and will act in a safe way.

« Housing does have an impact as the family are all in one room.

Plan of intervention for the family.

Child 1
e Child 1 to be taken to the GP for a referral to the Child Development
Centre
e Child 1 to be seen by school educational psychologist
e Team Around the Family Meeting to be arranged to consider housing,
discussion regarding child 1's behaviour and progress at school
sibling
Agencies to be invited to Team Around the Family meeting
e Class teacher
Pastoral support
School family support worker
School nurse
Health Visitor
Nursery
Families Information Service
Children’'s centre
Educational psychologist
Key working service

Child 2
e Team Around the Family to be arranged
e Discussion with nursery/Families Information service to ask whether
more nursery hours can be offered to family
e Health visitor to visit family prior to Team Around the Family meeting

Child 3 N/A

Page 12 of 13
Page 77



Appendix 1

Date of Review

Outcomes Achieved

Parent / child’s consent for information storage and information sharing

| understand the information that is recorded on this form and that it will be stored and used for the
purpose of providing services to:

X Me

<] Child or young person for whom | am a parent

[] Child or young person for whom | am a carer

| have had the reasons for information sharing explained to me and | understand those reasons

| agree to the sharing of information between the services listed below. | agree that information can be
shared between these agencies for the purpose of carrying out at assessment.

1. Education 3. Early intervention services

2. Housing 4. Health

Signed (child | Parents signature |Name | Parent 1 Example |Date | 01/11/14
or parent)

Signed by Author signature Name | Teacher name Date | 01/11/14
practitioner

Page 13 of 13
Page 78



| abed

9.4)ua9 s,uaip|iyd yJiomawoy
je sasse|o Aoeiayl| yaim uaipjiys djay
GL/€0/L0 wnpyy | | pue syjew pusje oy wnpy 0} pP3jj)s sjaa) wny
inoineyaq
S, L pPJIYd 404 uoseal
‘Jooyas jeaipaw e jou sj aidy)
}sibojoyafsq uil L pjIyd aAI8Sqo 0) ainsua o} pajajdwod
GL/LO/LE Jeuoiyeanpy jsibojoyafsd jeuoneonpy aJe S)UBWISSaSSY
uaipjiyd yjoq yym

saulpnoJ pue saLiepunoq dnoineyaq
Sjuaued yjoq uo sjuaied yjoq L pllyd abeuew o)
GL/€O0/LO pue iaxiom Aay Y}IM YI0M 0} ad)yiom Aoy pajqeus s|9a) sjualed
paso|d 6 ) £ ] , A Bunof (Awey
oeQ jusawwod B ssaiboid cuaym Ag ¢SIU} Op [I1M oyp uonoy uosiad BunoA ‘plIyo yum
paaibe se) awo9ojno paiisaqg
2
yL0c 1oquada( L ajep >>m._>mmU
o

ZL|  (shaquinn ssalppe [o0YydS
ZL 2L G68L0 | 1oeUOD sweu jooyos ssalppy

bio | yb

Yy-jooyasuopbuljjiy@sweu | jewg 494oea] | diysuonejay/Aousby 494Ied) SSe|H aweN
S|ie}ap |euolssajo.id peaT

abpLgxn
[Juioqun  [Jeewsd [ e gvL 84N | epooysod peoiy L ssaIppy

CL/L0/LL ajeq ang payewysy ¢ PIYO
60/80/8L | 10 yug jo 9jeq a|dwexg aweu Ajiwe4 L PIIYD (s)oweu uaaig

s|iejap |euosiad

VYH3 8jdwexa anoge ay} wol) uo Buimojjos uejd uonoe 4y e Jo ajdwexa ue si syl

ue|d Jy1 ojdwex3-om] xipuaddy




Apppndix 1

People present

Parents x 2

Child 1 (part of meeting)
Class teacher

Pastoral support

School family support worker
School nurse

Health Visitor

Nursery

Families Information Service
Children’'s centre
Educational psychologist
Key working service

Review delivery plan and update with any agreed further action
Next steps

Above plan put in place. Actions agreed at the meeting were:

School appointed as lead professional

Date of next meeting 02/03/2015 and will be held at the primary school

Child 1 to attend school homework club from 08/12/14

School to offer after school activities for child 1 in next school term.
Child 1 said he would like to attend the football club.

Key worker to meet with mum and family at home, date to be arranged
outside of meeting.

Educational psychologist to observe child 1 at school in January 2015
Child 2 will attend nursery 3 days a week from 05/01/2015 (Child in
Need funding in place until 31/03/15)

Mum to attend adult education classes to improve maths and English
skills at the children’s centre. The children's centre will offer child 2 a
place at the creche

Mum to attend P3 appointment at children’s centre regarding housing
advice on 10/12/15

A referral to the Child Development Centre has been made, parent s to
ensure that they take child 1 to the appointment

Can the TAF be

Yes [] Reason for closure |

closed? No [X Agreed review date [ 02/03/15 |

Review notes

Page 80




Appendix 1
Full notes removed to ensure case is kept anonymous.

Areas discussed:
e Parents views-What their expectations of the meeting are and what
they would like to happen
Child 1 behaviour at home
Child 2 behaviour at home
Child 1 behaviour at school
Child 2 behaviour at nursery
Academic progress of child 1 and child 2
Housing
Update from health visitor
Families Information Service offer regarding Child in Need Funding
After school activities
Homework/School Homework Club
Referral to Child Development Centre
Referral to Educational Psychologist
Update from school Family Support Worker
Key Working Service offer of working 1:1 with family in the home
Children's Centre offer of sessions at children's centre, adult education
classes and P3 housing advice

Child 1 brought in at end of meeting to express his view
Date of next meeting 02/03/2015 and will be held at the primary school
Actions agreed:

e Child 1 to attend school homework club from 08/12/14

e School to offer after school activities for child 1 in next school term.
Child 1 said he would like to attend the football club.

e Key worker to meet with mum and family at home, date to be arranged
outside of meeting.

e Educational psychologist to observe child 1 at school in January 2015

e Child 2 will attend nursery 3 days a week from 05/01/2015 (Child in
Need funding in place until 31/03/15)

e Mum to attend adult education classes to improve maths and English
skills at the children's centre. The children's centre will offer child 2 a
place at the créeche

e Mum to attend P3 appointment at children’s centre regarding housing
advice on 10/12/15

o A referral to the Child Development Centre has been made, parent s to
ensure that they take child 1 to the appointment

School teacher appointed as lead professional

Page 81




Apppndix 1
Child or young person’s comment on the review and actions identified

Child 1 was brought into the meeting by his mum and was initially shy. Due
to Child 1's young age he could not fully express himself. He said he liked
school and liked playing football. He said he had a best friend at school but
did not like X because he shouts all the time. (The school said they were
aware of this situation and are addressing this) Child 1 says that he
sometimes finds school hard and doesn't like writing or doing the work at
home. Child 1 was asked whether he would like to do some fun things after
school and he said he would like to play football.

Parent or carer’'s comment on the assessment and actions identified

Both parents said that they were "at the end of their tether" and did not
know what to do about child 1's behaviour. Mum said that she feels she is
not able to manage and finds it difficult. Mum says she does most of the
caring of the children as Dad is at work all day. The parents were asked
what their priorities for the meeting were and they said they want help with
Child's 1 behaviour, and want to know if there is something "wrong" with
him as they cannot see why he is acting the way he is. Both parents said
they would like to move as they are all living in a studio flat but they cannot
afford to pay any more rent for a bigger house. Mum said that she feels that
she never has any time to herself and would like some time to herself just to
get the house straight. Both parents agreed to the TAF plan and actions and
agreed to working with the TAF group and further meetings.

© Based on material copyright The Children’s Workforce Development Council, 2009. Originally produced by The
Department for Children, Schools and Families, 2006 www.ecm.gov.uk/caf

Page 82




Appendix Three-Early Help Assessment Audit Tool

Early Help Assessment audit tool

‘Child amd.young. pefson’

'characteristics. :

s badkgiousd and. -

Initials

EHA Date

ID Number

EHA Author

Age (years &
months)

EHA Agency

Ethnicity

Date of audit

Language(s)
(interpreter?)

Name of auditor

Religion
(practicing?)

Nationality

Immigration
status

Disability

SEN

Please use the following scoring criteria when assessing quality of process, intervention and outcomes:

Not completed/No = 0

Poor=1

Satisfactory = 2

Good =3

Section should have been completed
but was left empty

No evidence

Insufficient information

Unclear why being assessed or referred
Level of need inappropriate

Service involvement requested rather
than on outcomes

Brief comments but clearly
stated

Levels correct

Outcome focussed

Comments are clear and purposeful
and linked well to evidence

Levels correct and good evidence
Strong picture of outcomes needed

with appropriate action steps

Comments
1: Name of Family and Identifying Details (Plea_se n_ote: comments should |nclu_de ewfience of what |_s goo_d, Score
requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each
section)
1.1 Are the personal identifying details of the family
entered onto the Early Help Assessment?
(i.e. all area on page 2 of the EHA). If only partially
completed please put notes in comments
Comments
e . (Please note: comments should include evidence of what is good,
2: Existing services requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each Score
section)
2.1 Is this section fully completed and provide an
overview of existing or recently provided services clear?
Comments
(Please note: comments should include evidence of what is good,
3 : Reason for Assessment requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each Score
section)
3.1 Is this reason for assessment clear and do they reflect
the views of the family, Child/young person and
assessing agency?
Comments
s en s etk fOr T ation (Plea.se n.ote: comments should |nclu.de ewfience of what |.s goo.d, Seore
requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each
section)
4.1 Information sourced/evidenced
Developmental  |pased, non judgemental
ne_eds of each Strengths/position included
child
Parent/carer engagement in process
Child/young person engagement in
process or needs of child/young
person appropriately represented
42 Information sourced/evidenced
Parent/carer's based, non judgemental
capacity in relation | Strengths/position included
to each child .
Parent/carer engagement in process
Child/young person engagement in
process or needs of child/young
person appropriately represented
4.3 En\(ironment Information sourced/evidenced
and family based, non judgemental
circumstances for
each child Strengths/position included
Parent/carer engagement in process
Child/young person engagement in
process or needs of child/young
person appropriately represented
4.4 Are the views of the family, including child/young
person, included in the assessment?
Comments
5 Families goals (Please note: comments should include evidence of what is good, s
: g requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each Coroj
section)
5.1 Are the outcomes being sought by the family clearly
identified?
Comments
6: Conclusions, solutions and actions (Plea_se n_ote: comments should |nclu_de ewfience of what |_s goo_d, Score
requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each
section)
6.1 Is the plan of Intervention Smart (Specific,
Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, Timely)
6.2 Does the EHA plan include calling a TAF meeting?
6.3 Is there a date to review the plan?
6.4 Have the outcomes been achieved and evidenced?
Comments
7.c ¢ (Please note: comments should include evidence of what is good,
Gonsen requires improvement and also learning points that are evident in each Score
section)
7.1 Has the consent section (page 8) been fully
completed?
Total Score

Page 83

Appendix 1



sdajs uonoe ajelidoidde
Y}IM papasau sawoodino

Jo ainjoid Buons
9ouUapInd

poob pue 3994109 S|9AdT]
92UdpIAD 0)

lIoM payul| pue [njasodind
pue Jea|d ale sjusawwo’)

passno0} awo23nQ
1091109 S|9AdT
pajejs Ajaea|d jng sjuaWIWIOD Jaug

sawoo)no

uo uey} Jdyjes pajsanbau
JUBWAA|OAUI DIAIDS
9jelidoiddeul pasu jo |9A87
patiajal 10

passasse buiaq Aym sesjoun

uoljew.ojul Jualdyynsul
92UdpIAd ON

Adwa 3J9] sem Inq pajajdwod
uaaq aAey p|NOYS Uo1}09g

€ = poo9

Z = Aojoeysnieg

] =100d

0 = ON/p9®)9|dwod JON

:S9LWI02}NO0 pue uoljuaAIalul ‘ssadold Jo AJjenb Buissasse uaym el Bulioos Buimo|jos ay} asn asea|d

Jojipne Jo aweN

Jipne jo ajeq

Kouaby YH3

Joyiny vH3

9)eg YH3

|oo] }ipny ueld 4y ]-ino4 xipuaddy

N3S

Ajnigesig

snje}s uolelBiwiw]

AyijeuoneN

(¢ bulonoead) uoibijoy

(¢ 19324daa3ul) (s)abenbue]

JSTETVIVIE]

(syjuow g sueah) aby

JlaquinN ai

sjeniu]

|oo} yipne ueid Jv1

Page 84



¢ pajulodde usaq
|leuoissajoid pesjeseH 9’|

¢ PBIBAIIBp Usa(Q Sey SuoluaAla)Ul
Jey) souspIAG BJaYl S|  G'|

¢ paplooal smalA s,uosiad
BunoA/pjiyo/siualed ayjaiy L

¢ pabuelie usaq Bunssw
4dv1lxauayjlojalepeseq ¢'|

(e1geandde j1) ¢ pomalnal
usaq ueld 4yl 9yiseH 2L

¢(punog swi] pue oisijeay
‘a|geAsIydy ‘B|qeinsesiy ‘Ou10ads)
LYVINS ueld dy i auis| L'}

2loog

(uonoas yoes
ul JUaplIAa aue jey) syulod Buluies] osje pue Juawasoiduwi salinbau
‘poob si Jeym JO 32UBPIAS dpPN|IUl P|NOYS SIUSWWOI 90U 3sed|d)

sjuswwo)

Bunessw 4y :})

Page 85



XO0(Q Ssjuawwiod
ul 8J0u ase9|d-1dyl0Q 9'¢

juswabebua
uou 0} 8np paso|D G2

X0(Q Sjusalwod
Ul 9jou asea|d-sadIAIeS
|esJaAlun 0} umop dals 2

X0Q SJUSWWOD
u1 8)ou asea|d-aoIAles
¥/€ 431} JI8Y}0 O] pajeledsy ¢°¢

2Jed |elo0s
S,ualp|iyd O} paje|edsy ¢'¢

18W Ajiwey 4o SSWodIN0 ||V |'Z

_m._oom jejol

Page 86



Appendix 1
Appendix Five-Outcome Wheel

Name of Family :

Developmental needs:
Date Profile Completed:

How is the child developing in these areas?

Family i Physical
Relationshipsg Health
" Emotional

Wider Social*, Well being

“Relationships °,

Self Care °
Skills

Education

Personal
Aspirations

Emotional
Development

Behaviour
Development

Identity
Development

Emotional
Warmth

: Social
"/ Integration

'_,..»"""étimulation Employment /

Income

Guidance

and Housing
Boundaries; Stability in Wider
" Home life Family
Network

Parents Capacity :
Are the parents able/ equipped to provide the
following :

Family Circumstances:
How do these external factors help the child to develop?

Key

1: Significant concerns - must improve

2. Quite concerned - lets work hard at improving this
3. Not great - need to do something

4. OK - may not be too serious but could be better

5. Great - a real strength

Page 87



Appendix Six-Parent evaluation form

LONDON

FAMILY KEYWORKING SERVICE (TAF)

Post Intervention Parent/Carers Evaluation Form

Appendix 1

Family Key Working Service (FKWS) wants to know what you thought of the service we
provided and how we can improve our service. The information you give us will help us to

do this.

-
Your Name:

Date:

L Lead Professionals name:

Not at all Somewhat

Very much

1. Are things better for
your family now? 1

2 3

5

2. Have you achieved
the outcomes of the 1
Team Around the

Family (TAF) plan?

Please tell us what you found useful?

3.Do you feel your views
were taken into account?

Yes

No

4. Has the TAF
process enabled you to
access other services?

Yes

No

5. How satisfied are Not at all Somewhat

you with the TAF

Very much

process?

Pagé 88



Appendix

Please describe what parts of the process you found most helpful

6. Do you feel
confident your family
can continue with
progress made?

Not at all Somewhat

Very much

1 2 3

4 )

7. How can we
improve the TAF
process?

Please write your answer here:

Total Score=

Thank You for taking the time to tell us what you think, this information will help us

o ©

improve our service — |

Page 89




Appendix 1
Appendix Seven-Young person

feedback form

LONDON

FAMILY KEY WORKING SERVICE TAF PROCESS
YOUNG PERSON FEEDBACK FORM

1. How do you feel about the support the Team Around the Family (TAF) offered

you.......>
Confused, hored, disappointed, angry! Not sure, could he hetter or worse ! Happy, excited, Listen to!

( 00

|
50/50
vv vw
@ Y vyvww Y 'VVvv@
1 2 3 4 9
2. Do you feel you were able to have your say and listened to a

90/30

|
@'vv'Vvvv"'v'VVvv@

1 2 3 4

Page 90



Appendix 1

3. Do you feel the TAF meetings helped you....................... 9

P 00
N’

50/50
v
@' V'Vvvv"'v'VVvv@
1 2 3 a4 ]
4. How can we improve how we work with young people 9
« Add your own words here
Total score =

Thank You for taking the time to tell us what you think, this information will

help us improve our service for young people ___d

Page 9%



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



A guide to the
Early Help Assessment and
Team Around the Family

THILLINGDON

LONDON www.hillingdon.gov.uk

‘ 11854 Team around the family A5.indd 1 24/04/2014 10:27‘

Page 93



Appendix 2

What is an Early Help

Assessment?

Many families, at one time or another, need extra support. An Early
Help Assessment is about ensuring that you and your family receive
the right support at the right time from the right professionals.

The assessment is completed with you to identify what assistance
you and your family need and what to do next. Once an assessment
iIs completed, the person completing the assessment may be able to
help you themselves or may refer you to another service. In some
cases, it may be more appropriate for a Team Around the Family
meeting to be arranged.

What does Team Around the Family

mean for me and my family?

The Team Around the Family is just that - a group of professionals
that will meet with you and your family to identify how they can best
work together to support you to overcome your difficulties. You will
probably know most of the people at the meeting but, with your
agreement, new people may be invited to offer your family additional
support and assistance.

Those invited to the meeting could include children’s centre workers,
health visitors, school nurses, teachers, housing staff and workers
from voluntary agencies.

At the meeting, you and the team will put in place a plan that is based
on the needs identified in the Early Help Assessment and it will include
actions for the professionals and for you and your family.

11854 Team around the family A5.indd 2 24/04/2014 10:27

Page 94



Appendix 2

To ensure the meeting is co-ordinated and you have a person to
contact if you have any queries, a lead professional is appointed at
the first meeting. The role of the lead professional is to:

e act as a single point of contact for your family and a sounding
board for you to ask questions and discuss concerns

e co-ordinate the delivery of the actions agreed by the practitioners
involved in the Team Around the Family process

e reduce overlap and inconsistency in services.
You will have a say on who the lead professional is. To ensure it is

working, the plan is reviewed at a further Team Around the Family
meeting.

Do | have to attend the meeting and

do my children have to attend?

As a parent or carer, you have to agree for the meeting to take place
and, for the process to work, you need to be part of the meeting
because you know your family best. In most cases, we would like the
children to attend at least part of the meeting so they can have their
say too, but we recognise there may be occasions when this may not
be possible; for example, with very young children.

You give consent as to which agencies are given copies of the Early
Help Assessment and minutes from the Team Around the Family
meeting. Your information will be held securely and be read by the
agencies you give consent to.

For more information, contact:
TAF Co-ordinator

) 01895 556144

@) taf@hillingdon.gov.uk

11854 Team around the family A5.indd 3 24/04/2014 10:27

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



/6 9bed

Universal

Early Intervention Inter-face with Social Care

Promotion of and support for the Lead
Professional role and use of Early Help
Assessment and Team Around the Family

Appendix 3

i i process 0 . .
Com m U n |ty SerVICeS Young People’s Social Youth Justice
| / Work Team
- System
Children In Care
Contact } _______ Social Work Team
Triage MASH d \ il o
\
[ % Permanency
s N [ ’
5-19 Healthy Child Programme l (" - .
I Referral Assessment Early Intewent]on Serv.1ces
School Nurses I Yguth Offending Service
| N Service Manager: Lynn Hawes
\_ <Z I AN | | \.
( ) N | | |
0-5 Healthy Child Programme | S | |
AN
Health Visitors |_ __________ Early In.terventlon Serv1ces Case || Operations Operations Operations
L ) Allocation and Tracking Process Team Team Team
[ I |
( ) (
Early Intervention Services Early Intervention Services Early Intervention Services
Child and Family Development Services |—— Key-working Service Targeted Programmes
Service Manager: Claire Fry Service Manager: Debbie Bell Service Manager: Chris Scott
. J \_
[ [ [ | [
N N 4 N A 4 A 4 N N\ | N [
Programme
Early Years and Early Years and T T T T P Co-ordinator Coordinator Coordinator Coordinator
Children’s Centre Children’s Centre eam eam eam eam
\ '\ J \ J \ | N\l | O\ | /L |
—— —
( N [ 7\ ( 7\ ( N [ N N
) )
. , A Prevention Prevention Intensive Participation Programme | | Programme | | Programme | | Programme
Children’s Centre Uxbridge Early Team 1 Team 2 Early Team Team Coordinator Coordinator Coordinator Coordinator
Hub Manager Years and Intervention
Children’s Centre Officer
\§ '\ \§ J \ | N\l | O\ | /L
\ ), \ ) 4 N N [ A
‘ ‘ ‘ Department
Clinical for Work and Programme Programme Programme
Bglmore’ Barra Ha}l prley’ Externally Psychologist Team Around | | Team Around Pepsions Coordinator Coordinator Coordinator
Children’s Children’s Children’s Commissioned the Family the Family Advisers x 2
Centre Centre Centre

Children’s x 12

Coordinator

Coordinator

G AN J




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98



Appendix 4

Examples of Early Help in Practice

Biography of family

Mother
Child 1- male aged 6
Child 2 - female aged 2

Family at time of EHA living in B&B outside of Hillingdon
Child 1 attends a primary school in Hillingdon
Child 2 attends a nursery and children's centre in Hillingdon

EHA completed by children's centre

Presenting issues

e Family in temporary accommodation out of borough

e Child 1 has ASD and accommodation is impacting on behaviour and school
attendance

e Child 2 is not toilet trained

e Mother cannot implement routines and boundaries due to problems with
accommodation

e Child 1 cannot access health provision in Hillingdon at current time due to living out
of borough

Team Around the Family (TAF) membership-February 2015

Initial TAF meeting:
Mother

Primary school
Nursery

Children's centre
Educational Psychologist
Health Visitor
Occupational Therapist
Housing

Key working service
TAF Co-ordinator

Appointed lead professional
Children's centre

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 99



Appendix 4

QOutcomes

Family were moved into Hillingdon area by housing

Child 1 school attendance has improved

Child 1 is accessing health provision in school and at Hillingdon Hospital

Child 1 behaviour has improved and mother has attended parenting courses to improve
parenting skills

Family are working within a universal setting and do not need additional support

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 100



THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY HELP TO PROMOTE
POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES

WITNESS SUBMISSION

Name: Dr. Steve Hajioff
Role: Director of Public Health, Hillingdon
Organisation: LBH

In 2014 Hillingdon as part of the Core Offer by Public Health to the Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG), Public Health was tasked to complete a Children and Young People's
Needs Assessment. This would look at all health issues from conception through to age
19.

The aims of the Needs Assessment for Children and Young People in Hillingdon were to:

e Collate available data and information on the health and well-being of
children and young people in Hillingdon, using national and local
sources of information and local views and knowledge;

e Use this information to draw conclusions about the current needs of
children and young people in Hillingdon;

e Make recommendations to NHS commissioners and providers of
services on actions required locally to improve the health and wellbeing
of Children and Young people.

The needs assessment was produced by Public Health on behalf of both LBH and
Hillingdon CCG. The content for the assessment was discussed with stakeholders during
preparation and the final draft was shared with the Children's Trust Board in July 2014.

The assessment also reviewed where services provided by LBH and Hillingdon CCG had
evidence of the 'Voice of Young People' to highlight where services were using the felt and
expressed needs of children and young people to shape services. Information was
included here if the methodology of the consultation appeared to have been:

e Reasonably robust and findings have been clearly reported.

e The information came from young people themselves rather than service
providers.

e A significant number of children and young people (around a hundred or more)
were involved.

¢ the information related to their needs and perceptions of services

A number of other pieces of work were also identified but are not included here because
they did not meet these criteria, for example they may have been primarily service
evaluations or reports on activity, or involved a smaller number of children and young
people.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 101



The key findings from this needs assessment have been published as 'The Children and
Young People's Needs Assessment' in August 2015 by the Performance and Intelligence
Team.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 102



Agenda ltem 6

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CARE SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT

Contact Officer: Vince Clark
Telephone: 01895 250498

REASON FOR ITEM

This report aims to provide a summary of the status of the CYPS Service Improvement
Plan as of September 2015. The Plan gives an overview of all of the key areas of activity
and details of the current stage of improvement work within Children and Young People
Social Care. Within the context of the Department’s overall plan, this paper sets out
progress against each work stream and our performance measures at 6 months.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

It is recommended that the Committee notes the development of the Service Improvement
Plan and progress undertaken to date, and comments as appropriate on the direction of
travel and pace of improvements within the service.

INFORMATION
Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan

1. In March 2015 the Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan (SIP) was
developed using the Transformation Children's Pathway work streams. The SIP
acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for children within
Hillingdon. It enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted
Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and
built upon. There are 7 work streams which contain performance measures,
milestones and key targets for each area of the Service, they are:

i.  Workforce Development;
ii. Improving Triage, MASH and Referrals & Assessment;
iii.  Improving social work practice within the Children’s Social Work Teams;
iv.  Improving outcomes for Looked After Children & Young People;
v. Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision;
vi. Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements; and
vii.  Effective Quality Assurance.

2. Each work stream has an Action Plan which contains the details of our progress
against our performance milestones and targets. The Action Plan is a 'live’
document and due to the dynamic nature of the Service the Plan is updated on an
ongoing basis. Following the Committee meeting in July 2015, Members requested
greater transparency and a clearer audit trail surrounding changes made to the
Plan. This request have been accommodated in the Action Plans which are being

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 103



presented today (please refer to Appendix 3). The plan in now supported by a
dedicated project manager who coordinates the monitoring of the plan and provides
an independent challenge to the Service to provide evidence of progress against
each of the actions. The Committee will also note that there is now a summary
graph which illustrates the number of COMPLETED, IN PROGRESS or STATIC
actions by work stream, for easier and more effective monitoring of actions. The
action plan is reviewed and monitored regularly by the Assistant Director, Children's
Social Care and by the Director and the senior management team (SMT).

3. To improve the visibility and monitoring of our actions against key targets, the
following changes have been made to the Action Plans, they are:

e The order and titles of columns: "Performance Measures and Milestones",
"Key targets" and "Progress - Actions" has changed slightly so that the
information between the assigned action and its status i.e. what we are doing
and where we are, flows better to tell the story of improvement;

e The "Status" column is new. It contains three options to inform the service
and the Committee about whether an action is COMPLETED, IN
PROGRESS or STATIC. A red, amber, green (RAG) rating has been applied
for easier identification and more effective and informed monitoring against
each action;

e The "Changes post July 2016" column is also new and aims to inform the
Committee of any changes that may have taken place since the last Plan
was presented to them in July 2015. This column aims to clearly explain the
justification and rational for any changes that may have occurred;

e At the bottom of each work stream there is now a box which contains a
summary of each COMPLETED, IN PROGRESS or STATIC action (by
number and as a percentage of the total actions);

e Any actions which have been fully COMPLETED i.e. where no further
progress is required are recorded in the "Retired Actions" box. This is
applicable for work streams 1, 2, 5 and 6; and

e Where actions are STATIC or in danger of not meeting their deadline these
are being pulled into our risk register which are being monitored more closely
(by Service Managers and SMT) with mitigating and remedial actions in
place to ensure they get back on track.

4. The graph shows that steady progress is being made against all 52 actions in the
Plan, with 25 actions COMPLETED, 27 actions IN PROGRESS and 0 are STATIC.
We are meeting with Service Managers on a monthly basis to update, challenge
and track progress against the Plan on a regular basis.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 104



5. In Quarter 3 we are developing a work stream for the Early Intervention Service
which we will present to the Committee at the next quarterly update which is due in
February 2016.

SIP 6 Month Progress Update

6. The service has continued to make steady progress from the last period of
reporting. Although high percentages of interim staffing are still used, turnover is
low and significant progress has been made in the recruitment of permanent Team
Mangers and Service Managers. A national recruitment process is now underway to
recruit permanent social workers into the service over the autumn. The demand and
through-put of work into the service has remained relatively high and this has
resulted in higher number of children subject to a child protection (CP) plan.
However Looked After Children (LAC) numbers have remained relatively stable. All
statutory CP and LAC cases are allocated and social workers caseloads have
remained stable with an average of 16 per worker. This compares favourably to
other London Boroughs and will be a main 'selling point' in our recruitment process.

7. To provide a more detailed overview of the progress each of the 7 work streams in
the SIP contains a measurement of progress at 6 months and at 12 months.
Attached to this paper is a graph which contains our progress against these
measures at 6 months. The graph follows the same principles as the Action Plan
i.e. progress is measured against a RAG rating which highlights whether an action
is COMPLETED, IN PROGRESS or STATIC. Detailed narrative concerning
progress against each outcome can be found in Appendix 4.

8. From the graph we can see that out of 57 projected outcomes, 34 are
COMPLETED, 23 are IN PROGRESS and 0 are STATIC. Progress against these
measures is also discussed with Service Managers and is being scrutinised and
tracked on a regular basis. In April 2016, we will report back to the Committee about
progress against the 12 month measures.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Graph depicting progress against Children's Social Care Improvement Action Plan
2015/16 (Appendix 1).

2. Graph depicting 6 month progress against Children's Social Care Improvement Plan
2015/16 performance measures (Appendix 2).

3. Children's Social Care Improvement Action Plan 2015/16 (Appendix 3).

4. London Borough of Hillingdon Children's Social Care Improvement Plan 2015/16

(Appendix 4).
5. Glossary (Appendix 5).

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Completed Static  Total Actions

I

(]

0

Status of Actions by Work Stream

WS WS 2 WS 3

WS 4

Work stream

Page 107

WS 5

WS B WST

Appendix 1

I Completed
In progress

B sStatic



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Completed Static Total Actions .
5 Appendix 2

12

5
14

SIP: 6 Month Status Update by Work Stream

10 I Completed

In progress
2.5 ‘ I | ‘
0 I I
WS 1 WS 2 WS 3 WS 4 WS 5 WS 6 WS 7

Il Static
Work stream

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



|ejoL

%0

%y

%95

obejusolad

onels

ssaiboud u|

pojojdwo)

JaquinN

91/510Z 10§ SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

*,uopbBul||iH Je 1ea.ed [euolssajold *0}0 HJoddns ‘yiom gOd ‘uoisinadns
InoA mouB, 0} S19xJ0M [eID0S B)IAUI [|IM BM pue ubledwes Juswyinioal ayy ul abessaw 1o soed 8y} Ul pauleU0D UoKeue|dXT "99E(dM}IOM USSOYD
iynm Juswdojeaap [euoissajoid pue uoissaiboid Jopea] H Buuapisuoo syueoldde usym aouepinb
paje|dwon 128180 BuluEp AlE8|0 padojaAsp usaq Sey ajljold Of JeXIOA [BIDOS Mau /| 8y} Aq pasibe ueid uonisuel] [jun pjoy uQ MH Aq 091 5102/20/10 | SL0Z/¥0/1L.0 NH pUE UONEWLIOJUI JUBABIS] [[B UIR}UOD O} syoed jueolddy| z'1
‘lounog ay)
SS0JOB JUBW]INIDBI JBYJO 10} PASN 8] JaJe| ||IM YdIYm 8}s-0101W, Jo [epod jusw)inioal
M3U B UO P3JESIUNWILLOD 8 ||IM SIU| "Uolelaunwal aAlnadwod pue [apow
KiaNijap ‘uonoalIp ‘s9s5900NS 19MI0AA [BIOOS B JO 9]0d 8 JO suoneoadxe
B Buuad yum dojanap |im am Ajleniu] - puelq yuswAhojdws, s,j1ouno) ay) buidojersp pue Jayjo ues uopbuljiH yeym jo Buipuejsiepun poob
suopoe asay] [IEIEITIEY  uo Buissnoo "Bunaylew Juswyinioal ul asijeloads oym euuad YIm pjay sbuiaspy| "auijuo pue pajepdn ayisqam g10g 1des Ag Jeuonouny ayisqem maN | 91.02/€0/L0 | SL0Z/¥0/L0 MH e aAeY 0} sjueoljdde aAijoadsold ajgeus o} ayisqam ajepdn| L)
A
i | smeis suopoy - ssaiboid sjebuey Koyl pUE SeInseop soueuiiopag | 212 PUS | eleq uels pea uopoy so
SuondYy painay
siebeuew
118y} yum sueld yuswdojensp Juswebeuew s)e|dwod o) siebeuey Jolusg |y -
$90.N0Sal S,ualp|IyD
w;wmm_._m_)_ wesa] Jo yoyod 2 >U_._w_._m_.r_‘_wn_ .O_O av vavd / Em_a ~E®EQO_w>wU Jiayj ut Uwumhoahooc_ wo:mE;_Oth
jJuauewlad ay} JO JuSW)INIOAI |NJSSa0NS BUIMO|0} ‘{ JOUENTD Ul BOUSWILLOD [|[IM uoissalboud Jeaieo pue| ueid yuswdojansp juswabeuew pue 10 sainseaw Jesjd ynm sonoeid Jjeyy poddns o) siebeuew ™
lssa4boad uj| pue siebeuew ||e Joj pauoissiwWwo usaq sey Bujuies) Juswdojensp Juswabeuely -|  poddns jo ueld Jesjo e aaey siebeuew ||y e aney 0} siebeuew Jo %001 | 9L02/#0/L0 | §102/¥0/L0 | Buipsenbajes s,uaipiyp av Jle Joj paje|dwoo aq 0} uejd Juswdojonap juswabeue Y5 L
(yusuewiad \n
10 AousBe) yuswAojdwa Jo syeaM OM} }SIlf BY) ULl Buiures) pue uoponpul uone|dwod %00} Sayoeal yavd ‘ueld uonoe SIy} Yyym aul| Ul ®
VaVd Penisoal aaey siebeuew Buisivedns jey aansus o} siebeuepy Joluss |y - ajo1 Aq sanuoud pajoadxe aney $90N0Sal s,Ualp|iyd Spaau asay) }asw
‘Jjo paubis usaq aAey S,yavd [II!M yolym ‘eoed ul yavd e aney » Aousuewiad Q1D Qv 0} ue|d yuswdojansp ] HYINS e Buiney pue spasu Buluses| (@)
5102 JeU} 2INSUS 0} UsyeHapun aJe s¥oayJ |Wes) s ajdoad BunoA g uaipiyd pue Buiyuapi ‘1ex10m ay} Jo saonoeld JuaLind Buikyjuapl ©
Issaaboad U]  19qo}0Q Jo pus By} Ag MalAaI YOV Yiuow g ay) 8)9|dwiod o) aoe|d Ul aJe suejd - JJE)S || 0} Jno pajjol aq 0} sjebie) yavd oy} u1 yess [1e 510z Aew Ag| 9102/40/10 | S102/¢0/1L0 | BuipienBajes s,.uaipiyD ay|  urisngol si pue awy uo uoie|dwod %001 seyoeal vavd gL
(yusuewdad 1o
Kouabe) yuawiAo|dwa Jo s3aaM OM} JSIl} Y} UIyIm Buluies} pue uononpul uoisiaadns
panisoal aney siebeuew Buisinedns jey; ainsus o} siebeuepy Joluss |y -
Koljod
uoisinadng s,uopBulliH yim aulf ul Jjes o} uoisiazadns apinoid o) siebeuew ||y - $90Nn0Sal s,Ualp|Iyd sanss| Aousjadwiod yym Buijesp ul
® Aouauewuad ‘QID Qv [Isngous pue Jes|d aq o} sassado.d Juswabeuew souewlopad
sypne aopjoeud Jejnbas Aq pajuswalddns si )| "SJAD SS0Ioe pajuswalduul uolsialadns Jo Asaijep pue pue Buipiooas Buipnjoul ‘AiaAijap pue souerdwod
lssaaboad uj| pue padojansp uaaq sey 0o} Jipne pue Buuojuow uoisiAladns aAlsusyaIdwod v - ay) 510z 1d9S | 5102/¥0/L0 | BuipsenBajes s,uaipiyd Ay %001 2INSU3 0} PapPaqa 8q 0} S2INJONJS U adng| /'L
swwesboud Juawynioal ay) jo Yed se dV Pue MS ‘MSON| Aemeuied Jsaies e aney sjsod spaau [enpiAipul Buipoddns si ainjonss
SBETLINTYY pajuswaldwi pue padojarap usaq aaey sjsod pajebie) Joj Aemyjed Joaied mau ay] | Joj uondsuosap qol pue ajyoid gol pamauay >Jom [eroos Jeuoissajoud |1y |1 Ag Ogl|ar14q 0gl asi J99JeD 9INSUL 0) PAPPaguIa 3q 0} ABMUJEd HIOM [BI0S| 9'L
90.10pJoM
a|ge)s e ajeaud pue siabeuew ainjny moib o}
Ayunpoddo Buneaso pue ‘uopbulliy ul sysod Buikyienb wey-6uo| uopbul|liH Ul UlewWal 0} SISYIOM
JSAV/| Joxi0om [eoos yusuewsad dn Buiye} SMSON| Joue sieak g ‘sisod yiom |e1oos
pajajdwo 0} Hoddns Jo Jayjo paoueyua pue palpow e sepnjoul awwelboid uononpul ay] ul Buninsal swiweiboid JASY plepuels ybiH Ul ulewal s ASON 4O %00L| Bulob-uo | 51L0z/50/5L asi pue SpIEpUE)S JB8jd UM ‘pappaquia aq 0} Joddns ISAY| S'1
SI9RIOM
|e1o0s jJuapnjs Jo Jjeys Aousabe Jay)ie usaqg aAey papusye aAey jey) sajebsjep
|le ‘8}ep 0 "SUUOW € }SE| BY} JOAO pasealoul sey sajebajap Jo Jaquinu ay] -
abpajmouy|
awwelboid ay) ojuo yejs Bunsixa Buijooq siebeue|y wol 1o ssad0id wio 118y} ayepdn 0} uononpul Jaysaljal e BulAledal Je)js Jualnd
siauelS MaN ay} ybnouyy puaye o} sejebajap sjoadxs / Sa)AUI pUe Yuow Alans swwielboud uononpul y)Im aoueldwod %001 aAsIyoe 0} pue ‘aonoeld piepuels
SETLINT s Isuni swwelboid ay| "G 0g Alenuer ul payoune| sem swwelboid uononpul Aep ¢ v - PajoNpul JJe)s || POPUS)E SI9MIOM Mau Jo %00L| BuloB-up | 510z/10/L0 asi SE pappaquia aq 0} JoyJom mau AI1aAa 1oy sseooud uononpuj| 'L
2INJONI)S MaU 8y} 0} pa}inIoal JaBeUB|\ 80IAI8S | pue siebeuepy wes] Z| -
GL0Z 18g0J00 Ul JN0 Paxy00|q S9INPaYds MalAslu| ‘sjsod
Ainp Aq 3sod om |eroos wuad ||e 1oy 1das yigz q/m Aemiapun ubledwed juswinioal Jusuewlad -
ul Em{o>>
1005 I0M]BU JUSW}INIDDI SESSIONO PaJeIIPap B
j0 EmEm_ano BABY OYM TDH PUE ‘M Y} Ul JusLW)INIoal 3IOM [EIO0S Ul asljeroads oym ‘Alenjoueg
|In4, wouy 9sn 0} Ue|d "SJaYJom [eID0S 0} JaYjo s,Jlouno ay) buioddns |je Juswdojensp 90IAJ9S BY} UIYYIM Jusuewad o} %G8
pabueyo sey Jeuoissajoid panuiuod 0} JUBSWIWWOD B PUB UOEeIduNwWal dAedwod ‘speojased| sijoble] 9dI1AIaS dy} UIYIM SI9NIOM [el00S Jopea] ued juswanoidwi 8Y} Y)im dul| Ul DIAISS dY} JO
1obie] Aeyj(ssaiboud uj| pabeuew ‘uonoailp JESJO YIM }INIDBI O} YoIym woly aoeld Jayaq e ul si ounod 8yl -|  AousBe o) Jusuewuad o oljes ayy arosdwij| oy} Aq paaibe ueld uonisuel] | 9102/€0/L0 | §102/S0/L0 HH Spasu 8y} 193w 0} A1aAIjap 0} yBnoy) sseoold Juswyinioay| €|
s1oz Aine - Sauo}sa|iN
jsod sabueyd snjejs suonay - ssaiboig sjobue] Aoy pue saInseajy soUBWLION3d ajeq pu3 | 9jeq ueis pea uonoy 19y

€ Xipuaddy

91/510Z Ue|d UOROY Judawancidwi aieJ [e100g S,udIpliyd

juawdojaAag 92JOPMOM | WEIISHIOM




€T
SEM JJ SNOIABIH

(ueid

snolnaud ayy

u| syobie} ou a1om
aI9y}) MauU aJe
sjebie] Aoy 2

2'Z sem
J81'SNOIABId “|

ue|d 8y} ul Ja)aq

Sem Jai snolnald [ssasboad uj

Keyiuig eyl -z

*Joyesedwod
|euoneu ou
s1 a4y} asnedsaq

L uonoag, pue
,uonendod JAD
83 J0 0000} L,

40.,0000L00°01.
SOUO}S9|IN 8
ainses|\ Jad '| DB 1115
910z Ainp
3sod sabueyn

ssaiboad uj

smeig

shep G| uiyim Odol JO %/8 -
juswssasse Jad skep
0€ Jo abelane Ue yim Xew SAEP Gy UIYJIM SJUSLUSSOSSE JO %/6 - “(Remyyeq
S,UaIplyD 40 Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuanisyul Alie3) stiom sbuipsssoid
$Oa 2y} yum sbunesw Buuojuow souewiopad Aapenb -a1d pue Buluueld |ebs| uo snooy Jeso e yym ‘Aousuewad o} *SUJUOW Q IO} 3HIOM [EID0S AIOIN)E)S O} PaLIS)aI-al Jou
ale aJay) ‘Joyund "eonoeud Jo Ajijenb sy ise) Jebeuely saxeAys| Buluueld aieo [e100s 0} [eaiajau wol) yiom Jo Indybnoiyy panosdwi -|  pue ao1nIes Alojnie)s e aaleoal Jabuoj ou saljiwe) % -
pue Jobeuely 901AI8S ‘10}0a.IQ JUBISISSY U} a1aym Bunassw
sanss| pue ysu Appybiupo ‘sbuiesw aonoelid Apjeam ale a1ay] - *S9[BISAWI} UIY)IM 'skep G| ulyIm Ddol J0 %001 Buuaaleq -
Apuanbaly asow paje|dwods Bulaq 3iom mau pue sased mo_v_umn_
SV Hg1 ojul uoiisuel) pasade} e si aiay] - JO UOoIONPaI By} Ul USSS a( ||IM S)NSSY "SWES) YIOM [BI00S 8y} U Juawssasse Jad sAep ¢ Jo abesane ue y
sainssaid sjeinaje [Im sexelAiS Aq papirosd Aoeded peppe sy -|  xew sAep Gi UIUHM SJUSLUSSSSSE JO %001 Buusaleq -
910z Atenige4 Aq pajoadxa Joesu0D JO UMOp Uny *(SOQ) SO2IAIeS
s,uaIp|IyD Jo Jojoaulq Aq j0afoid Jo malAal (N4 "PEPPagUID SAMEIANS -['SI0}BIIPUI JO JUSIBABIUOE SMOUS PUE Paje||0d S| BJEp 9OUBWIONS - “Paau Ul UBJP|IYD ||B JO SJUSWISSSSE pue syse) Ainp piepuels
loyelapunN ||Im Jey) 821A18s AInp yoam G e Bupuswsa|dw| - a9onjoeud a|qejdedoe ue o} pue
paysijgeise ‘play aJe sbunesw sanssi pue sysu Jeinbay - 9souewopad poob jua)sisuod Buimoys
sI ylomawey diysisuped "sanss! pue sysli uo pjay ale sbunsaw :paJanllop ale) [e100s 10B1)UOD 0} JBAIIBP ABU) Jey)
‘_m_me‘_ pue }8s ale S10}edipu| 8duUBWIONSd ;r_m_m‘_w>0 joenuo) - ‘PadJN0Ssal pue Paysl|qe}sa Sl 80IAIBS JUBWISSASSY - pue wa;mm S| [apow Kia. |9p pue siojedipu| >®¥ 9102/¥0/1L0 | #1L0Z/LL/LO s,uaip|iyo av wwv_m_>xm wioJ} pauleqo si QJ_N> seg| ¥'¢
9102
ga4 Aq uonisuel) yjoows e uejd pue asnoyul uoisiroid ay) sAow 0}
Aemiapun si Jusw)inioay 910z g4 [un joafoid sexelAys ulejue) -
awi) Jusnbasqns 10 puodas UB|d 4O B UO UIP|IY JO %E| -
%81 1 S| 8)el |ellsjal-al 8y} | Jouenp JO pus 8y} Iy -
19s ejep Ajoedeo pue puewsap
%18 e st sumop dajs - G0z Jdog 10618} %02 BIA USBS - (oM NIO / dO Buunp pue
%/6 SI S9[BISAWI} UIYJIM JNO PaLLIBD SJUBWISSASSE - GLOZ 1daS| -G ‘awi) puooss B Ue|d € 0} 198[qns ualp|iyo pue o).l [Bliajal-ay - HSVIA Juassasse }sod ‘Sjoejuoo Je) aled
%¥9 SEM S9|EISaWI) UIYIM JNO PaLLIED SJUSWISSISSE - 107 1doS *SYJUOW g 10} }IOM [EI90S AIOjN)e)s 0} paliajal-al /obeu) le1oos ul syuiod Aay e umop Buidda)s
[EIEI [T ) :sumop-da)s Jo 9, pue 8|easalul) UIYHM JNO PALUED SJE SJUSWISSISSY - (soxe|AyS) Sy Buluonoun4 -| jou pue ao1AIas Alojnjels e aAleoal Jabuoj ou saljiwey %, Bulob-uQ | GL0Z/70/10 | JoBeuey 8dIAI8S |  SBIjIWE) Ul 9seaIoUl UB 8] |IM dIdYL | €2
uonisuel) ay) Buunp saxe|A)s wouj Jano Bunie) aq [iIm oym
‘GL0Z 100/des Ag swes | IO\ [B100S OM) pling 0) sue|d aie atey] - o
soxelis —
Buisn anupuod am awuesw sy} uj “Aemiapun S| jusw)inioal ‘[epow 8oIAIes HSVYIN —
Jayuny seramoy ‘Bunuiodde uj |njssa00ns jou aiem sisbeuepy M3U 3y} yim aull ul swea] Ainq  Jo uonejuswaldwi jebeu) 90IAISS JUBWISSOSSY
wea] z "peue)s sey 8|0J JOBBUBY WES | 8Y) 0} JUSWHINIOBY - 9102 Yyouie Aq jsod ul yels |y 9102/€0/L0 | 5102/80/10 | JoBeuB|y 8o1A18S | pue [eua)ey aAijoays ue ysiiqelsa o] |z
HIANY| [@))
0) dn paddae}s aiem sjoejuod 9| “Bunybiem Jisy) Buluielulew %z € (0]
‘NIFHO paulewal G6 JO IN0 62 NIIHO Pajel sjoejuod asoyl JO al
NIZYO 0} umop paddays 9 pue g3y
0} dn padda)s aiam sjoeju09 1ybI3 "bunybiom sy Buluiejulew %8'96
“YIGNY Paulewsal vy 40 N0 0EY YIFNY Pajed SJOBJU0D 8sou} JO
‘pajyblam Ajoaui0d usaq pey |je uoiedlpul ue ssasoid ayy Jnoybnolyy
Bunel Jiay) paulejulew %00} Q3 Pajel S}oeuod asouy) JO -
UOIJeWLIojul PUE SDIAPE YBnoiy) pajsiSSe SJOBJUOD (ZZ PUE SDIAISS
djay Ajuea 0} ssosoe paddals S}oeju0D 71 | ‘aIeD [e100S S,usipliyd 0}
dn padda)s s}oBJU0D 9/Z SMOYS UOljeWIojUl SWODJNO0 d|qe|leAe ay] -
Juswabeuew pjoysaiy) pue
Aouaysisuod Jo sjans| ybiy seyelisuowap Buiew uoisioap JO MIIASY -
Buisea.oap s|ediaal ul
pe}nse. Sey ‘SUONOE SSNOSIP 0} SeYeIAS Uim sBuesw ApybiupoS -
Buiutesy Buipsenbajes paneoas
aney (sjo)id jour) yeys skemiy ysilg pue Aouaby Jepiog Mn -
aoe|d ul aie pue paje|dwod usag aney s|0o0jold HSVIN -
Jejs abel) pue HSYIN I1e 0} usAIb Buluiely pjoysaiy] -
sbuneaw uoisialadns ul paouapiAe
uaaqg sey yolym ‘pasaniep Buluresy pue paaibe spjoysalyy - ‘Juswissasse Joj Buissaiboid
S9SED ||B UO JoYew UOoISIoap [eul 8y} sulewa. Jobeuey HSYIN 8yl - %06
suopesado WO pue anoge sl HSYIN Aq Bunes 9wy [eniul Jo ssauaAnoayT -
3SD U0 SNdo} 0} 8q ||im SqO[ 1By} - Wil |INy HSYIN Ul Buniiom aq 1d2ou0d HSYIN
juablag aAnoaje( e pue jdeg Ul pauels oym Jeoljo ISO B Sl aldyl -| 8y} pue Bunjew uoisioap aled [eloos alojdxa 0} sieuped o) bululen Soel [BLI9JAI-9Y -
Jo Asanijap pue spjoysauy BuipseBal uoissnosip Jouned buloBb-uQ -
panalyoe aoueldwod 1oy Jobie} %001 "piemio} buiob juswnoop uoljew.ojul pue ao1Ape ybnoly} pajsISSe sjoejuo)
pua.} Jpne Ajyjuow Jno uj papodai 89 [IIM YOIUm 4O SHNSaJ 8} |00}, 106.E) %G6 ‘pauue|d Bunjew-uoIsioap JO JIPNY "HSYIN Pue saoInes djay Aies 0) ssosoe deig
Jipne 21uo3o88 Ajyjuow ay} Jo Jed mou si Buiyew-uoisiosp Jo Jpny -| abeu wouy Buijew-uoisioap Jus)sisuod Buliedipul ejep pue sjpny -[  821AI8S oM [e100s Alojnje)s saluapl Aes|o HSYIN -
1030311 JuelsISsy ay) Aq palleyd aie pue aoe|d Ul ae pusye sinoqyBiau Pa)e||09 S| aul| paeog juswanoidw] HSYIN swea)
slouped A8 JNO YdIYm Ul pue papuaye [|om aie yoiym sbunssw |eonsiiels Upm aul| ul si pleog juswanoidw|-yas "09x3 JoIyd -J|os 99x3 JaIyD uopuo ay] Aq popusWILODaI [obeu] HSVIA pue abeu | auyy Aq Buryew
diysseuped oibajes)s pue sbunesw uonesado HSVIN Jeinbay - uopuo 8y AQ papusWIWIODal SE SI0JedIpU| ASY punole ejeq - se siojeoipu] Asy Buimojjoy punose eyeq -| 91.02/#0/L0 | §102/¥0/L0 | JoBeuepy aolnies -U0IS|09p Jus)sisuod pue parosdwi| |'g
suonoy - ssaiboid sjabue) Aoy SQUO}SI|I| PUB SAINSEI|\ Sd2UBWLIONSH ojeq pu3 | ajeq Hejs peaT] uonoy 19y

¢ Xipuaddy

91/G10Z ue|d uonoy juswanoldw| aie) [B100S s,uaip|iy)

JUBISSASSY B S|elIa)ay pue HSYIN ‘abeli] Buiroidwy iz weans IoMm




lejol

%0

%62

%L

ohels

ssaiboud u|

pajajdwo)

abejusoiad
JaquinN
91/G10Z 104 SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

e01e SIUY} Ul N0 paLLIed 8q

jipne ue 9,0z 10 Ul -
1a3 ui pakojdw yeys Jusuewsad %00 -

slewajel Buiwiopad Uo 99IAPE SUIBJUOD SO -

sasodind Bunoyuow Jo6pnq 1oy aoueul4 pue Jebeuew
Jojuas usamjaq aoe(d aye) sbuneaw Ajyiuoly Juswebeuew

J01Uas 0} Juds pue G0z |udy ul paja|dwod malaal 1 a3 N4 -

Ajoyelpawiw
ynm Jjeap aie pue sanssi Ayuapl djay sbunssw Ajyuop - uoleJapIsuod Juswanoidul ap)
Sl uonoe siyl 'z Jayuny 1o} ININS 1e passnosIp 8q 0} malnay Hoysdeus - —
ooe(d uj abeu) yum Buutesy L-z-| - HSVIA
$'Z Sem ‘Buipiooai 0} yoeoidde Jiay} Ul Jus)sIsuod ‘Buipodal jo ssauljawiy pue Buipiodal J981100ul /obeu] ‘mainai yoysdeus Bumojios ™
JOELIICIERN pajsjdwon obel| WoJj SeNss| JoW ou ale aiay] - UIBWSJ PUE SWES) 3IOM [BIDOS B} YJIM BUl| Ul YJom 0} 1 a3 - 10 Apjoom sanss| Aue papiodal aue wes) 3OVIYL| Bulob-uo | 5102/70/10 | 49Beuep so1neg | sonoeid Buipiooas yeys 1a3 erodwi| 492
umomhmuamn.aﬂ 5 snjejs 1}y - ssaiboid sjabue) Aoy SQUO}SI|I|\ PUB S3INSES|\ dd2UBWIOMAd ajeq pu3 | ajeq Hejs peaT] uonoy wm
(Al
suonoy painay
Sgloe
190 15| 9y} wouy d9eld Ul 8q 0} 8JNJoNUIS Wea) WNASE MaN "92IAISS
so|doad BunoA pue wnjAsy ay} JoA0d 0} pajinioal Jabeuely aoIAI8G -
sod ul Jabeue|y wes ] jusuewlad -
‘(wniAse gy)
aoe(d ul jobie | Sjuswissasse
sjybu uewny pue sjuswssasse abe uo Buiuiel) / Juswdooasp yels -
speojesed s|geabeuew yjm ao10j10m Jusuewnad Ajnd -
pajidwod Buiaq s ase sainby G|, ydeg
1 Juswssasse Jad sAep Buryiom abesane ‘%00l - G| Bny juswabeuew ased Buiobuo
6°9¢€ Juswssasse Jad sAep Buiyiom abesane ‘%06 - GL AIne pajeooje wnjAse Qv %001 -|ainsusa o} Ajeam pjay sbuijesaw 0jedlpu| SouBWIOUSd -
GZ'6Z yuswssasse 1ad sAep Buiyiom abeisae ‘o001 - G| sunp HSVYIN (LIv) wea)
:Juswssasse Jad sAep O Jo abesone wstiola] /Bunoles) /3SD /INDH 0} S|GBIBUINA JA/UBIPIIYD jJuswssasse Jad sAep og Jo abelane ue yum| /ebeu| ayeu] wnjAsy ayy yum diysuonejal
sbunssw ,aid, | LEEEIERY  ue yum xew sAep G UIYIm paJaAljap sjusu ‘wnjAse Oy -| psenBajes o) suonesado yim diysiauped Ui 3iom o) ||y PUe yayn -| Xew sAep Gi UIyIm S)uswssasse Jo %001 Bulaaleq -| Buiob-up | 510z/€0/10 | JoBeuely 9o1AI8S Buiyiom aAloays ysiiqels3| /2
HSVI ulyim pajuiodde yAQI 8w [ind -
9102/L0/G| uo 8oe|d 8xe) 0} enp s! 1xau 8y}
puUE G102/60/81 U0 99e|d %00} Ualp|iyd uo Joedwi puE AQ UO UOISSSS
18414 "g0S7 ybnouyy pauueld usaq sey yeis |ie Joj buluien AQ -
'HSVIN utym pajuiodde yAQH awi [ind -
HSVIA Ul Ja)Jom AQ Pa}edipap B Mou S| a1ay] -
‘salliwey AQ o4 Ajjenb juswssasse
XlJew uonesynuapl AQ Sopeulegq Jo pue swea) ul Juswianoidwi Ue 83ealpul SHPNE PUB SISXIOAN [B120S -
S puE JusLISS8sSY 8} O} |00} UOREIRRUBP| SIY HSYA-YAVYD 8u}
Jo sediound a8y} sepnjoul YoIYyM [00) JUSWISSSSSE Ysl pajuswa|du) - ‘ueld pue ABajens AQ Ym payul| 8q 0} SBIIAIOE MaN - ‘salpawal
|eba) Jo siojesadiad jsuiebe siaplo uj aseasoul uy - HSYIN
(4 S AQ YIM payijuapl saljie) 0} palajjo 92IAI8S aoueyus pue ‘SpJemuo /obeu]
sem jou snoinald [ EIEINERY Anuspl 0} HSYIN 0} 8loJ isiieroads AQ Jenlep o} diysiauped HSYIN - YoJB\ S|00) AQ UO 991AI8s YO Aq Jno pajjod 8q 0} Bulules] - *0SD woyj saljiwey AQ Joy Bunsodubis panoidwi -| 51.02/60/10 | §102/¥0/L0 | JoBeUB 9o1AIeS AQ Jo} Jayjo ao1aies anoidwl| 9z
umwhomwam_%mﬂ_ 5 snjejs suonoy - ssaiboid sjabue) Aoy SQUO}SI|I| PUB SAINSEI|\ Sd2UBWLIONSH ojeq pu3 | ajeq Hejs peaT] uonoy 19y

¢ Xipuaddy

91/5102 Ueld Uoioy juswanoidul| 818D [E100S S,udIpIyD

JUBISSASSY B S|elIa)ay pue HSYIN ‘abeli] Buiroidwy iz weans YoM



ulejuod J pue

ynsai
B SE }I0M Od JO SSW09}No 8y} Ul Juswaroidwl payiew e
uaaq sey a1ay} pue Jybiupoy A1ons aoeld aye} sdoyssiom O1d -

pajuswa|dwi pue pamainal
uaaq aAey ssa00id OTd pue sbBuipaaooid-aid uo Bujules] -

PAASIYOY - SUONUBAIBIUI
Ajawy Buuaalap ul yeys Joddns o) siojusw sonoeld
G102 300 Ul anp s1 yolym apepadn x
-l1] 9y} JO LEed - 92uepInb pue spiepue)s ao1joeid ||B MaIASY e
"MalAaI SIY} JO
awi ay) Je passadoud Bulaq (NS Sem ejep g Jaueny "sweljawi)
sAep Buijiom QL 8y} UM Ypm Jjesp aom sjureidwiod
| Japenp |l “sjute|dwod o} Buipuodsal ul souewlopad
panoidw| "pandIydY - sjure|dwod Ul uolonpal e s aay| e
obelane syoam {|-z| S 3iom sbuipasooid-aid e
yuow g Buinoidwi st swiy aseo abesane 4O pue N|D e
:s}nsal ejep umop-dalg pue dn-des -

sue|d ayendoidde aaey pue pajeoo|je sesed AIoJNIes IV "%8 1

(1eyod gem sainpaooid
pue sajoljod 21U0JJO3[S BYY) X-Li1 UIM JeljIE) 918 SI9NJOM [e100S -

£102 Jayyebo] Bupuopn, Buipnjoul yeys pue siabeuew
||e 0} In0 pajj01 pue pajepdn usaq sey souepind sooeld -

*G10Z J0 Japenb Js1iy Ul SI9YJ0 pue siaxoel |
1no) Aq Ino pajjol aq 0} siom sbuipasooid-aid uo Buurel] -

*pUNOQ-aLUI} PUE PASSNO0)
l5WooINo si yolym ueyd paaibe ue si 819U} PUE JUSLISAJOAUL JNO JNOGE
1eajo ae sAoAINs pue Yoeqpas) ul sisuped pue saljie) ‘Pels -

sinoqubiau [edNSIE}S UM BUI| Ul pUE PAONPaI SIE SOJE [BLI9)aI-9Y -

‘uonuaIBjul Aioynjels
1o} ajeudoidde ale s9IAIBS S,UBIP|IYD OJUI POAISOA S[elIdyaY -

‘poa.be sjeble} pue Jno pajjol sI B8 [BI100S S,UBIPIIYD

suonuanaul

Ajpwiy Buuaalep ul Jyels poddns 0} siojusw so1joeld ©

20UepING pue spiepue)ls aonoeld || MaInaY e

*sjule|dwoo Ul uonoNpal e st alay] e

"SUjUOW 9 Joj }JoM [e100S AIOJNJE]S O} pallajel-al Jou
puE 80IAI8S AIOJNJE]S B BAI8001 JoBUO| OU SalliWe) % @

pue Juswssasse }s0d umop dajg Ul 8sealou Uy e
obelane sy9am |-Z| S yiom sBuipesooid-aid e
yibus| ul syjuow g1- 6 9beione saseo 40 e
yjuow g abesane sased NID e

:s9)e2Ipul elep umop-dalg pue dn-de)g -

"SUJUOW Q O} 3IOM [2100S AIOJN}e}S 0} PaLISyeI-a1 Jou

LMSO

Jouuew Ajpwi pue pauyap Alues|o e ut

9 wﬂwm‘_m.r >w¥ | ssaiboid ] e w‘_mquN‘_mQ ﬂwmhmu Ulyjim paulewsal sAeY Sojel |Blisjal-9Y -| pue adIAI8S UoljudAIBiu| >tmm usamjeq adeusjul Buiu }NO |000j0.d - pue 8dInes \P_Ouzﬂmuw B 9A1808l mer_o_ Oou saljlwey 9, - m_.__Omn_._O G102/¥0/10 ‘_QONEN_)_ CRIISEL U@U_>O‘_Q 8Je SUOIJUBAIBJUI HIOM |BID0S || G'€
‘paynuap! Al1es|d sawodino palinbal yyim saljiwe; sy}
pue uaIp[Iyd Ypm juswabebus |njBujueaw 108]ja1 0} SUBWISSASSY -
‘siauoljoeld siom e100s
*S)USWISSOSSE| ||B 0] N0 PaJ|0] PUB 8IAISS \YT) SUf} WOJ) PAUOISSILUWIOD
ul @1| s}oo| poob jeym, uo Bulules) SAI823. 0} SIS3IOM [BID0S - g 0} swwe.boid Bululel) Juswssasse uy -
uwnny
BU} Ul paJaAl|ap &4 [|IM SI|I3S Juswssasse uo Bululel) aoijoeld - "PaWLILUOD 3q 0} 3)ep Me)s swwelbold - 5102
aunp Ag pajuswa|dwi ainjonuis Juswabeuew MaN -
Jeys o) sabessaw Aay juswdojpaaq @ Buluies] ayepdn -|  "GLOZ dunr is| uo pajuswa|dwl Sem ainjonu)s Juswabeuew maN -
RUETIET]
Ajiaoe aop0eud uo syiom Buiroidwi uo siojusy 0|0U0JYD d}ep 0} dn UIBJUOD 0} SPI0daI BSBY ||V -| SH Lodau ye)s pue pasaaljep Buiaq si uoisiaiadns Ajjenb
s0noeI4 Yim ueld uonoe ue Buidojorsp ale Wes) 8IAISS Y] - * ybiy ajeolpul SA8AINS Ye)S pue JIpny uoisiaiadng -
‘(Remuied
GLoz aunp|  s.ualp|iy) 1o Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuaniaiul Alie3) yiom sbuipaacold|  yeys 0) papiooal pue palaAlap si uoisiaiadns %00} -
1S UO pajuswa|dwi sem ainjonyis Juswabeuew aonoeid Mo - -a.d pue buiuue|d [ebaj uo snooy Jesjo e yum ‘Aousuewsad o}
Buiuueld a1eo |e100s 0} |elia)al wolj yiom Jo ndybnoayy panoidw - 9102 Yot Aq poob 9,08 e <t
yodai S|y} Jo awi) 8y} Je Aemiapun ||}s a.1e S)pNe Jo 610z 1das Aq poob 9,0g e —
‘uwnjod punou jdag ay} se Bulobuo si sy} - G0z 1deg Ag poob 9,06 e salouabe Jauped pue Ajiwey ay) ypm 610z youey Aq poob 9%,G¢ e —
,sainsesy panaIyoe - 610z YyoJep Aq poob %Ge e | Juswabebus 3iom [e100s pue 810A S,p|IYd dY) }08]J94 SJUBISSISSY - :Buipe.b ur juswanoidwi moys sjpne ase) -
aouewIOUad, :Buipesb ui juswanoidwi Buimoys sypne ase) - (0]
Japun sauo)sa|iw SOl[ILIB) Y)IM PasN 8q O} S|opOW UOHUSAISIUI UO syuawabpnl| ‘sypne 1MSD 1MSD 8y ul syuswssasse| O)
0} pappe ,pooo), ‘| [ssaiboud uj BuioBuo - sypne Buiyepapun s A1 ul @oueldwod %00} - pawojul pUB SISA[EUE IBSJO UIBJUOD SJUSUSSISSE YIOM [BIOOS - Bujepapun siebeuew weas} ul soueldwod %001 -| 9102/70/L0 | S10Z/+0/1L0 | Jobeuepy adinieg s10Mm [€190S Jo Ajjenb sy aroiduw) (473
AnyBiupioy al
Bunesw siobeuepy 991A18S Y} B passnIsip ale pue paje|dwod
u9aq aAeyY S)IpNy ‘sanss| Aue ssaippe ued siebeuew
asaym ueld uonoe ue asedaid pue uoisiniedns qOd pue
9ouewIouad JIpNe [IM SI0JUSJ 891dBId GLOZ IsnBny woud -
ssa004d 8U) 0} aNnjeA alow
sppe siy} se Apybiupoy pajonpuod aq pjnoys uoisiaiedns gOd
1ey) paaibe sem )| “Jabeue|y 901A19S 8} AQ U)IM Jjeap alem
yolym sanss| aouewlopad ajqeliea payiuapl Ay} aisym ‘GLoz
AInp ur WINS 03 Juam uoisialadns Jeuoissajold uo podai isil -
%001 yum
paoejdal usaq "pajoadxa si juswanoidwi Ue a18ym ‘GL0Z/60/C
Sey ainses|\ Jod uo Bunssuw }xau ay) Je pajussald aq o} anp ale sainbly
woly suoisiniadns 1snbny ‘Bunesw siabeuely soinleg 8y} je siseq Ajypuow e uo ‘uanIb aJe suoneue|dxa Jeso INd20 ,USI0P SIY} SIBYM uoisiniedns gOd %001 -
1-2-1 aney 1ey) pue Aojjod uoisiazadns uopbul|jiH 8y} yym aul| U uoisialadns 1MSO Je)s Jo Juswdojansp pue uoisiniedns
0} JJeIs %06 ‘| |ssaaBouad uj| suoisinedns |-z-1 %9/ ‘Joxoey) uoisiaiadns |-g-| Juswaidw] -| |-} Bulaiedal aie ye)s jey) sejedipul uoisiaedns uo podai Ajyjuop suolsiasadns jo Aiaalep pue aoueldwod %001 -| BuloB-uQ | G10z/40/10 | 106eUB 9o1AI8S Jeuoissajoid Jo [9As] ayy Buinoidwi| ¢'¢
'sased AIOJne)s ||e JO UoNedo|[e %001 -
'SPEO|9SED S}oaye
Kjas1anpe yoiym ybiy Ajjeoujosiy usaaqg sey Yolym saseo 4o
ul Alzenoiued Joop juoly je puewsp ybiH yiom jo Indybnouy}
Jo Bunoyuow Jenbal st 818y] "9 SI peojesed abelane auyy
G107 1d8S Jo sy ‘siseq Jeinbal & U0 pamaiAal aJe SPEojaseD) ‘puewap yym paubije
‘(pouad jey} Buunp saseo G| sem peojased abeiane ay) a1aym) S| YoIYm 991AI8S BU} SSoJoe Jeys Aouabe Jo asn o|qixal} SI a1ay] -
sIaquinu 8say} 8onpal 0} padjay aunf pue Aej ul 80Jnosal
BJ)XS puB SPEOJSSED Ul UOIJoNpal B S| 818y} ‘||eIoAQ “Oel) uo *Sal[IWey) Joj SaWO0oIN0 Poob yum Jauuew Ajpwiy
surewsas 91A9s (1MMSD) NID/dD 404 91 :JUSWINOOP SPJEpUB)S| B Ul US)EUSPUN S| SOSED 8y} UO USYELISpUN 3JOM 3} pue peojased "ualp|iyo g| Jo peojaseo abelane 1MSD J9)Iom [eloos payiienb
pajejdwon uopuo YIM dul| ul paaibe speojases 1oy ylewyouag - a|qeabeuew yym papoddns aie S193IOAN [BID0S SINSUS O] -[Ue dABY SISXNIOAA [BIO0S [|e Jey) ajealpul 18s ejep Apj@apy| BuloBb-ug | GL02/10/10 | Jebeuely aoinies Jad sased g| - speojaseo abesany| z'¢
pay00q uaaq aney sisod L
WaJ 10} SJO|S MBIAIJU| "90IAISS 8y} 0} uoisiroid poddns
Aliwey peoueyua ue apiroid |im ainjonisal 8o1neg digH Aue3 ‘sueld N|O/dD 01 193[qns aJe ualp|iyo uaym UOIUSAISIUI YIOM| Wea) 3I0M [e100S yoea
oy ‘pajulodde usaqg aaey (1) siebeuely wea) yusuewsad g - 340M }O81Ip Ul BSEBIOUI PUe 32IAISS pajabie) e aAIa0al saljlwe - |BIO0S SAISUB)UI UJIM }SISSE 0} Jje)s poddns Jinioay - G610z %2ea 0} U0 ‘siayiom poddns Ajiwey Jinioay
swea) alep
3IOM [BIOOS U]} Ul SI9)JOM [BI00S pue siebeuew Joj ubledweo |e190S S,UIp|IyD s)sod Jafeuew wes) pue yiom [e100s
ssaiboud uj| juswyinioas Jusuewsad ayy ul oue)sisse Buipinold ale euusad - |ILuey 0} SBWOJINO POOB SASBIYOE 0} 9I03I0M 3|qe)S - JuBWINIOBI JUSUBWIS -| §10Z/ZL/L0 | S102/20/1L0 av |e 0} Juswinioal Jusuewsad |nyssaoong| |'g
emma__émuwwnﬁ%s 2 snjejg suopoy - ssaiboid sjabue] Aoy S9UO}S3II\| PUB S9INSEBAJ\ 9OUBWIOMSd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Mels peaT uonoy FEN|
¢ Xipuaddy 91/G10Z ue|d uonoy juswanoidw| a1ed |el1o0S s,ualpliyd

S1MSD aU} ulyiim asnoead ylom [e1dos Buirosdw :¢ weans YoM




lejol

%0

%L

%62

ohels

ssaiboud u|

pajejdwon

abejusolad
JaquinN
91/G102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

Page 115

ssaiboud u|

panss| Bujaq aie S}oE)UOD MaU pue paja|dwod
US3(Q SABY SMBIASY “UONR|dWOD JEBU SI MBIASI SDIAISS -

3om Jo Ayjenb pue ndybnouyy o3 yul
1es0 & Y)im Joeu0) SISION Buijualed Jo smalnal Jayund -

AjpAnoaye
2JOW YJOM 0} 92IAJSS SMOJ|E JBU) USYELSPUN MBIASI [B

‘'swea} \\S pue [ebs] ypm paaibe
$S3JUN SH99M g UIYIM Pa}a|diLod 8 0} SjusWSsasse bunualed -

[CEINES
siyy Joj [esodoud auyy uo Buyaliq pajielep sjesedss 99S) ‘paseqal
9q 0} sjuswssasse Joj s}abiey payje)s Ay st 991AI8S 92UQ -

‘JJels aieQ [B100S
0} paJayo aq o} sbuipasdoid-aid pue sjuswssasse
ul Bujures; pue uolje}Nsuod aseo Bulobuo uy -

"9|BOSAWI MBU UIYIM paa|dwod
Bulaq syuswssasse Bunuaied ul asesoul uy -

‘palinbai si JusWISSaSSE [2dIPaL/[EDIUID B SSajUN
e} sbuipaaooid-aid ||e 1o} asnoy- ul paje|dwod
Buiaq syuswssasse Bunuaied ul aseaiou uy -

1MSO

B0INIBS

“Jojjo pue [020j01d ysauel 0} 80IM8S -| 91,02/¥0/L0 | 5L0Z/b0/L0 | 1eBeue Bo1nes | juswssesse Bupuaied aAoaye spinoid| /'€
pappe usaq
sey jebie] Aoy ‘¢
pappe ainsesw
pug ‘pajepdn
ainses|\ Jad 2 HSVIN 0} pajuiodde aq 0} Jaxiom YAQ|
‘(ueld snoinaid G1.0Z Uwniny a8y} u Ino pajjol aq o) Buluien AQ - Ad
Burousuadxa uaip|iyd oy sswwesboid oy Buiisodubis 10j0B}
SdAD 0} @2uepinb pue poddns pue sue|d Ajajes Jeajo )M 0} papuodsal pue paynuapl 1MSD ssu Bunuasaid ay) st 9oUSOIA dlsaWO]
sey ayep pu3 ‘| [EIE] [T apinoid 0} HSVYIA 0} pajuiodde Jaxiom YAQJ| JusuewIdd - HSVIA Ulyim YAQ| Jusuewlad [sI uaip|iyd uo AQ Jo 10edwi ay} jeyy Joajal syjuswssassy| Bulob-ug | GL0z/Z1L/10 | Jebeuely aoinieg aIaym saseo ||e 1oy asuodsal pauyaqg| 9'¢
emwa__‘omum.u»ﬁ%; o | smeEis suonoy - ssaiboid syebue] Aay| SOUO)SAIN PUE S3INSEa|\ 99UBWIONA] ejeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pee uonoy 1y
¢ Xipuaddy 91/G10Z ue|d uonoy juswanoidw| a1ed |el1o0S s,ualpliyd

S1MSD aU} ulyiim asnoead ylom [e1dos Buirosdw :¢ weans YoM




€ Jopenp Ul paJaAlap aq 0} anp aJe pue
pesH [enuIA ay) Aq pasiuebio Buiaq Jo ssedoid auyy ul a1e sdoyssIopN -
NWINS
Buunp paiojuow Ajgsod Bulaq si pue buisiwold s| aiay spew ssaiboid
9y %G9 SEM Jaquinu 8y} G|0g ISNBNy Je pue 9%Ge Sem SJUSLUSSISSE
yieay [eniul jo sequinu 8y} G0z AInf 1y “jobuey siyy Buinaiyoe jo sjyoid
ay) asEaIOU| 0} PasIEl U9aQ SABY SUONOE JuaWwabeuew yolym ui podal
e papinoid sey yjjesH wolj aAlejuasaidal B pue uole|edss Joj (NINS)
Bunesyy s1ebeuely ao1a18S 03 suob sey siy) ‘obedd|s swos 0} an( -
SWea) H/\ PUE [BJuSW 10} SAOYSHIOM -
Aiojepuew si ouepuaye
‘SJUSLUSSOSSE U}[EaY JO}UOW pue Yoel) 0} S|euoissajoid YesH|  'sinoy g Ulyym puodsal pue s NS O} 8)e|eosa ‘a[easal oVl V] Jo} sawog)no pooh
ssaiboad uj| pajeubisep yim yiom o) aoe|d ul sbuesw Bulojuow Ayeam g Jeinbay - UIUJIM SJUSWISSasSe Y)leay Oy Jo uoia|dwod 9,06 -| "sbunesw souewliouad Apjeem pue ejeq woly sajepdn| 51L0z/21/10 | §L0z/10/10 | 1oBeue|y ao1nes |ejessuowap sindino juswaoeld yiesH| 9v
Hodau siy} jo awy ay) je Butobuo [ls st siy} - G|, jdes e
Ja)8q 10 poob PaAsIYOe %9t - G| YOIE @
:S9SED JO JIpNne %001 -
Aemuspun Joyoo AJBjUnjoA Og UOIOSS 8y} JO MaIARI [N - Jap9q 10 poob %08 - 91 YoJep e
Ja}aq 10 poob %06 - G| 1doS e
"uwin|oo sainses|y Aemuspun pue payoel} uoisialadng - J19)8q 10 poob %Ge - G| YoJe o
ERV=IER T :S9SBD pPajIpne 10j SSUO)SAI|A -
Japun sauojsa|iw 610z 1des Jo
ay) 0} pappe SE Syeam 9z anoqe Isnl sI saseo Od abelany ‘sBunssw O1d Jejnbey - S9SED JO JIpNe %001 - 9[eosawWl} UIyIM pajejdwiod sSMalAal DT JO %001 -
Jey8q 10 pooY, 7
Bunesw Bupjoes) Aousuewad - S9]E0SaWI} UIYIM SMBIASI DY/ %001 - SYEETY
‘SOseD pajipne 92 = Papnjouod aq 0} Sased Od Jo abelane ay] -
10} SBUO)SA|IW BY) Japlo [euy o} uoleolidde woly uononpal e ul Buynsal S)99M g SI saseo O1d abeleny -
yim Aouajsisuod pajuawa|dw Ajjnjssadons uaaq sey (O1d) dUINO MeT dljgnd ayJ - ISM3IASJ DY PUE SBWO2IN0 N0 -
104 91L02/€0/1€ siebeurw wea) jusuewad JO JusW)InIosy -
0} 6102/,0/1L0 slomawiely Bunipne ases ayy yim aoueldwod [ind - [soluljo JuswaBeuew souewlopad Apybiupoy Juswaidw - Bupjew-uoisioap
wouj pabueys ualp|iyd Dy 4104 SeWo9N0 o)Al Jowl} aiow pue Jayaq o} buipes| soe(d
ajeq pu3g ‘| [ssaiboid uj 5102 1das ul pajuswajdwi ainjonls Jabeuejy 9o1joBId MAN -|  poob ajeljsuowsap o} }snqoi aie sueld aJed ||e INsus o] - Jaxjoeu) uoisiniadns |-z-1 -| 9102/€0/LE | SL0Z/¥0/1L0 | JoBeuey ao1niag | ul si Jybisiano Juswabeuew aAayg| Gy
sjuswalinbas %97 ay) Jo Wed se pauiely buiaq
ale Jejs Jawloy Aue pue uonesiuebio ay) uiol Asy) se uoos se Bulue.,
9A1903] SI9E)S MaU Jey) os (Ajyjuow aoejd saye) pue) ainyny 9|qesssio) o
ay} Joy BuioBuo si Buiutes] “Bujures) 359 pue O1d puspe %00} - ao10e1d Ul Pajoa|yal S| SI0A S,plIyd .
2} 919YM SBSED JO %08 SOJEJjSUOLWaP }ipne deway] - —
%8 1e AJUaLIND SI SWLI0) YOBqpaa) 0} aje) uINjey -
POOB %08 - 9} UIEI @ (]
2opj0eId Ul Pajoa|jal SEM BI0A S,PJIUD BU) DI9YM SBSED JO %08 poob %06 - G| 1dog e (@)]
punoy pue Jipne onjewsay | ‘sbuipiodal pajieep Aq uejd Aemyjed/aied poob 9%Ge - G| Yolep e (0]
By} Ul pajoayjal Sl @I0A S,pIYD dU} Jey) INSUS O} SISYIOM [e1908 ||V - Buiutes] 3S0/071d PUSHE %06 - :S9SED PAJIPNE IO} SBUO)SII - n_
podaul siy} jo awiy ayy je pajdwod Butaq s si siy} - G|, 1des e ‘ualp|iyo :ejep Jobeuew ajesodio) -
panajyoe - poob %9y - G| YoJe|y e |10} Sawoojno poob ainsua o) paiaAljap Bulules) pusye Je)s -
"uwin|od sainses :S9SED pPa)Ipne 10} SSUO)SAI| - %001 9 PINOYS 8)ed0ApE ue
2oUBWIONad Juswabebus| aAl8081 pUE 8)e00APE UE 8.INbal OYm QYT JO JBquinN -
ay} Japun 9]E00APE UB PAAISOaI 9)ED0APE UE palinbal oym DT %001 - dA @1eD Buinea] pue Qv panoiduil Jo 9oUspIAT - SIoAB9)| 9180 PUE DY
S8UO0)Sa|IW BY) 991M9s Jnoge a|doad oVl 10} Buluueld a1eo a1y ui uonedoied
0} pappe ,poos) [ssaiboid uj G10Z dunr uj 99e|d 00} 80UBIBJUOD SIOABD]| BIED - SWIOJ OBqPa3) Joj B}l UIN}dI %09 - BunoA 0} sjo|)ea] UOHEWLIOJUI PUE SWLIO YOB]Paa -| BuloB-uQ | 51L02/70/10 | J9Beuely soines uosJad BunoA Jo pjiyo jo souspiAg| v
paje|dwod podas
- sBuneaw uolsinledns gOd ssoioe Aou)sisuod aunsus o} siebeuew
1l Y3 Jow sey Wiea) aoueInNssy Ajijent sy} woly aanejuasaiday -
UOISSNOSIp 9SBD BAIJI3al Joj uolsiredns dOd %001 - 5102
AInp - swea) ||e ssoioe Jayoel) uolsiatadns juswa|dwi -
Je)s ||e Joy aoeld Ul IOk} uoisiAledng - ‘wies} 8y} UIypm aseq (IS pjing ‘sipne Yo
ybnouy) siasIop) [BID0S Usamlaq Juswdojansap pue aonoeld swea} |[e Jo} uoisiriedns aod %001 -
uoloe S,N.L mau Joj snooy Jesp|  poob Buluies| abeinoous pue aonoe.ld a8y - ‘siipne yeys jo Juswdojanap pue uoisialadns
Mmau e sl siy| [ssasBoud uj PUE UOljELIEA SB)EASUOWAP YoIym Jaxoel} uoisiriadns pajuswalduwi -| o ybnouy) sa)y aseo |je uo Bunjew uoisioap jsnqoi Jes|) - suoisiniadns jo Alanljap pue aoueldwod %00} -| BuloB-uo | 5102/70/1L0 Jeuoissajoud Jo [ana] ay) buinoidwi| ¢
‘g pueg (z1 ASAY)
sjebie| o) pappe J9310Mm Jad 1 = Swea] a1eD ul uaip|iy) 1o} peojased abesany oVl Jasiom [e1oos payljenb Jad saseo 9|
ipne vo ybnouy | [SSEILITT) G102 1daS Je ualp|iyo |, JO peojased abelaAy -|  uaIp|Iyo 9| O} | USBM}q paulejulew PeojaseD abeIaAY - ‘Jos ejep Apeapn -| BuloB-uQ | 5L0Z/0/10 | JoBeuep 801A8g | - | Ulyym ulewas speojased abelany| Z'y
Jabeue|\ a01nIaS By} Aq siseq Apjeam e
uo passasse ysll pue pamalral Buleq aie a1ed wouy Buissiw ualpiyo ||y - oljes Aouabe o} yeys yusuewuad %08 -
aouewopad anoidwi 0y aoejd Buissiw Oy [ Jo Jybisiano Juswabeuew Apoap\ -
Ul SUOIJOE pue pappaquil Mou sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew maN (5102
aunr) %G/ pue (QLA) %ES - oeosawi A1ojnje)s ulyym payisia Qv - S|dM Yoes 0} G> 240 wouy Buissiw ualpjyo Jo siaquinu Mo -
pajuswaldwi sbunesw juswabeuew sousuewlad Jejnbay -
panalyoe usaq sey speojase) pasueleg QY] Uoledo|le %00 - *s9]eosaul} AIOJNJEIS UIYNIM P3YISIA DY JO %001 -
S9IOUBDEA ||I} 0} Sia¥IoM Aouaby -
Swiea} O 104 ¢1 SI Yolym abeIaAe 80IAISS BU) UIYIM BIe SPEO|ISED - Speojasen
*SI9YIOM [BIDOS ||B UJIM JUSWINIOSI JUSUBWIS - paouejeg OV UONEDO|E %001 - 19S EJep Apj@ap -
‘wes) Aemsspun ‘Jow ale sjuswalinbai
S, dA @pnjoul SI JusW)INIOBI JOYIOAN [B100S Alojnie)s ||e pue paj|y sysod (L) Jebeuepy ‘pajuiodde| G0z 1das Aq (swea} Q1D Joj ¢7|) abelane a21AI8S BU). wea] S, dA % OV 2y Aloyness ||e jeyy ainsus
0} pajepdn pea|ssaiboud uj wea ||y "G10z }das pue Anp ui Aemusapun juswiinioal Jueoyubis -|siebeuepy wes | |le Yylim [njssadons Jus}inioal JUSUBWIS -|  UIYylIm aie speojased pue pajjy ale sjsod Aojniels Iy -| Bulob-uo | 10z/70/10 | 1oBeuepy eoinies 0} pajeoo||e aq [|Im S8sed OV IIV| L'{
am%hcmuwm__“_m_.: 5 snjejg suoljoy - ssaiboid sjabue) Aay S3UO)Sa|I|\ PUE S3INSES\ 3OUBWLIOMAY ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels peaT uonoy 19y
¢ xipuaddy 91/510Z ue|d uonoy juswaroldwi aled [B100S s,usip|iyd ajdoad BunoA ' Dy 40} sawooino Buiroidw) i Weans YIopm




%0 %0L %0¢€ abejusdiad
0 L € JsquinN
IejoL ELE O sse-6o.d ulIEFEEETETTEIN 91/510Z 404 SNOILOV 40 SNLV.LS
Buneaw ayepdn jxau ayy je
00d 0} papodal aq |im pue pajidwod Butaq (I s! eep siy} = G0z 1des - s1ones| 810 9|qIblje || = sued Aemuyied %001 -
ue|d Aemyled e 9ABY SI9ABS| a1eD %G8 = GL0Z YoJB - 90IAI8S 9|doad
sased uado snid g} ||e = uonedojje %00} - BunoA ® uaipyy pajeooje
€'y sem ueld Aemyjed aA0aYe UB aARY ||IM S19ABS| 81D 9|qib1je || “P|O Sieak 1abeue\ %@ DV | JOSIAPY [BUOSIad B 9ARY ||IM PO Sieak
Jaquinu jai pjQ|ssaiboad uj 91 Jo abe ay) JaA0 dA DV IIE O} Pa)eooj|e 8 ||IM JOSIAPY [BUOSIad - "aJed Buines| s|doad 6unoA 1oy sswoojno ay) aaoiduwi o :Bunioyiuoly elea AMeam| §102/21L/L0 | 5L0Z/¥0/1L0 | Jebeuepy ao1nes 91 Jo abe ay} Jono ualp|iyo Qv IIv| OL'¥
SI9ned)
aled ||e Joj s1abie) | YyNS Jayuny Buidojanap Jo sseooud ay) ul ale app -
UOIJepPOLILODDE JO AJjIqeule)snS ay) 309yd 0} pieog
Bunuaied dio) o} Jabeue|y 92I1A19S By} WOJ) Yoeqpas) Jeinbal si ajay] -
pieog Bunuaied dioQ sy} Jo dnoib-gns aieD ul aAeaT ay) Aq SMaIASI N~
JenBas Aq usyepapun asonoeld pue souewsopad | JIN JO BuLIONUO - h—
uonoe pieog Bunuated dio) o} pieog Bunuaied sjeiodio) ay} Jo aJe) Ul 9ABaT 10} oVl —
mau e s| siy] [ssaisboad uj| psjussaid pue pajepdn usaq sey uopbulliH 1oy Aoljod uolepowWoddY -(dnoib-gns siaaeaT a1e) ay) Je paalbe Buieq aie sjebie) Ay sueld sAemyjed pue uoilepowwodoe ‘] 33N Bulonuo | 910z/€0/LE | $102/20/10 | Jobeue 90i1A18S | 81BD Ul 9ABST 10} SBW0)N0 Bulroidw) ®r
"poppe jobieL [@))
Koy, puz ‘¢ (o]
uwin|oo sainsespy n
ue|d Aousuewlad
e sey Jeak e 1ano %001 ‘9102 Yyosen Aq 0z uonoes |1y -
siajdope aAnoadsold yym padeld Jo paydjew uaaq aney
ajeudoidde ue|d uondope Ue yjm uaip(iyo ||y "Sawoo)no jusuewltad %01 > = 91e2 ojul A1jud Jo syjuow
aJaym LNoY 0} pauinial Bulag pue pamainal S3SED ISPIQ JUSWade|d IV - ajowo.d 0} sased wis) Buoj ||e Jo usyeuspun Moy - 21 Buipuy Ajiwey Joj Buniem uaipjiyo jo abejusolad -
%0€> = 8Jed ojul Ajjua Jo syjuow
aoe|d ur mou sue|d wis) Buoj sjeudosdde oVl 6 Buipuyy Ajiwey 1oy Buiyiem ualp|iyd jo abejuasiad -
pue pamalAal sased a1ed (0g uonoas) Alejunjoa wis) buoj Iy - wua) Buoj e Joj sawodino Jusuewad Ajawi apiroid o) - oV
woyj pabueys ESEEI fo\al Jo} uoisiroid Juswaoeld Jusuewsad
sjeq pug " [LEELIERY uejd Aousuewlad B Jnoy)im sased 9)e|edsa o) paaibe sey 99IAes O] - sBunaaw Ajyjuow-Unoo Ul PaASIYOE SHOaM 9Z - 9Z = PapN|oU0d 8q 0} Sased Od Jo abesane ayl -| 91,02/€0/L€ | S1L02/0/L0 | 1oBeue|y 9218 | Jo ssauljswi pue Buuoyuow aaoidw)| g
paje|dwiod sd3d %08 - §10Z 1d9S
paje|dwiod Sd3d %LS - §L0T YoIel ©
‘Je ale yoiym
Sd3d Jo uonajdwod sy Joyuow 0} pasn ejep aouewlopad Apjeap) -
|00YOS [ENMIA PUE WES) PasN U] UaJp|iyD ay) ynm sbunesw Jeinbey -
"0V abeinoous o}
S8AIJUOUI pue AdeJa)l| 8sea.oul 0} JsnJ] yoog ‘uoniny || Buluoissiwwod
UO pPasn Uaaq dABY BWOS ‘GLOZ YJIE|A Ul [00UIS 0} paA|oAap Buleq ddd
G102-7102 "Pajuswa|dwl Jou $30In0sal ddd 1ebe) 0} uonesado Jo |apoly
:ue|d Juswanoidwi pajsjO WOJ) SUOIO. [BNPISSY - paje|dwiod %001 - G| 997
pa}o|diod %G/ - G| jdes &
'Sd3d ‘G510z IudY weL Ag LHVYINS paja|dwod %06 - G UdJe ®
Jo Buuojuow aq ued paalbe sue|d UOIOY By} 0S J34° O} Spew 8q O} SJusWPUSWY/| ((d3d) ueld
EINGETE] ‘ue|d Juswanoidu| paIsjO WOJj SUONOE [ENPISaY - uoneanp3 [BUOSIad E JO uola|dwod ay) Joj SSUOISI|IA -
oW 2INSud 0}
‘5102 ‘uolssalboud ainsus 0} ‘g3d
Judy Joj 10s uone|dwiod Joj sjeq ‘SO PuUB SOSA ‘S1A ‘SMS O} 9]qISSao0e ay) ybnouyy aoeid ui uejd aAdaYe UB 9ABY SBUO)SI|IW
wia)sAs auo UIYIM pauleuod s| ejep ssalboid pue Juswiuleye |je jey) os J19y) Bueaw Jou pue Q] SJe OYm USIP|IYD ||e ainsug -
pappe usaq aAey d3de ulyim wajsAs Bulojuow pue Buiyoes) dojoasp o) apew uoisiag ‘abe Jo sieah g| 0} dn ‘pjo sieak looyos V1 40} SaW02)N0 poob sjessuowap
EENOEETTMA paisjdwod :ue|d Juswanoidul| paIsjO WOJj SUONOE [ENPISDY - ¢ Jo sabe ay) usamjaq Dy |le Joj aoejd Ul sd3d %001 [sBunesw souewopad Apeam pue eyeq woly sayepdn -| §1.02/2L/10 | §L02/L0/L0 | [ENMIA JO peaH sjndjno juswaoe|d uoneonp3| /L4
gm%kcmuwm__“_m_.: 5 snjejs suonoy - ssaiboid sjebue] Aay SOUO}SaI]\| PUE S2INSEI\ 9OUBUWLIOMAd ajeq pu3z | ajeq Mejs peaT uonoy JEN|

¢ Xipuaddy

91/5102 Ueld Uoioy juswanoidul| 818D [E100S S,udIpIyD

ajdoad Bunoy @ Dy 10} sawodno Buiroidwy i weals Y1op



Joddns uiwpe pajesipap
a1 Buleq aue sjuswaiinbal yoddng ssauisng -

utelqo o} pamal

Po}09]|00 SI 9OUSPIAS PUE PaMOeI}
‘poaiBe ale SuoISIoap pue SaINUIl “uoe|esss pue Buluies) jo
9J0Ad BY) Ul PaPPaGIS BUI0DB] [aUBd BU) WOJ) POAISIDI ORGP -

0BqPas) pue Bululel) BIA PaISAI|ap o ||IM SIaquiaw
loued yyum Buppiom diysiauped ur Juswanoidwy [nyssadong -

910z Buuds ui pasaalep
a4 ||IM pue ssaiboud ul st swiwesBoid Buiues} 82IAISS S,UBIPIYD -

Aseip a12y) ul paxy si Bupjew uoisioap NQY -

aoe|d uj poddns ulwpy -

aoe(d ul ale |aued

uondopy pue Bulis)so ay 0} pajuasald yJomiaded uo sy08Yd YO
Buiwiopad 1oy ssaooid ay] “3sod ul pue pajuiodde JOSIAPY |SuUEd -

610z Bny Joj pebueuieal aq o) Bunsspy
"e0e|d @3B} JOU PIP INQ GLOZ BUNp Ul pajnpayds sem Bunasiy - OM|

Ajowiy pauljweads sseooud Buiyew uoisiap AV -

pajuswa|dwi
joued o} Buiob o} Joud spodal \\S 104 }98US YOEQPES) YO -

padojansp swwelboid Bujuies 821188 s,uaIp|Iy) -

sBunssw
Wea} 0} paJaAljap suolejoadxa pue sjuswalinbal jaued -

(pobuene
2q 0} 8jep Jayjoue) GL0z/¢0/9) - ONILIIW NVIL SHIADVYNYI 010 S0IAIBS BY} PUE SIoqWBW
Joued ypm Bunjiom diysiauped ur syuswaroidw| |nysseaong -
(pabuene
8q 0} 9)ep JAYJoue) §102/90/¥Z - ONILIIW NVIL NOILJOAV padojonap
spodal Aapenb |sued wiojul 0} saseo [aued jo Bupioes] -
(pabuene
8q 0} 8)ep J8UYIoUR) GL0Z/¥0/v) - ONILIIW WYIL ONINILSOL joued jo syeem o0
Z ulyum Way Aq paubis pue paje|dwod aie sejnuiw [sued - h—
uonenbay pue SN uondopy pue Buuslsod - G102/01/02 |aued ay} wouj suols|oap Ajawiy Juswa|dwy -
Buusysoy wisy Buo| uo uone|siba) maN - G1.0zZ/€0/91 slaquaw [sued ypum uonesiunwiwod aroidwi 1
121 Yoogawouy ‘uondsjold eyeq - G1.0z/€0/60| pue siomiaded a1e|noud 0} pajuswa|duwl Wa)sAs 21u009| - |oued yoes Jaye |aued [0}
ONINIVHL TINVd NOILJOAY B ONIYILSO Buns)so pue uondopy Aq paja|dwod swioj soeqpaad - 10SIApY [8UEd B o
pauljweass pue pajeulpiood Bujuonouny pue ssaooud |aued - $90IN0SaY |aued Buusysoy
:sBunesw |oued Buueyso4 pue uondopy 0} pajussald yJomiaded s,ualp|iyo » uondopy 8y} jo uone Q)
ssaiboud uj BuImoj|o} 8y} Je paJanljap suoijejoadxa pue syuswalinbal jpued - paJanijap Ajnjssaoons Buluiel) [sued - pue saseo |e Joj d9e(d uj souelnssy Ajlend -|  gLo8Qg 5102/€0/S) | 1eBeuepy aoiniag pue Juswabeuew ay) aroidw Qg'g
siseq Apjoam e uo
dnoub-qns aouewiopad Aq payoel} aie SI0JedIpU| SOUBWIOHS AdY -
sjuswaoe|d Jusuewuad jo Jybisiono
pue juswabeuew souewliopad paroidwi apiroid 0y Bupeaw
Jaxoel) aousuewlad Ajyjuow jo uonejusws|dw) ‘siseq Ajyjuow e uo apew Bulaq uoisioap Aousuewsad wisy
dnoiBgns aouewlopad ay) Aq eyep Ajyjuow jo Aunnios panuiuo) -| Buoj o} Oy Buiaq piiyo ayy wouy skep abelane uj uononpay -
pauyai
pue pasinal sJaJed Jo [eroisdde Joj sajeosauwl) yoel) o} papiroid eyep ssnosip| sonoeud ul pappaquie sBunesw ejep souewiopad AjYuop - uopbBuljiH
uaaq aney 0} AJyjuoW }98W 0} BNUNUOD WES ] 8oUBHI|[BIU| OUBWIONS/SD] - gLoz Ainp ul Q] Joj sawojno Aousuewad
sainses|\ Jod pajyuswa|dwi ajnpow uondope g9 -| Aq dnoibans eouewopad Aq ejep Ajyjuow jo Aupniog - $90IN0SaY panoidwi Jo aouapiAe pue Jybisiano
0S 9'G puUB G'G pJeoaloos uondope jsuiefe s,uaip|iyo juswabeuew Buosis Buuswaldwi Aq
KRN SEELEN] pajajdwon ojul Juswabeuew Jeinbas apiroid o) paaibe usaq sey }as ejeq - paalbe jos ejeq - (g'g uonoe 0} Jayal) GL0Z dunr Aq paalbe Jaseled -| 91.02/€0/9L | §102/20/SL | 1obeuely aoin1eg | juswabeuew aouewiopad aroudwi| €6
(510z 1das ui) Aouaby Buusisoq
juapuadapuj 8y} PUB S9UEJ||\ UOPUOT JSOAN B} ‘UONEIOOSSY
Jaie) 18)S04 8y} Jalq ||IM am pasijeuly usaq sey Aemyyed
ay} @0ouQ "sBuyaliq Jeys JenBai Je passnoasIp aq ||IM PUE BDIAISS BY}
uiyym s1aBeuepy Wea] yum paleys aq [IIm Y| "GL0Z AInr ul Bunesy
panowsal siabeuel jue)sissy e pajuasaid sem Aemuyyed ao1a1es ay] -
uaaq aAeY pue
9°'G Ul pajeadal spaau o10ads Sp|IYo BY} }98W PUE [dUed SBIINOSIY
sainsesw 0} 900y 9y} Aq pamainal ale HgT Jo apisino sjuswadeld [y - sawoo)no Aousuewad
Hod om] 'z Jo JyBisiano pue abusjieyo jsnqou sapiaoid pue sonoeld
ue|d UOlOY SIY} BIA paloljuow a4 [Im|  ul pappaqua Bunes|y Buuiojyuopy Aousuewsad Apybiupod -
€°G Ul palanod suofjoe dn moj|o4 pue uozioH uo aAl| ob |im ABayens ay) ‘5oz AIne
asnedaq ul pJeog Bunuaied dioD ayy pue wes juswabeueyy Jousg Aq yo S90IAIBG S,UBIp|yD)|  SsjusLssasse |[e uo aonoeld yiom [eroos Ajjenb poob
panowsal usaq paubis sem Abajesg Aousiong ay] “aAl| mou si pue panoidde usaaq SSO.OE JUBWI}INIOSI YIOM [BI00S 1o Ueld Yim Ul juIT-|  JO 80USPIAS SBpIA0Id YIOMBLWEL) 8oueINSSY AjjenD -
sey sjuswalinbal SBy ‘90IAI8S U} UIMm paleys uaaq sey ABajelg Aousiolng ay] - Japow Qv
Kioynje)s 1sod JueoeA JaA02 0} pasn Jjejs Aouaby -| 510z 190 Aq Aemuspun ejs Jusuewlad Jo JuswyinIoay - 2y} 4o} 901AI8S Juswade|d BnjeA }saq,
ynm aulj ul 90|AI9g U} Ul sBopjoeq YJomased aAuBISqNS Ou aJe aJay ] e Juswa|dwi pue aoines uondopy
sJaseo Jo jenosdde *0) pa)inioal Bulaq Jo palanod Jayye ale salouede) jsod Jebeuely sjuswyuiodde JJe}s pue siapjoyayels Ay 0} pue Bupa)so ayy uiyym sjuiod Asy
Joj ejep Ajyjuow JoJUaS 9AUBISQNS B 0} JUSWINIOal pape)s aAey ap) “Aemuiapun jsod |nJss200Ns 98y} - siebeuew Wes) Jo Jusw)iNIdaY -| pajesluNWWod ainjonis Bulels pue Aemyjed aoinleg - e puewsap Joj ue|d o} ‘1osfoid [enul
wea | aouabijisiu| L Jusuewuad 0} JuswinINOaY "0} PajINIoal 8q O} |1 yunoy ‘ysod $90IN0SaYy ay} wouy pajoadxa syuswaroldwl
9ouewlIopad/sol, ul pue pajulodde sAL € ‘GLOZ AN Ul paue)s JuswyinIday ‘GLOZ J9pea 610z AInp Aq pajuswa|dwi pue pieog s,uaip|iyd Y} UlejuIeW pue JSAIIBP
ainses|\ Uad '| [ssaiBoisd ul| 100 Aq paya|dwod aq 0} 3oel} Uo Jels Jusueurad JO JUBWHNIOSY - pue | NS o} pajussald pue paje|dwoo aseo ssaulsng -| Buiualed ajeiodio) e yo paubis ABajens Aousioyns -[91.02/€0/10 | 5L02/20/SL | JoBeuepy 8o1a1es | o) aunjons ed1ales mau Juswsjdwi| z'g
um%b‘ww»ﬁmﬂ 5 snjejg suonay - ssaiboid sjabie] Kay| S3U0]}S3|I|\| PUE S3INSE3|\ SOUBWIOHNS] ajeq pug | ajeq uels peaT] uonay 19y
¢ xipuaddy 91/510Z ue|d uonoy juswaroldwi aled [B100S s,usip|iyd 0.4 uondopy ' Bulia}sod yo Ayjenb ay3 Buirosdu :g weas YoM




lejoL

%0

%L9

%EE

onels

pejajdwo)

abejusdlad
JaquinN
91/5102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

‘uonoe pailel e
9q 0} PaIBPISUOD
s| pue paje|dwod

Bupis)soy pue
ndope Joj swa)sAs Juswabeuew aouewlopad JenBas juswajdw) -

Jepow ao1n1es adAjojoud 0} poyod Bulyels TOH uswaldwy -

uoisinold 991M18s JO sisAjeue pue
ejep apiroid 0} B|ge 8q [|IM PUE BAl| SI 8|npow S| uondopy -

aloJ s abeuew
| pappaquia aue sbuneaw souewopad ejep AlyJuop -

Remyjed s,uaipiyD sy} ojul pajelodioour
Buiaq |opow aoi1n9s pue pajusawa|dwi adAjojold 1OH -

dnoibans pad Aq ejep Ajyjuow jo Aunniog -

sjuswalinbas Aiojnjes yum aul| ul s1aued jo |erosdde
10} ejep Ajyyuow wea | souabi|j@ju| ouBWIONSd/SD| -

saulepInb Alojniels ypm aul| Ut jpued Bulelso
pue uondopy 0} pajuasaid aJe SJUSISSISSE MON -

90IAI8S 8y} OJuI Bujwod

SjuaWISsasse BuIpueISINO 6z 91800y - 100loid welo) syuow S90IN0S9Yy Sjuawssasse mau pue Buipuejsino
uaag mou pajedo||e sased qu |leaoidde Joj |aued Buueyso pue uondopy s,uaip|iyd |e 0 uona|dwod pue uoledo|e
sey jabuey siy | [EEI L) OH pue welo) ypum ao1A18s pabeuew e juswaldwy - }0 %00] pajuswa|dwi A|jnjssadons ao1AIas pabeuew welo) - 0} pajuasald sjuswssasse Bulpue)sino Jo %001 - S10z2/20/SL | SL0Z/L0/S)L | Jobeuepy aoinies INSUS 0} [9POW BIIAISS MBU ) (el
«m%hﬂﬂ»ﬁmﬂ 5 snjejg suoloy - ssaiboig sjobuie) Aoy S9UOJSI|Il PUE SAINSEI|\ OUBWIOMAY ajeq pu3 | ajeq Meis pea uonoy JEN|
D
~—
suondy pImay
o
paydjew aq o} sueld 4o paydyew uondope ul |is Si ue|d a|qe|ieAe syuswaoe|d =y
21D 8Y} 818yM JaplJo Juswaoe|d B Y)m UaIp|Iyd ||e ul pa)insal pue H g1 Aujenb poob jo Jequinu aseasou| - ©
aonoeld ojul pappaquia Ajjn} ase sbunjeaw BuLojuow jusueulad - al
Hg1 40 sejiw OZ J0 apisyno paoed
SPaau sp|IYd ay) J9dw syuswadeld jey) pidoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo JO JagINU B} Ul UOKONPaY e
", aInjonys AjlIaA 0) pamalnal Uaq aABY S3JIW OZ JO SPISINO sjuawaoeld ||y - s)sod JUBOBA J9A0D 0} pasn Jjejs Aouaby - syuawaoe|d [enuapisal
MBU B} Y)IM, ul paoe|d Ualp|Iyo JO JaqUINU BU} Ul UOIINPaY e
aul| ul, sepnjoul saseo sjuswyuiodde :sjuawaoe|d Buusysoy wis) Buoj ul paoeld uaipjiyo
MOU Ssainses|y Aqeq uo Buisnooj mou ale am ‘pajd|dwod ale sased Aoeba) ||y - |NJs$S820NS 981U} - SIobeUBW WES) JO JUSWHNIODY - 10} sumopealq juswadeld Jo Jaquinu 8y} 8onpay -
aouewLIOpad
Y 'z Joued JaquIanoN 10} Ul Pax00q JaIed syealq J9pesT pue [ NS 0}| injoniis mau ay} yum aull ul syuswaoeld Bulie)soy wisy
poys | - [aued Jaquia}dag 1o} Ul pa)00q JaIeD Syealq Loys | - [dued| pajuasaid pue paja|dwod ainjonss mau oy aseo ssauisng -| Buoj ui peoeld uaip|iyo 1oy Ajjige)s Jusweoe|d aroidw| -
‘pasinal J9qUIBAON 10} Pax00q JaJed Weansulew | sl a1ay] g abejs ojul
ua9q yjoq aney Buiob sjuswissasse | abejs ¢ - Aemsapun s,A| G ApUa.LIND S| 818y pa1a|dwod AN 10} 8sIoiaxa Buuan-ay - (%8GSG) @snoy-ui 0} (%Gv) S,¥dI JO Oljes aonpay -
[HE)s woly syjuow “Jaquia)dag Joj Buiuans uonewsojul ay} Joj Ul Pa)00q Sp|oYasnoy 6g
9, Sem 9jep pug si a1ay ] "Auiy) onsejue) ay) pajied Aem Japun ubledweo Jusuwiinoal 9onj0e.1d Ul pappaquia Bunas|y Buloyuojy Aousuewad - sjuawaoe|d 19)so} asnoy-ul Q| |, -
pue ,2injponns e Apuaiing si a1y "Jybisiano Juswebeuew mau ay) sejeljsuowap S90IN0SaY V1 Jo sebuajieys
Wwes) mau Jo Hejs, siy] ‘epew sjuswade|d asnoy ul ¢ JO SESIOUI B G YUOW Ul pue pieog spaau xa|dwod Yjm 8soy} pue Dy s,ualpjiyd puE Spaau 8SISAIp 8y} }o8W
sem ‘ajep He)s ‘| [ssasboud uj| spew sjuswaoe|d asnoy ul 9| JO SSEAIOUI B SEM 318U}  YIUOW Uj - Bunuaied ajeiodio) o} pajussaid ABajeng Aousiiyng - 19p|0 10} S191eD JB)S0} JO UOHUS}al pue JUBWHNINSY -| 91.02/S0/LE | S102/60/10 | JoBeuepy aoinleg | o) si1eieo 1ejso) HET Jo Juswdorad| 9'G
dnoibgns aouewuopad Aq eyep Ajyjuow jo Auiniog -
uawaoe|d Buliaysoy wisy Buoj ue o} yojew e uo Buipiosp
‘a|eosawi pue soe|d 0} Nood e BulAioas usamaq awiy abesany e
ulyIm pauiajal asam Bulpul] Ajiwe 0} paliajal uaIp|iyo Jo %9 - Ajiwey aandope ue o) yoyew e uo Buipioap
pue 2oe|d 0} Ynoo e Bulnigoas usamaq awi abesony e
00 J0 Jeak auo ulyIMm | - padeld UaIP|IYO 8 GL/vL0Z diysueipieng
‘pajuelb Buiag JapIo a1ed ay) Jo Jeak auo ulyIM Juswaoeld Buls)soy |e10ads asneoaq Oy 89 0} PASEad OYM USIPJIYD JO % e
wue) Buoj e ul paoce|d Bulag ualp|iyd Jo Jaquinu ay} Ul 8seaudu] - wej aAlidope yyim ul buinow pue aied ojul Buusjus
U99M}aQ SUUOW G| UB)} SS8| HEM OYM UBIP|IYD JO % @
,81098, JO pesjsul Od 10 189K 8u0 ulym pade|d ¢ - paoeld uaIp|iyo G| GL/FL0Z wey aapdope sy yim
P1e23I02g, "pajuelb Buraq Japlo Juawade|d ay} Jo Jeak auo ulyIm Ajiwey ul Buinow pue a1ed Buusjus plIyd usamiaq abesany e
sAes mou aAndope ue ypm padeld Buiaq uaip|Iyo Jo Jaquinu ay} Ul 8sealou] - apew Bulaq Japio juswaoe|d ay) Jo Jeak pajdope
10bie] Aoy | ulypm Juswaoeld Ja)soy wius) buol ypm paoeid aie Dy 1-|  81em oym Jale Q] 8g 0} 8SBS8D OUM UBIP|IYD JO %, ®
“Jup ayy Buinopai Apealb alojalay) buuesy :S10}e2Ipul 82IAI8S A8 JO MaIASI @ouewlopad Jejnbay -
‘ainses| Jeul} sy} 0} Joud ualp|iyo Joj saljiwe) sandope [epuajod Bunosjes pJedai0ds uondope [euoneu
aouewlopad sy 1e Aajanoeoud Buppiom ase wes) Buipuy Ajiwey ay | “Ajiwey sajdope ay) Aq painseaw se aouewsopad ayy Ul juswaaoiduy - G10zZ 4890300 Aq paynioal A|iny wea] -
oy} 0} pappe ,ue|d ue Joj buniem siaplo yuswaoeld yum ualp(iyo ou Ajualind si aiay| $90IN0SaYy
90I1M9S TOH ‘sal|iwey aAidope ypm sayodjew Joj pajos|as Jo pade|d Jayy uopbul|iH ue|d 991AI18S OH PUE WEeIo) 98s ‘GL0Z s,uaip|iyd 901AI8S By} ulyim Buipuly Ajwey
pue welo), *| |ssa1b60.d ujjmou aABY USIP|IYD PUE YJIM }[eap Usag mou aAey sased Boyoeq ||y - ul D7 Joy sewooyno Juswaoe|d jusuewsad parosdw] -|  Anp Aq pajenjeas pue paje|dwoo soinas adAjojold - S1L02/ZL/SL | SL0Z/E0/SL | JeBeuepy ao1a1es | Jo sseooud pue uonouny ayy aroidwi| GG
.mwa__.omamm__“‘mﬂ 5 snjejg suonay - ssaiboid sjabie] Kay| S3U0]}S3|I|\| PUE S3INSE3|\ SOUBWIOHNS] ajeq pug | ajeq uels peaT] uonay 19y

¢ Xipuaddy

91/G10Z Ueld uoloy juswaaoidu| 81ed [BIO0S S,udIp|iyd

0.d uondopy @ Bunaysod jo Ajjenb ayy Buinoidwy :g weasys JIOM




106.8) UIYIM

l0} @onpai 0} aoe|d
ul Suoljoe pue
1ob.e) ueyy Jaybiy

10s 19616} ulyIm
Slpue /}/9] je
9|ge)S paulewal

yo
$S0I0€ PEOjaSED
abesane ayl ‘'z

"a|BJOW Jje)S Ul 9BUBYD BAI
pajesjsuowap sWINPNO Jeys SJAD ‘Hels |je woly uonedionied Buimojod -

Buipsenbajes
‘uonoe juswanoidwi pue sabueyd |iejep ul uiejdxa o} s,uaipjiyd -)
92IAISS 1B} Ul Jje)s ||e yum sBunsaw seinbai pjoy siebeuely 991198 IV - sBunesw juswabeuepy av® siabeuew pue o
90IAI9S 1B JJElS Jo souepuaye Jenbay - aled JJEIS Yim uoneolunwiwod Jejnbai ybnoayy
*991A19s 8y} ulypm Buiuueld pue sabueyo Aay [e100S s,uaIpjiyd 2.BD puE uoneynsuod ‘Aoussedsuen|’
Buimoyjoy ay EEIEIEERY  aupno o) pjay SjuaAS UOREDIUNWIWIOD 92IAISS djoym Jejnbal aie aiay] - S92IAIOS S,UaJp[IYD Wol) ASAINS JJe)s ||e 0] ajes asuodsal %06 - pIay sjuanse 9o1nes sjoym Aapenpd -| Buiob-uo | 5L0Z/70/1L0 av yim apew aq o} sabueyod |Iv| 499
VAVd J1ay) paje|dwiod aAeY SIaxI0M [BI00S paljijenb Jo %001 - [e))
G102 190 Jo pua Aq pa1a|dwiod aq 0} SMaIABI YAVd Yiuow g - "qol 18y} Jo syuswalinbas @
ay} 0} ajeudoidde sqq| oAy siaxI0om [B100S paliienb %001 - uoisirtedns od %001 - n
92IAJ9S BY) UIYNIM Saljljigisuodsal pue sajod JIay) Jo sjuswalinbas Buipienbajes sjuswalinbal
pappe usaq ay} Joy ajendoisdde (4q|) sueld Buiuiely |enplaipul 9ABY YE)S ||e INSus 0} siseq Ajlyjuow suolsiatadns s,uaipjiyo 90IAI8S Ypm Juswubije Jaiea|o pue
aney sjabie) Aoy [ssaboad uj| Aemiapun suonoy ‘uejd Juswdojeaaq pue Bulures) 821AI8S Juswaldw) - © UO suoisiAIadns aA199a. 0] SIaXI0M [e100s paljiienb Jo %001 - Jo A1anljap pue soueldwod %001 -| 9L02/70/L0 | SL0Z/¥0/L0 av Juswdojansp [euolssajoid Jjejs uljsaaul| g'9
Jodal siy} jo awi a8y Je buiobuo - GOz Joquiaydag Jo pua ay) Aq %0G e
panaIyo. - GL0Z YOLBN JO Pue 8y} A %GE e
119)39q Jo poob pabpn( YIOAA -
G102 uwniny ut Ayanoe
JusW)INIOA) Ulew ay) Jo 1ed se 0] payinioal usaq aney sjsod dv IV - 9102 YoJse Jo pus au} Aq %08 @
G102 Jequisdes Jo pus ay) Aq %05 ® alep
pappe usaq Wea) }IoM [e100s Jad dy U0 aq [|IM 213y} ‘ainjonis G10Z Y21l Jo pud ay) Aq %GE e [BI00S S,UBIP[IYD
aney sjobie) Aay||ssalboud uj 2y} 0} pappe uaaq sey 9]0J (dy) Jauonljoeld PAOUBAPY MauU dY] - :19)39q Jo poob pabpn( yiom jo abejuaoiad - aonoeld som [e1oos parosdwl -| 91.02/€0/10 | S1L02/S0/L0 av 9
S399m 9 uey} aiow oy ueld e Jnoyym uado saseo| abue. yobie) ulyum aonpai o} 8oe|d ul suonoe pue jabiey ueyy saybiy
pue spom Bopjoeq [[e Jo ainsojo 0} pa| aABY sjuawaAoidwl 8010B1d -| SWES) UOI}03]0id PIIYD/PSSN Ul UBIPIIYD Yim speojase) 1as 1abie)
ulylm pue a|qels ale busiso @ uondopy pue 8o1A9g s,9]doad
Buiyje)s wusjul pauieysns|  BUNOA ‘aieD Ul USIP|IYD ‘JUSWISSSISSY B [elId)oy Ul SPEOJaSED -
pue sjopow ,901A19s pabeuew, ybnolyy pappe Ajoeded pasealou| -
jos job1e} UILYIM SI pUe /|/9] Je B|qe)s
pouad awes ay) Jo} paulewal SBY SIAISS S,UBIP|IYD SSOJOB pPeOjased abesane ay] - 2| = Sia)Jom [e1oos payijenb AimeN -
01 ¥e pauelwal SeY SI9)IOM [e[oos palijenb Aimau peojeseo abesane ay ) alen
pappe usaq *90IAI9S 8y JO Juswabeuew souewsouad Apjeam Jo Led se pasojuow pJeog souewIOuad 8| = SIaxJom [BI00S S,UBIP[IYD paoueleq pue s|qe)s aJe SPeojased
EICTESEIPENY] pajajdwod pue (9]) abuel abeiane 1061e) 8U} UIYIM AJUSLIND I SPEOIaSED -| 1B A]Poam Palojiuow I SI9YIOM [e[00S palijenb Joj speo ase) - |e100s payiienb 1oy peojased abesany -| Bulob-uQ | 510zZ/40/10 av Buunsus Aq aonoeld 3saq yoddng| z'9
S)WI| peojesed
paalbe ulyym 901AI9S 8U) SSOIOE Pajedo)e aie SaSed AIoJniess ||y -
sjuswanoidwi 901AI8s Ul Buninsas ase
pappe usaq pue aoe(d ul ale sjuswabueLe Buuojuow juswabeuew Apjeam Jeinbay -
SWEea) JUSWISSaSSE Jo uoisinoid ey} 1o} 991AI8S
pabeuew, e Jo uonejusws|dwi ay) Aq Jow Bureq s| puewap ex3 - sased AIojnje)s |[e Jo uoneoole %00} -
|opow ,901nI8s
[Kemyyed s,uaip|iyo ay) SSOI0E puewap pajoadxa auy) Uuo paja|dwod YIopN - S9jel [BUONEU YJIM SB)el puewap Hg spewysuag - pabeuew, 8y} JO SSUBAIIYS IOJUOY - alep
[BI100S S,UBIP[IYD puewsap pajoadxa yum [apow Buiyers
alom sajey - | [EIE[ [T G0z aunp ul Aemyjed aled [e100S s,ualp(iy) sy} pajuswaldwy - HE1 ulyim as1o1axa puewap e a3ajdwo) - lopow Aemuyed s,uaip(iyD uswsaldwy -| G102/60/10 | SL02/70/1L0 av ay) Buiubije Aq sewoojno Japaq poddng| |9
aw%a“emua\mﬂﬁ_mm_u snjejg suonoy - ssaibouid sjobue) Aoy SOUO}SaIJNl PUB S2INSEa|\ aduBULIOMdd | @jeq pu3l | 9jeq Mejs peaT uonoy JEN|

¢ Xipuaddy

91/510Z ue|d uonoy juswaroldwi 8ied [B100S S,UBIPIIYQuswebueie Juswabeuew sanoeid parosdw pue Bunjiom jo skem mau Buippaquig :9 WEaxS HIoM




pappe usaq aney
syebue) Aoy 'z

‘uoloe paual e

sey jobuey siy] | [CRELITTT)

%0 %€EE %19 abejusolad
0 Z 14 JaquinN
1ejoL oneys  EEEIXCR] pejeiduion 91/5102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

Page 121

'GLOZ YOIBN PUS JopeaT 8y} 0} pajgns pue paje|dwoo aseo ssauisng -

*SI9)JOM [IO0S JO SWiea) (9 wnwixew) [lews yum siobeuew
wea} Jo Jaquinu ay} Buipuedxa Aq A

G102 19quialdas Jo pus 8y} Aq %0G ©
5102 YdJe Jo pus 8y} Aq %%Ge e
1191394 Jo poob pabpn( yiom jo abejuaoiad -

ale)d ainjonys juswebeuew wes) Jayey
'siseq Ajyjuow *AyAnoe Jipne pue uoisiaiadns ybnouyy, [e100g s,uaIpliyD e Bunuawsa|dw Aq sonoeud jo poddns
eJUNOOOE J9IES|D JOAIBP O] - B UO suoIsIAIadns aA19081 0} SI9YIOM [BIO0S pallienb Jo %001 - 1ybis1an0 Juswabeuew Jo Juswalinses|y -| G1.02/90/10 | SL02/S0/1L0 av pue jybisiano Juswabeuew poob ainsuz| ¢'9
amwﬁwomum\maﬁ-%_o snjejs suopay - ssaiBoid sjabue) Aoy SOUOJSI|IIN PUE SINSEI|\ ddUBWLIONad | 9jed puT | ajeq Mels pea uopoy 1y
¢ Xipuaddy

91/5102 Ueld Uoioy juswanoidul| 818D [E100S S,udIpIyD

1OV paiay




lejoL

%0

%EY

%LS

onels

ssaiboud uj

pajejdwon

abejusoleg
JaquinN

91/G102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLV1S

ajepdn DOd Ixau
oy} Je papodal aq [|Im pue usyeuapun Buiaq (s ale sypne 610z 1des -
9102 Yo1e Aq %001 :S8uoisaliN
*$90UBIBJUOD UOII3J0Id PIIYD ‘(510Z
ed s,a/doad BunoA pue uaipjiyo yoeu] - dag) Buryew uois|oap Ul 89I0A S,p|IYO U} dOUBPIAS
sue|d uonos}oid plIyD pue sueld a1ed Jo ypny -
910z Aea Aq 49 1o pue G0z Buipsenbajes Bujew uoisioap Jo sjoadse
Bny Aq Qv Joj paonposul aq [IM Yaiym (JulodmaiA Buioedas) [spow| “Buiyew Uoisioap ul SMaIA Jjay) 9pnjoul pue 8210A S,p[IYd au} SMIA $,pIyo Buiouapis pue s,uaipjiyy |IE Ul paapISUOD aJe SMAIA JIay) Jey}
ssaiboud u| Mau 8y} sl MaINaYA ‘@oe|d Bunie) ale Oy pue 40 Joj Uoie}Nsuo) -|  JOPISUOD SUOHUSAISIUI }IOM [e100s pue sueld |je ainsus o) | Buns|dwod 0} asuodsal pasealoul 99s [|IM MBINSHAN -| 91.02/€0/1.0 | §102/L0/LO av JuapIAd si )l Asuunol s,pjiyo ybnoayy| 22
juswaoidwi syowoud pue
Buruueld ainyny wuoyur 0} Buiuses)
pue aopoeld poob ybnolyy panaiyoe
‘uaJp|iyd 1oy sewod}no paroidwi pue sonoeld ‘syjuow xis AI19AS Bjep pue }oeqpasy Buipienbajes | sjuswanoidwi Bunelodioour ‘eoinies
Jayaq ‘uonoe pauueld ‘uonoajyal oy 1o 9oUBINSSE| 9dUEBINSSE A}ljEND JO MBIASI PaINJON)S B UNJ [|IM WEea | s,ualpjiyd 2y} SsoJok sWajsAs aoueInssy
ssaiboad uj G10Z 1990300 Aq paje|dwod aq 0} yoes} uo pue Bujobug Ayjenb o16ajess Bujuiny Joy aoe|d ul ssaooud jsnqod aoueInssy Ajenp ayj jo poddns ayy yum swesy 1| 5102/01/10 | S1L02/60/1L0 av Ajenp jo sisAjeue pue uonejod| 9/
5102
1840300 Ul DOd 0} Bulob si podai ajepdn uonejusws|dw| ABsjens 389 -
ooe|d ul sue|d puB SJUBWISSISSE YSlI PUB PadOel} SASeD %00) -
‘610z dos Aq papiodas sueld pue Juswssasse
soseo 3S Yoes) 0} pasn ale sbunessw dy\ pue ISYIA AJUjuop - 3ISL 9A1J08)J8 SABY |[B PUE PaYIERJ} SBSED IS JO %001 -
*SUIBOU0D 38D Buiptenbajes
610z |udy| o} Buipuodsas pue Buikyuapr usym aonoeld pue aoUspyUOd|  SPUBI} [EO0] PUE [ELOIEU U}M SUI| Ul SUISOUOD JO [9A3] s,uaipjiyd |000}j01d4 AeMeUNY pue uosiad
panay [LBEILITELY  ul payoune| j0o0joid Aemeuny pue uosiad Buissiiy pue ABajess 350 -| dojeasp o} sjeuoissajoud |je ajgeus |im ey ABajesis 35O vV 2y} ainseaw o} JapJo ul elep 39 Jo Juswdojanad -| 5102/60/10 | $102/L0/LO av Buissi pue ABajesis 350 youne| g
‘610z dos Aq mainal syuawanoidwi alinbal
julod-piw B 8ABY ||IM UBIP|IYD JaYY Pa300T %001 - jey} seale aonoeld Buibus)ieyd
SMaIABI Julod-plw pey aAeY DV %001 1ey) maiaal BuiobuQ - Buipsenbajes pue sopoeid poob Bupowoid
sbupeaw aoueinsse s,uaipjiyD Apuaysisuod sainsse Ayjenb jeyy
sbuneaw wea) Alyyuow BuLnp s,0Y| Aq pamalnay - D I8y pax00 o} sawooino paroidwi| Apjenb Ajyjuow je smainal sexoel ) uonnjosay andsiq -| §1.02/60/L0 | S1L0Z/70/L0 av 9oI1n8g Buimainey jsnqol e ainsug| ¢/
ue(d uonoe ay} eIA suonoe Juawsajdwi pue aaibe s,NNS
pue siabeuepy ao0eld "sasodind Auinios pue Bulojuow Joj SpuoWWIS
JJIO PUB SABN0SXT JBIYD 8} O} PBINQUISIP I Hodas pual Jpny - n2/_
pajo|dwod N—
|00} yipne 99je Buisn paje|dwod s)pne iy 9sed %001 ‘GL0Z ABWN wold - o
paja|dwod (@)]
S)IpNe 3|1} 8sed Jo uone|dwod Joj soueldwod %001 ‘SL0Z Udy Wwoi - (o]
sBuneaw aouelinssy Ajllend Ajyjuow je paIojuop - n_
sbunesw uoisiasadns jo uonejuswalduwi
509yd pue JOJIUOW 0} |00} }IPNE UE SB pasn Jayoe) uoisiriadns AJyjuo - pawuweiboid se
paje|dwod a1e s)ipne pawauy} JO %001 9102 Iudy Ag -
|00} JIpne o1UoJ}Oa[e pue ABojopoyiaw
Jpne axodsaq Buisn pajejdwod sppne onewsay) Ajyuow-ig "pliyo |00} Jipne djuoLI8
Ay} JO 9910A 8y} pue uoisiaadns ‘Buiew uolsioapybisiano Juswabeuew buisn pajejdwod sypne 3|y ased %001 §10Z Ae|\ wol -
‘sa1bojououyd ‘sjuswssasse Buipnjoul souewlopad yoel 0 siseq Alyjuow Aem snoiobu e uj Juswabeuew pue uoisiaadns Buipsenbajes
B UO seale oljioads uo ejep sapiaoid (00} JIPNE OlU009|T "[00} HPNE J)Y Ajrep ojur ypne wouj Buiuses| sonoeld pue Aunnios Ss)pne a|lj ased s,uaipjiyy
sey ajep pu3g | [EEEITERYoseo oluonosle ayy Buisn sypne Aousbe a|buls 8)a|dwod o) siebeuew | paquwid 0} s1abeuew ao1oe.d poddns |jim jeyy yoeosdde uy|  jo uons|dwos oy soueldwod %001 S0z |Hdy woid -| 9102/€0/LE | SL0Z/¥70/1L0 av awwelboid Ipny mau younei| €/
KRemuapun swweiboud ypne Alyjuop -
Bulobuo s si G0z 1des e
PaABIYOE BUOISSIW - GLOZ YOIE|N JO PUS JB %GE ©
18)38q Jo poob pabpnl siom jo abejusdlad -
*SauO)Sa|IW
1IN0 ym siape)s
JUB)SISUOD S )1 Jey) Mau 1o} ssaooud uononpul a3 Jo ped si siy} ‘Jaypnd "IoJua|y aonoeId
0s 910g Uosep Jo Aq pasanijep Buiag pue G0z |udy pil Ul PAOUSWIWIOD SPIEPUB)S 991joeld
pus 0} 6102/90/1.0 Mmau uo sdoyssiiom pue Bulules) 8zis a)g Jo swwelbouid buiobuQ -
§10Z Iudy G| uo payounej pue yo paubis
Buiuue|d aie) e
UBIP|IYD O} SYSIA @ 9102 UoJep %08 @
sue|d Uo193J0Id PIYD © G10z Jaquiaydag Jo pus ayy Aq %0G @ BuipsenBajes
JUBLUSSASSY PUE [BLIBJY ® "90IAI9S BU} G102 UoIB| Jo pua 8y} Aq %GE @ s,ualpjiyd
110} SPIEPUE)S 991})0BId MAN -| SSOIOE paulelsns pue paouspiAs ao)joeld Jo pIepuels ,poos Jay9q Jo poob pabpnl yJom jo abejuadiad| 910z/0/L€ | SL0Z/0/L0 av SPJEpUE)S 801)0BI4 M3U youne]| Z'/
uonejuawa|duwi
1oy siebeuew Joluas o} pajnquisip pue padojoasp usaq sey
ueld uonoe ue pue uoisiaiadns gOd JO Jipne ue paje|dwod Apuaoal apn - ‘sueyd
uonoe Jeajo buidojoaap ao1AI8s B SS0OE Juswanoidwi
Buiobuo (s s GLOZ 1deS e AP [|Im sBulpuly soueInssy Ajjen Alyjuop -
PaABIYOE BUOISSIW - GLOZ YOIE|N JO PUS JE %9p ®
:19)19q Jo poob pabpn( siom jo abejuasiad - 910Z UdIeN %08 ® aon0eld Jo spiepuels
610z Jequaldag jo pus ay) Aq %06 e BuipsenBbajeg po0B, paquie 0} swwelboid
610z |udy | uo payoune| 910z/S10g 104 swweiboid Jpny "90IAI9S BU} G102 Yole Jo pua ay} Aq %G¢ e s,ualpjiyd JIPNY PUE 3IOMBWEL SOUBINSSY
sey ajep pug ‘| [LEELITELY pue 610z judy | paydune| pue Jjo paubis 3iomauield 9oueInssy A)lenp -| ssoioe paujejsns pue paousaplAs ao1joeld JO pIEpUE)S ,pO0S) :J9)39 4o poob pabpn( iom jo abejusoiad -| 9102/0/L€ | SL0Z/0/L0 av Ajllend mau jo uonejuswajdwi| |2
am%hwwuwr:mﬂ g snjels suonoy - ssaiboid sjobuie) Aoy SBUO}SA|IN PUE SBINSEB]\ 99UBLLIOMAd ejeq pu3 | ajeq pels pes uonoy 104

¢ Xipuaddy

91/5102 Ueld Uoioy juswanoidul| 818D [E100S S,udIpIyD

aoueInssy Ajjenp aAoay3 1L weass }IoM




%0 %EE %L.9
0 4 8
e ssasboud up [GEENT
SNOILOV 40 SNLV1S

L4

pajajdwod

pejajdwod

ssaiboud uj

pajajdwon
pajajdwon
abejuaoiad pajajdwon
JaquinN pajejdwod

pajajdwon

pajajdwo)
snjejs

‘siebeuew Jiay) yym sueld Juswdojansp Juswabeuew 8)8|dwod 0} siabeueyy J0IUSS Iy vavd /
‘slobeuepy
ssalboud uj . SI8 ueld Juswdojaasp 1oy} Ui pajesodiooul ouewlopad Jo sainsesw Jesjd yym sonoeld|  z|
wea | Jo HOoYoo Jusuewad ay} JO JusWINIOR. [NySSe29Ns BUIMO||O} ‘¢ JOHEND Ul 2UBWIWOD : : : : -
M pue sieBeuew || Joj PaUOISSIIWOD Usaq sey Buiurel) Juswdojersp juswabeuepy J1ay} poddns o} s1ebeuew |je 1oy paje|dwiod aq o} ueld Juswdojaasp juswabeuepy
] 'Spaau asay}
sseaBoud u] (yusuewuad Jo Aousbe) JuswAoldwa Jo syeaM OM} Jsulf BU} UIypm Bululely pue 180w 0} ueld JuewdoeAsp LYYINS & Buiney pue spesu Buiules| Buijyuap) “Joxiom| |,
uonaNpUl Yavd PeAleoas eAey siebeuew Buisivedns jey) einsue o} siebeuepy Jojuas Iy 3y} Jo saopoeud Juaund BulAyyuapl ul }sngod si pue uoa|dwod %00] SaYdeal Yavd
'GL0Z 4340100 40 pus 8y} Aq MaiAs) YaVd Upuow 9 sy} a3a|dwiod o} s0e(d Ul aue sueld " 1Auspt ul ! ! ™
Jaypiny Aue suljoep jou saop soueuLIoLad 'sanss| Aouajadwod yum Buijesp ul )snqou N
2INSUd 0} UBYE} UONOE [BIpaWal pue paule|dxa aq jsnw abeddiis Aue pue Ajyjuow : ¥ i llesp ul 1snq !
ssaiGoidiu] Bunes|y siebeuely ao1n18g ay) 0} pajussaid si Hodal vy “siseq Jeinfal e uo aoe|d bupyey e >ﬂ_v_wﬂ_ww%wwﬂw_ﬂ_ %Mwwwowommm%:Emﬂﬂmu«mw:mwmmmﬁmowmﬂwmwm«_w_m‘%oww_wﬁv%%_m ol Q
a.e suolsiAladns Jayjaym Jojiuow o) pasn Bulaq si yolym aoe|d uj Jexoel) uoisiniedng i : o -
snjels G102 41290390 Je ssaiboid uonoy OoN
o

Juawdo|aAap 92IOPIOM (| WED)S YIOM

'Spaau [enplAIpul

80IAI8S 8} OJUI PappaqWd usaq Sey pue GLoz AInr ul pejejdwod Buipoddns si ainjonu)s Joa1ed aiNsus 0} pappaque aq o} Aemuied 3IOA\ [e1oog| 6
‘wJa)-Buo| uopbuljiH Ul ulewal o} siaxiom papiienb Aimau asay) abeinoous
0} N0 }s sjuawalinbal pue spiepue}s Jeajo YIM ‘pappaquia aq o} Jejs payljenb

JSAY 0} Hoddns jo Jayjo paoueyua pue payipow e sapnjoul swwesboid uononpul ay | Amau [je 105 1ioddns (FEAY) UBLIKOAWT Ui Jea) panoddng pue pessassy 8
aoe|d 93E] ||IM SUONONPUI JBYLINY PUB G| 0Z 1d9S Ul pale]s S1aXIoM [BI00S -abpajmouy Jiay} ajepdn

Joy uBredweo yuawyinioas 8y} se BuloBUO SI SIY | "SALLE SISUE]S JO SHOLOO MdU SE Syjuow 0} uoloNpuUI Jaysaujal B BUIAIoal JJe)s JUaLIND Y)IM 8ouel|dwod %00 | 9A3IYoe 0} N
9 1se| ay) ul 8oe|d UsyE} 8ABY SuONONpPUI [elaAas pue ade(d ul s| swwelboid uononpul uy pue ‘eo)oeid pJepue)s se pappaque aq 0} JO3IOM Mau AIaAe Joj ssao0id uononpu|
‘ue|d yuswanoidwi ayy yum

soe(d ul pue pays|dwo) | 92IAJS BU} JO SPaau ay} }9aw 0} Alaaljap 0} ybnoay} ssao0ud Juawyinioay 9
*0}8 Joddns “Yiom gOd ‘uoisiatadns jo soed

a0e(d Ul pue pajeidwon 3y} ul paulejuod uoneue|dx3 ~eoe|dsIom Uasoyo Jiayy se uopBulliH Buuspisuod S
sjueo|idde usym aouepinf pue uoljewlojul JUBAS|aI ||E UleluOD 0} Syoed juedlddy
901n8s paysijod ‘leuoissajoid “JOM}IOA\ [BID0S B JO 9|04 8y} JO suopejoadxa pue Jayo ued uopbuljiiH yeym

e Buluof ale Aay) jeyy |99} sjuesldde jenusjod jeyy os yoeoidde Joop juoly, paunysl Jo Buipueysiapun poob e aaey o} syuedlidde aaoadsold sjqeus o} sjisqam pajepdn ¥

e Juswajdwi pue a)isgam Jno dojenap 0} euuad YIm Bunjiom usaq aney YH pue SJAD
awuwelbouid yuswyinioal ay) jo
Jed se pajuswsa|dwi pue padojaasp usaq aney sjsod pajabie} Joj Aemyyed J1aaied mau ay | elenb doy auy Ui st uopBUIliH S1nSus 0} Jojo pue Aemjed SioM [e100S pesneY| €
510 }dog Ul s1osiom [e1o0s payifenb Ajmau pue payjenb 1e)s Jusuewlad Joy ubledwes yuswyinioal jeuoneN|  Z
Aojdwa 0y ubiedwes jeuoljeu e yyim ‘G0z Isnbny aouls Aeemiapun usaq sey Juswiniosy . i i

A)jigejunoooe euoissajold Jaiealo apinoid pue

OIS BU) )l PAPPAqWIS USRG SEY pUE GLOT AInF Ut pajejdwiod uoisiriedns pue poddns peoueyus Jayjo 0} 81njonuis Juswabeuew Jaje)) jo uonejuswaldu| +

G102 Joquiaydag gg e ssaiboid uonoy ON

¢ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidwi] aie) |eioog s,ualp|iyn uopbulliH jo ybnoiog uopuo-

JusWdOo|aABP 92I0{ION (8| WEdl}S YIOM

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



Page 124

"asay} 8onpal 0} Aemiapun
S| oM pue Jaybiy Apybils urewal | \\SD U} Ul SPEO| 8SED JOASMOH “}os Jobie) oy}
M PBUIBLISI OS|E SABY SIBMIOM [BID0S DY PUE Sy O SPEO| 8SED 8y “JOMIOM [BI00S
enb Jad 9| Je ebeloAe JoBIe) BU} MO[Oq PaUIBWB) BABY 8OIAISS BUj} SSOIOB SPEO|aSE)

pajajdwod

“(OV1404 ¥ pue NIO / dO 10} 8| ‘Je)s Juswssessy pue Aing 1o} G| S
obeJaAe) JusWNOOP SPIEPUE)S Y UOPUOT UM BUl| Ul 89 0} S| MSD U} Ul SPEOjase)

‘aieD

|e1908 s,uaip|IyD Jojoauld Juelsissy ay) Aq pauieyo pue Aenbal pjay ale sbunesw pieog
HSVIN Jauned ay] yiom jo Ajjenb ayy pue aouewlopad Jojuow o} pjay ale sbueaw
Bunoyuow Apybiupoy pue pajuswaldwi Ajiny si yiomawely diysiauped ay] “Apusioye

pue AjaAnoaya Buijiom si i ey} sajejsuowap HSYIN 9y} 10} UOIIEWLIOJUI 9OUBWIOUSY

%0 %02 %08

abejuaoiad pajajdwon

‘paysi|qe)se si yJomawely diysisuped 'senss| pue sysu
U0 play a1e sBujesww Je|nBal PUE 19S SJe SIOJEOIPU| SOUBWLIOPA - JyBisiono joequod| 7

*G10Z 4990300 Jo pud Aq pays|dwod
aq 0} aNp dJB SMAIABI Yluow XIS ‘GLOZ |udy Ul usyeuapun aiam smalnal Yavd "eoeld
Burye} aue sbunesw uoisintadns seinbau Jojuow sdiay yoiym aoe|d uj Jaxoed; uoisinledng

ssaiboud uj

‘(uonoe
PaISIO [ENPISOY) ‘SMBIAS] YAYd PUE Sipne uoisiaiadns JenBas saxepopun somag| €

‘uolsinoid asnoy
-Ul 0} SOXEJANS WO} 8IAISS JUSWISSISSY B [BLIBJOY BU} Jajsuel) 0} paiinbai si 3iom Jaypny

"90IAJ9S POSaN Ul UBIp|IYD 8y} ojul pajedo||e Buleq siequinu Jua)sisuod ul pajnsal aney
(soxe|AYS) 9OIAIOS JUBWISSASSY B [eLId)oy Pue HSYIN @Y} Inqg ybiy paulewsal sey puewaq

onels ssalboud uj [EEIG L) pajejdwon

‘saye|Axg Buipnjoul
swes) ||e ssoioe A10joalel) seD NIO Moys 0) paubisep usaq sey Jos-eyeq ‘peol| ¢
oseo 1961k} JoswW 0) Sased N|D [[eJaA0 sonpai 0} Jobie) Ajyaam - ejep souewlIopad

"% /6 }& SPUBJS AJUB.LINO LoIyMm 8|easawl) Ulyym paye|dwod

SJUBWISSSSE JO Jaquinu dy} Ul Juswanoidwi Juedubis e o0} pa| ey SIy | “90IAIeS

By} Joy pajoadxe aoue.Ia|o) Pajoadxa dU} UIUIM S| UDIUM %61 Je BuibelaAe S| [es1a)el 0}
SJOBJUOD WO} SB}EU UOISIBAUOD “A[Jus)sISuod pue AjaAoage HSYIN pue abew] ayy ybnoayy
puewap yum Huidod S| 80IAIBS BY) Jeu) Sajeljsuowap Mou ejep aouewopad Jejnbay

SNOILIV 4O SN1Vls

pajajdwod

*aIED [EIO0S OJUI S|ElIajal 0} jel
UOISIOAUOD JUSJSISUOD PUE SJOBILOD JO [9A8] ajeudoidde ue Bumoys ejep souewuopad|

snjejg G10Z 1aquaydag g8z Je ssaiboid

uooy OoN

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

JUBWISSISSY '@ S|ellajay pue HSYIN ‘@belr] Buiroidwy g wealys YIOpM

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



%0 %9¢ %¥9
0 S 6
e ssalboud up [GEEIT
SNOILLOV 40 SNLV1S

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

'$S9| 10 %01 O} suonisod Juswebeuew ul Jjels
ssaiboud u| G10Z 3SNBNy Ul Wes) YI0M [BI0S Y} UIYIM peouswwoo Jebeuew wes) jusuewsad suQ Kouabe Jualind 9,00 9oNPaJI OM SE dAINSYS S| slebeuew aul| jsiiy Jo Juswynioay| Vi
ssaiboud uj BulobuQ “goueldwod %001} aAeyY $9sB0 UO sypne yo Ajuuop| ¢\l
‘¢ Japenp
Ul JOM JO S}ipnie 82IAJSS SSOID Buiyeapun 0} MalA e y)im padojaAsp usaq os|e sey |00} .
pajeidwod Jipne Aousbe-inw v "sanbes)j0o yjjeay pue aoijod ‘sjooyds Buinjoul sapuabe sauped Aoy Bnos oq [Iim Soeqpas) sisuped|  zi mu
wolj sanbes||oo Jo abuel e J9aw Alejnbal siabeueyy 9o1A18S pue 10}oalI( JUEISISSY 8y |
juswedap sjuie|dwod ay) wody .
pajajduio podal Jusdal 8y} Ul paoUSpIAS Se sajeosawl} palinbal 8y} ui 0} papuodsal ale sjule|dwo) A0JduI 1M 3L BSUOdSal pue 3onpal [ Sjureidwioo Jo soquinN| - LI
‘sa1bojouolyd Jo BuipJodal sy} pue sjuswssasse Jo Ajijenb .
E ay} Buinosdwi uo snooy 0} siojusw do1oeId ayy Aq paj Bulaq si pue Aemiapun si 3JOAN ABojououyo pue juawissssse uo Joafoid Juswuanoiduil pasnao} | - 0}
*9[BOS W} UIYIM pa}ajdwiod SjuaSsSasse %,/6 Je Buluuni Apuaind si .
pajejdwiod 9OUBWIOUSH "SJUSLISSISSE JO UoNa|dwod ay) ul Juswaroidwi Emwc_cm_m B U9aq sey aJey | Pa13|dui0d SUBWSSaSSE JO Ssauljaw Ul Juewanoidwl| - 6
i swe) *Ajua)sisuod aow sjulod paaibe je paiajsuel) ale sased
w .
Paj9| o} IOM 21008 BU} (1B AQ O} PBISUPE SI YOIUM JaJSUEI) 8580 10} 000}0id posiBe e si a1l pue pasn si (o130e1d POOD) ISI| 08y Joysuel; ‘paysijge;ss si [pued Jajsuel) ase)| 8
‘sa|eosawl) *uaJp|Iyo Ioj su ap Ajawiy Buiyew ypm auij ul
pajajdwo) SP|IY0 3y} UIY}IM SpEW SUOISIOap Yym sased sBuipasooid-aid ul asealoul payiew sBuipaaoosdaud| 2
e s| 219y “Jobeue)y 901AI8S 8y} Aq palieyd pue Apyeam pjay aie sbunesw Bujuueld [eba wey ul asealoul ue yym ‘sbunesw Buluueld [eba u) asealoul ue s| aisy]
Boud ‘¢ Jopend ul "J9YIOAN UieaH [eJus| Isljeroads ayy jo Buioeld ayi yum papuedxa si jwal ay)
ssaiboud u ! ¢
: pa}a|dwod aq ||IM PUE UOIIE}NSUOD Jels Yim Aesuapun si 9o1a1as Bunuaied ay) Jo mainal ainjonujs UOpBUIIH U} 0ju! 1YBNOIQ BIE Jels 2olnes Juslussessy Bujuaied eyl | 9
‘Buiuies| yym pajejdwiod aie sesed
pajedwod "PajoNpuU0d 8q 0} JIpNe YO ‘Isod ul mou st Jeuonndeld Bulisysoy sjeald Jusuewsad v Jua1INno Jo Jipne yo ‘dn jas si dnoub Joafoid ‘paynuspl si pes| buusisod ajeald| S
610z 1deg ul ‘JuswiyinIoal
ssaiboud u]  |Aemuapun s ubledwed JuawNIoal Jo¥IOM [BI00S “pajusws|dwl sem ainjonl)s Juswabeuew uo juapuadep pue yoeoidde [euonisuel) ay) ypm paubije pue paxajy sl 8oinosalayl| ¥
payidwis sy} IsIYm Jjels paiiienb wiusjul ym pajjly papuluiewss aney sjsod |1y
‘swiea] pasN
e Ul UaJp|Iyd PUE UoIO8J0Id PIIYD 8} SE yons puewap AAeay Jo sjulod Ul pasn SaAasal ‘Remuyyed s,uaip|iyD sy} ui sjuiod Aay je Ajoedeo ejeudoidde si aiayy ainsus
pajal 9 Aouabunuod yym swesj ||e ul ajeq|ieeae mou s| Ayoeded ajeldoiddy "ao1aias ajoym 0} paysi|geisa aq ||im Ajoedeo pue puewap Buipnjoul dew Mojy puewap 99IAISS €
9y} SSOJOE $80IN0Sal }8S 0} Pasn pue paje|dwod usaq sey dew Mojj puewap a2IAIS
‘paJinbai se sumopdals “Remyred s,ua1piyo au
pajeidwod PUE S3INSOJD 198.Ip Puk Y)dap 210w Ul SISED 9)eNn|BAS 0) SioBeUBW PI|GRUS SIU| "SHoom U 310m Jayin Aue ojul pas) [jim UOKEN|EAS BY | }Jomased ssaiboid pue umop dejs| g
g 10 polad e 1o} Wea} NID B JO UOISIA0Id o i Ajoded [euonippe pepiaold SexeiAyS 9s0|2 0} swies} asay) ul Ayoeded Bunesio Ag ‘S| MSD SY) Ul SPeo|ased Jo uolonpay
LINP 9SNOY-Ul 92IAIS Sy *SWO09)N0 Aliea SIaAljop
pajojdwon ay) bulq o} yeys uopbullH g7 a3ndal 0} aq ||m abejs 1xau ay | “AjeAndaye pue Ajusiole ey} WEes) JUSWISSISSE PUE |ellajal B pagquwe 0) a|qe ale uopbuliH pue sexelAys| |
Bujuonoun) pue pappaquia Ajin} sl (SYY) 99IAISS JUSISSISSY R [ELI9}OY SOYEIANS By L
snjejs G102 Joquiaydag gg e ssaiboid uonoy ON

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

Swea] YIOM\ [BID0S S,udipjIyd 3y} ulypm aopoeld yJom [eioos Buiroidw) :¢ weas)s YoM

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



%0 %0G %0S
0 4 4
e ssaiboud uj a|d
SNOILOV 40 SN1V1S

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

Page 126

*92IAI9S BY) UIY)IM SOSED | ] Ulewal speojased abeiane pue pa|y . -
pajajdwo) uaaq aney sjsod 3Jom [e100s Aa) || ‘(Aouabe suo pue yusuewsad aaiyy) paj|y a1e sysod vcmwwv_«wwsa _‘Mmmm%m_ﬁﬂww wﬂﬂﬂmwﬂo_mw_woﬂ_‘_wm Mﬂﬁrﬂﬂ _Mﬁ_ _B_wh%u_wmmw_nw%%m 14
Jabeuep wea] || 'syjuow Q| J9A0 Joj sjans| Bulyels poob paulejulew sey aloAI8S 8y | : ; U
*S}99M 9Z Japun Mou sI (sased Aoeba| snujw) sased Jo Ajliofew sy} SS0I0e SOUBWIONSH .
*Ajxa|dwoo J1yy 0} anp 8)e|dwod 0} Jabuo| usye) aAey jey) sased Aoeba| sapnjoul Yyoiym SY98M 9g UILRIM POPNISUOD S| 710 8GO0 SoulS PEUIES
pajejdwon 8 3Jom Jualno ||e ainsu3 ‘sbuipeaooid apnjouod pue Buueay |euy o) seseo Aoebs|,| ¢
abelane ue si siy] "syeam /g ul pajajdwoo Buieg mou sased yjm aroiduwi 0} panunuod 0 J5GUINU SINP3J 0} SNUNUOD - 19BIE} §OOM G 1SUIEBE BULIGS) Od AIUIUOW
sey aouewlopad AJIA0E Jo eale A8y iy} ul ssaiboud jueaiubls apew sey a2IA18S ay | ¥ : : i 0
'91.0Z YoIe|\ Jo pua ay} Aq ,poob, aq 0} }oEl} UO 81 SBWOIINO0
U)[eay pue uoneonpa yjog "SYjuoW juaoal ul sjuswaroidwi Ul pajnsal sey siy} pue
92IAIBS BY} UIYlM SIndINo Juswssassy yjleaH ay} anoidwi 0} Aemsapun osje S| JJOopA “(ueld *QV1 10} sawo9ino poob sjesjsuowap sindino Juswade|d pue uoieanpa ‘yjeaH z
UOI}OY Ul UOI}09S UolEdNPa 88S) Sd3d JO uolajdwod sy} ul juswaroidwi Ue o} pa| sey
ssaiboud uj SIUY} PUB [00YDS [eNMIA U} Ul Senbes||0o uoneanp yim Ajosojo SHIOM MOU 8DIAI8S Y|
'G10g 19903100 pue Jaquisydeg BuLnp 821AI8S 8y} Ojul SWIOD Jje)S Mau 106181 1suleBe souewonad
se anoudwl ||Im asay) Ing syse} Aiojnie)s jsulebe aouewopad ul o doup Jybis e usaq sey .. Hsul w
aJay) ‘passalppe Usag MOU 9ARY Jey) sanss| Bulye)s wis)-Joys swos 0} ang "adejd buie) >>w_>w_>mw w__wm% Mmm_mcimm,mww::wm:h%w_ww\w wm%o%m _Mﬁm_www:._ mw_b vwwcw,&%% _Wm: b
ssaJboud uj sbujesw souewlopad Jeinbas yym pajuswa|duwl Ajjny usaq sey ainjoni)s Wes) Mau ay | eSS ¥ OV IIe 8jed0j[E O} AN ep Hod
snjejs G102 Joquiaydag gg e ssaiboid uonoy ON

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

ajdoad BunoA B uaip|iy) J9)y payoo 10} sawodno Buiroidwy i wealys YIOM

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



%0 %EE %19
0 4 14
e ssaiboud u; BT
SNOILOV 40 SNLV1S

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

Page 127

Je1s UOPBUIIH B 10} UOISSES JUIEs] SUOSS3) ‘(e)enbapeul ou pue Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl 9,08) Weio) Aq usyEeHapUN SJUBWISSISSE
peajajdwo) e Buiop aq |im welo) ‘Yeys uopbulljiH 104 9oi0eId poob jo ajdwexa ue se pasn sem ¥ peul ou p Heq 1o P! pabpn: %08 O Aq uSyeHsp Y 9
3JoMm Siy] "pJepue)s poob e Jo aq 0} punoy Sem welod Ag Jno palted yiom ay] ‘paje|dwod |le uo aonoeud suom [e1o0s Ajijenb poob jo souspire sepirold ylomawel) YO
ssaiboud uj 'sBunesw Job6pnq pue Bunes|y Buluueld Aousuewlad "OV140 %01 Uy} SS9| - WnWiuiw e 0} ssaippe S
8y} Joj Jed Se passnosIp pue pamalAal si sajilu O JaAo paoed ajdoad BunoA jo isi| eyl WOy JIsyy woly sajil 0Z Uey} Jsypnj paAoW UaIp|iyd JO Jaquinu 3y} Ul UoloNpay
pajuelb s
19pI0 Juswaoe|d ayy a1o0jaq payiuapl ate suondo yuswsaoe|d ainsus o) Bujuueld Aosuewsad .
ssaiboud uj BU} S93SIAA0 PUE PJIYD Ja)Je Pay00| MauU Yoes MaIAa) 0} sanuiuod Bunesw Buuoyuow U Ul uswaAoIdwW - c%ummﬂ@ﬂow_ F%@m_mmwhNﬁﬂwmxowuu%h%ow_mmﬂwﬂmﬂm_ Mw:%%%mﬂa_ 4
Aousuewuad ay] “wauy) o} paynuapl aq 0} Juswaoeld aadope e 1oy Buniem uaipiyo : : :
ou Ajuaiind a.le a1y pue pa}ajdwod usag mou sey AJIAIOE Yiom ased dn-yojeo ay |
peajajdwod anl| auob sey pue panoidde usaq sey Abajens Aouaoiyng ‘SjuaWalinbai [9pow 99IAI8S MaU By} }J9aW O} 8INJONIIS 92IAISS ay) ubisap-ay| ¢
aouepinb aonoeld poob
pajejdwoy thuow yoe aoe(d oxe) sbuleaw eoueuLoped eleq pUE AIOJNJE]S UILJIM SJUSWISSOSSE JAIED ||E 8)ed0|[e 0} JoBle) Aeam - ejep souewiopad| ©
‘anoqe 198foid ay) Ul pauIpno se AJIANOE JUSISSSSSE B 8)ed0||e
pajeidwod @oInIes pabeuew sy} Jo Wed se pasibe yiom ay paje|dwod aAey TOH pue welo) 0} (TOH 8 welo) Aq papiroid) Josfoid aoinlas pabeuew, ayj Jo uonejuswaldw| 3
snjejs G102 Joquiaydag gg e ssaiboid uonoy ON

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

uoisiaoad uondopy @ Bulalso jo Ayjenb ayy Buinoadwi :g weasys yIop

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



%0

%09

%0t abejusoiad

ssalboud uj

SNOILOV 40 sSNlvls

z JaquinN

Page 128

"uaJp|Iyo Joj suolisioap Ajpwiny
aJow ainsus 0} Jobie) sBuipasooid yoam 9z sy} aAaIyoe pjnoys am pue ‘sjebie}
SRl umop days pue dn days sk ||om Se ‘}18s aq 0} d|qe aq ||IM 4D PUE N|O JO} uoneinp
I . asED 10 YIEWyoUaq |qiISes) & 9}-GL 0z Ul 1oBie) jsuiebe souewopad mamal| 9
$3SBO 953U} 10} SaWI0INO 39618} Ino mc:nowE m_% M pue pappaquia Ajiny >>0c>m_ suino 0} s1ebeuew yym sbuieawu Apjeem yim ‘syebie) bul pue Buimairas Aloynjels
MeT 21[gnd 8y} Ul SIOAA SHOM |[e ssouoe sindino Jobie) sy} JaAljap 0} € Jauenp ul Akemuspun . : ; . , ; oren :
S| 3JoM Jayund “Jow Buiaq aie sjebie) Aiojnje)s }sow pue pajeoo|e aie Sased AIoynjess ||y 199U '$3SE0 5YT PUE dO ‘NI 12 S1800IIe 0} 19616} Apoam - ejep souewiiopiag
“JOUEND IX8U 8y} 10} Juswaroiduw
Jo 8jel 8y} asealoul 0} Aesuspun si yiom Bulojusw sonoeld pue Buiures) pajesipag
yodau sy} jo swi ayy Je Buiobuo s si G0z 1des . ‘ .
- ‘ 9102 U2IBIN PUB %08 ‘GL0Z Jaquiajdas pus Aq %06 ‘G10Z UdIeiN
ssaJBoud uj PaABILOE BUOISBIILL - Jelaq Jo poob paBpnl %9t *G10Z UIEN IV pus Aq 9%G¢ - Japaq Jo poob nomnm.—fo\s Jo abejuadlad - podas «_ou_._m YO Aluiuopy v
“JaUEND SIY} pajoadxa am uey) Joamojs
Inq Buisu s saseo poob, Jo abejusoiad sy yjuow yoeas payipne sased e Ajrewixoidde
pue s1abuew wes} ||e Aq aoueldwod %00} YIm pappaqua Ajjnj mou U ss800id YO YL
“JOUEND 1X3U 8y} UIYIM UoISIAIadNS Jenbal aAey [[Im SI93I0M [BI00S [|e
ey} pajoadxa s }| "SWea} ||e SSOIO. JUBJSISUOD JOU S SIY} INg S} ISJlf 8Y} Joj uolsiaiadns
ssaiboud uj %001 }e MOU aIe SWes} sWoS G| 0g aunf ul pajuaws|dwi pue padojaaap sem Wwa)sAs ‘uoisiniadns Ajyjuow Jejnbas oA190a1 SI9MIOM [BI100S Iy €
Bunioel} uoisiAJedns \ sl ISJl Y} JOj SISNIOM [B1D0S JO UOISIAIedNS ||, Jojluow pue
30€l} 0} 9|qe MOU SJE SM 3INJONU)S JobeuBy Wes | paljdwis ay) JO UOONPOIUI 8Y) UIAA
pajeidwon “SUJUOLL G JOAO O} SIBHIOM ‘(s juswialinbal 801AI8S UlM SOUBPIODE UI) JOYJOM [e|00S z
|e100s paljijenb Joj 9| Je 9|qe)S paulewas Sey 92IAJ9S aU) UIY)IM peo| aseo abesane ay| pauyiienb Jad g| MO8 O je Sulewsl 8DIAISS BU} SSOI0E PEO| 85D dbesane ay |
‘sysod
01 Bulurewau ayy i3 03 Aemuspun si JuswiliNIday "0} payNIoal usaq aAey sisod Jabeuew
pajajdwod wea) Jusuewlad Z| syuow XIs }se| ay} UIYIAA “sJapjoy sod jusuewsad pue wisul 'G1L0Z |Hdy - 9oe|d ul ainjonyis Juswabeuew aopoeld paydwis l
1O UoNEUIqUIOD B YiM P3|l BJe s)sod Juswabuew wes) ||y ‘aIeD [e100S S,uaipiyd Ulyim
SWEes) ||e SSO0JOE pajuswa|dwl Usag MOU Sey a1inonljs Juswabeuew paylidwis mau a8y
snjejs G102 Joquiaydag gg e ssaiboid uonoy ON

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

sjuswabuelle Juawabeuew asoesd paroidwi pue Buijiom jo sAem mau Buippaquig :9 wealsys YI0M

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



%0 %S5 %SY
0 9 S
e ssaiboud u) [EIETT
SNOILODV 40 SNLV1S

abejuaoiad

JaquinN

‘spJeog ay} Joj Ajjeoyioads yo pue Buiurel] ‘dnoib
-gns pue pieog au} Aq papiodai ueld uoloy 3SO "GLOZ 100 Ul DOd 0} Hodal 389 sjepdn

‘Allenuue 821m) pieoq g9 ay) 0} papodal aq
0} ajepdn ssaiboid ued uonoe uy "palinbai se jas s}abie} mMau Yim malaal lenuue

Page 129

ssasboud uj . Uy "SSaUdAI}0aYe Jsulebe painseaw sa|eosawi) pue Aapenb pamainal buieg| ||
1eak au) ut sape| uiebe pieog auy of Buiob pue judy ul pieog au) o) papioday ,ued uonoe, ay} yym painsesw aq o} s}abie} Jesjd YIm ‘spual) [ed0| pue [euoijeu
U}IM BUI| Ul SUIBDUOD JO [9AS] By} Sinseaw 0} JapJo ul ejep 382 Jo juswdopaag
. ‘J8jje payoo| mc_Eouwn J0 S8JIAIBS

ssaiboid u]  [papinoid aq o} 100/ deg Joj saunby ajep 0} dn "GLOZ Bny Ul paAladal yeaigheq wouj poday € 101} 0} UORE|E0Sa JuaAaId 0} SBLIOD}NO POOB PUE S[ELIBB) DD O S1el JSUBIH oL
a301dwo (o ped) BuisnoH pue (swn |Iny) uoyels sd1jod oINS

PRISIEESD ‘(o [InJ) HSYI ‘(awn (ing) poddng wioiA U1 Buniiom ‘pajuiodde SYAQI G'€ - PAASILOY pojabie} a10w pue panoiduwi Ue jeolpul [jIM SaInsesw soueuuopad sopes yaal|  ©
-aonoeld

ssaiboud uj paiinbal Jo0 ul ayepdn "ysnbny ul pajuswa|dwl MaIAHAN Jo Ayienb ayy uo soeqpaay Buipinoid pue sjuawssasse pue sbuesw oyoads je| g

pajajdwon

pajajdwod

SM3IA S,p|Iyo Buiouspiae pue Buns|dwod 0} esuodsal pasealoul 89S ||IM MBIASHAN

panalyoy

‘sueld uonosjoud piyo pue sue|d a1ed 10} SMAIASY julod-pi Jo uopejuswaldw|| 2

G10zZ 1deS ul paonpIojul SS8201d - PAASIYDY

‘a|doad BunoA pue ualip|iyo Jo} SaWo2IN0 dAoIdwl Jey) S8|EISBWI} JUBAS|SI
ul paAalyoe sawoo)no ajeudoidde ypm ssaoold uonnjosay ayndsiq juswajdw| 9

G102 100 Ul paonpoJjul g 0} INjoNns pJeog meN

. “Japenb yoea sbuipuly pue
ssaiboud uj "90UBINSSE BWOS SN BAIB [|IM YdIym ‘pajonpuod aq ||im sypne Ad pue 389 G610z 100 Ag upne vO ybnoiy} peouspiae aq ||im Buipsenbajes o} uonelal ul Ajigisuodsal g8 S
ssaiboud uj SM3IAS] Q7 4932 0} ON (%G6) Seleosaw) AI0JNje)s ulyim paje|dwod ale sSmaiAsl DY Pue seouaiauo) do|

pajejdwon

ssaiboud uj

pajajdwon
snjejs

a|e0SawWI) AI0JNJEIS UIYNIM Pa)ojdWoD 81 S8oUBIBJU0D D %/6

spomawely 1 HYINS ayy Buisn
padojanap aie suoljoe pue jipne A1ens Buimojjoy paonpoid aie sue|d UORO. - paAdIYOY

' 1HVINS 8Je jey sueld uopoe Jes|o Buidojorsp
80IAI8S BU) SSO.0B JuswaAcdwWl SAUD |im sBuipul soueinssy Aueno Ayuoy| €

pajidwod Buiaq s a1e synsal G0z dos
paAsIyoe duo)sajiW - Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl %9t ‘G1L0Z UdJep

'G10z Jequiaides pus
A9 %06 ‘GL0Z UoJe pus a8y} Ag %G¢ - 1a3aq Jo poob pabpn( yiom jo abejusoiad [4

G10Z |4dy }S] UO payoune| }iomawel - PaASIYOY

"GLOZ [Mdy Ul }omawel YO mau ayj youneq|

G10Z 19qwiaydag yigz Je ssaiboid

uooy OoN

¥ Xipuaddy

ue|d Juswaroidw| aie) [eI00S s,usJp(iyD uopbuljiH 1o ybnoiog uopuo

@oueInssy Ajijenp aAdayT 1/ Weal}s YIOM

dIS isuiebe podaa ssaiboad yjuow g



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Appendix 5 - Glossary of Terms Used

AD Assistant Director

ADCS The Association of Directors of Children's Services Ltd
AYSE Assessed and Supported Year in Employment
CADA Police description for the purpose of crime logging
CIC Children In Care

CIN Children In Need

CP Child Protection

CSE Child Sexual Exploitation

CSWT Children’s Social Work Team

CYPS Children and Young People’s Services

DV Domestic Violence

EET Education, Employment, or Training

FGC Family Group Conference

HCL HCL Workforce Solutions

HR Human Resources

ICPC International Child Protection Certificate

IDVA Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service
IFA Independent Foster Agency

LAC Looked After Children

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children’s Board

MASH Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub

MOPAC Mayor's Office for Policing And Crime

NEET Not in Education, Employment, or Training
NRPF No Recourse to Public Funds
PADA Performance & Development Appraisal

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 131



PEP
PLO
QA

SDQ
SGO

Personal Education Plan

Public Law Outline

Quality Assurance

Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire

Special Guardianship Orders

SMART Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time-limited

YP

Young People

YPIDVA Young People’s Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 132



Agenda ltem 7
CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION STRATEGY

IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE

Contact Officer: Nikki Cruickshank
Telephone: 01895 556708

REASON FOR ITEM

This report provides an update of the progress made in the implementation of the Child
Sexual Exploitation Strategy.

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE

1. To note the progress made in the Implementation of the Child Sexual Exploitation
Strategy and future plans.

INFORMATION
1. Background

The sexual exploitation of children and young people is a form of child sexual abuse.
The following description of child sexual exploitation has been supplied in the guidance
provided by the Department for Children, Schools and Families:

Sexual exploitation of children and young people under 18 involves
exploitative situations, contexts and relationships where young people (or a
third person or persons) receive ‘something’ (e.g., food, accommodation,
drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money) as a result of them
performing, and/or another or others performing on them, sexual activities.
Child sexual exploitation can occur through the use of technology without the
child’s immediate recognition; for example, being persuaded to post sexual
images on the Internet/mobile phones without immediate payment or gain. In
all cases, those exploiting the child/young person have power over them by
virtue of their age, gender, intellect, physical strength and/or economic or
other resources. Violence, coercion and intimidation are common,
involvement in exploitative relationships being characterised in the main by the
child or young person’s limited availability of choice resulting from their
social/feconomic and/or emotional vulnerability.

Sexual exploitation results in children and young people suffering harm, and causes
significant damage to their physical and mental health. Some young people may be
supported to recover whilst others may suffer serious life-long impairments which may,
on occasion, lead to their death, for example through suicide or murder.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 133



Over the last few years, there has been an increase in the media exposure of Child
Sexual Exploitation (CSE) which has heightened awareness of the issue amongst
statutory agencies as well as amongst members of the public. Serious Case Reviews
have looked at the way that certain cases have been handled by the responsible
authorities elsewhere in the country. This has highlighted the need for all organisations
to look at their practices and procedures and, most importantly, to use the lessons
learnt to inform the further development of our joint work on child sexual exploitation.

A London Borough of Hilingdon CSE Strategy has since been developed with and
signed off by the Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children's Board (LSCB) to ensure that
the individual agencies work effectively together to prevent CSE, intervene early when
risks are identified, help, protect and support children who are being exploited and
determinedly pursue the perpetrators. The CSE Strategy was launched to Children's
Social Care and partner agencies on 15 June 2015. The Strategy aims to build on the
pro-active multi-agency work which is already undertaken in Hillingdon by providing a
framework for all professionals working with children and young people in the Borough
to deliver a programme designed to raise awareness of CSE in age appropriate ways
and provide them with the appropriate life skills in order to prevent them becoming
involved in sexual exploitation.

. Overview

A CSE Action Plan has been incorporated into the CSE Strategy based around the 3Ps
model: Prevention, Protection and Prosecution. This Action Plan identifies the work
that will need to be progressed and clearly highlights all responsibilities that have been
agreed by the partner agencies. The Action Plan also includes a requirement to
ensure that appropriate pathways and therapeutic support are available for those
young people at risk of CSE.

New systems have been implemented to ensure CSE concerns can be registered and
monitored. Information gathered in the community about CSE and statistical
information provided by partners is now being recorded centrally. It is recognised that
this database of information will need to be built upon to record a range of different
data sets such as information in relation to sexual health, police prosecutions and
children that go missing from school.

As part of scrutiny and further oversight children and young people known to be at risk
of CSE are tracked and reviewed at the monthly Multi-Agency Professionals Meeting
(MAP). MAP is chaired by the Assistant Director of Safeguarding and Quality
Assurance and attended by all partners. New cases are referred to the panel through
the CSE Prevention Manager. Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation Meetings (MASE) are
convened monthly and chaired by local Borough Police at a rank not below Inspector.
MASE is the driver for agreeing the appropriate operational activity to tackle CSE
threats, linking in with other areas and providing information to inform problem profiles
and Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children's Board.

The LSCB has established a multi-agency Child Sexual Exploitation sub-group, which
will include other relevant areas of concern such as missing, trafficked, Female Genital

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 134



Mutilation (FGM), radicalisation and serious youth violence and drug related
children/young people to coordinate and monitor the delivery of an annual action plan
with key partners. A number of key agencies including the Police, Children’s Services,
Education, Health, the voluntary sector and the Youth Offending Service are
represented. Its key functions are:

e Scope the scale of the problem within Hillingdon by collecting and monitoring
local data

e Share responsibility among members for the coordination and delivery of the
CSE action plan

e Report to LSCB on progress, highlighting any specific barriers or areas of risk in
implementing action plan

e Raise awareness of sexual exploitation, missing, trafficked and gang related
children/young people within agencies and communities

e Encourage the reporting of concerns about sexual exploitation, missing,
trafficked and gang related children/young people

e Support the identification of training and awareness needs

¢ Disseminate guidance and examples of good practice across sector

. Progress to Date

Prevention

The CSE Strategy and Action Plan were launched on 15 June 2015, as part of the
prevention key action. The CSE Strategy has been disseminated to all key partner
agencies and uploaded to the LSCB website. All professionals have access to the CSE
Risk Assessment and there is a clear referral pathway to Children's Social Care.

CSE awareness training has been delivered to the following professionals:

e Children's Social Care - Service Managers, Team managers, social workers,
youth workers, residential managers and staff, foster carers, Child Protection
Chairs and Independent Reviewing Officers, Early Intervention Team, Key
Working Service and Youth Offending Service

e Health - Hospital Trustee Board members, midwives, paediatric consultants,
A&E paediatric consultants and nurses, minor injuries unit, sexual health clinical
staff, diabetic consultants, senior nursing staff, school nurses

e Education - Head Teachers conference, child protection leads

e Metropolitan Police - Borough CID and MASH

¢ Housing - housing officers

e Community workshops - female residents of LBH

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 135



e Councillors at Members Development Day
Over the last eight months approximately 700 professionals, 30 female residents and
Councillors have received CSE awareness training by the CSE Prevention Manager. A
corporate  membership with the National Working Group (NWG) has been
commissioned for all CSC staff who works directly with children and young people.

'Chelsea's Choice' theatre production has been commissioned and is available for
bookings for all Secondary Schools, year 10 (see point 4 for detail).

Progress continues to be made nationally with regard to including CSE within the
PHSE curriculum in order to engage with children and young people to raise
awareness.

Increased awareness of CSE with regard to the night time economy is being
progressed by the Borough Metropolitan Police.

Missing child/young person from home/care policy continues to be embedded into
practice. An update on missing children/young people policy was delivered to the
Corporate Parenting Board. Feedback was positive.

Continued support, advice and monitoring is provided to CSC staff and other
professionals regarding CSE, missing, trafficked, serious youth violence and FGM, by
the CSE Prevention Manager.

IT will be adding FGM, serious youth violence and radicalisation to the contact drop
down of gathering information in order to ensure safeguarding and risk assessment of
information is appropriately managed. This will also inform data performance of subject
areas of concern relating to the CSE strategy.

Protection

The CSE Operating Protocol 2014 has been disseminated to all professionals to aid
risk assessing of children and young people at risk of CSE. A review took place in
March 2015 and the updated version has been sent to all professionals.

Cross border safeguarding of children and young people at risk of CSE is monitored by
a Team Manager and has the oversight of MAP/MASE monthly panel meeting.

Oversight and scrutiny at the MAP/MASE monthly meetings promotes the safeguarding
of children and young people who are suffering and or at risk of CSE.

The CSE Prevention Manager works closely with UK Border Force and has been
present during operations at Heathrow tracking children and young people at risk of
CSE, FGM and trafficking.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 136



Prosecution

A pre-trial plan is in place for any child or young person who has to attend a CSE Trial.
This plan also includes support to family and Children Social Care staff.

As part of working together the Metropolitan Police continue to use their disruption
tactics against subjects of concern/perpetrators who pose a risk to children/young
people where there is a concern of CSE.

Information from previous prosecutions is disseminated to Senior Managers, with an
expectation to share with staff as part of learning and development.

Significant progress has been made in the Prevention, Protection and Prosecution key
actions of the CSE Strategy. LSCB has ensured that the tools to aid professionals in
risk assessing a children or young people who may be at risk of CSE are effective,
following the guidance of the CSE Prevention Manager.

4. Next Steps

A CSE training programme for 2015/16 has been developed which includes
awareness raising for young people and their parents/carers in secondary
schools, special educational needs schools and pupil referral units through
'Chelsea's Choice'. ‘Chelsea’s Choice’ is a hard-hitting applied theatre
production that has proven highly successful in raising awareness of the issues
surrounding Child Sexual Exploitation. The play is followed by a Q&A/plenary
session exploring the issues raised.

Operation Makesafe is an initiative to identify potential victims of Child Sexual
Exploitation with the assistance of business owners/premises where CSE has
historically taken place. This will include hotels, taxi, fast food restaurants, and
licensed premises. This is not an exhaustive list.

CSE awareness training is provided to staff at these premises in relation to the
warning signs for CSE and what actions should be taken if they are concerned
about a child’s safety or concerned about suspicious behaviour or activity on
their premises.

If concerned the business community are encouraged to ring 101 and quote
Operation Makesafe where they will receive an appropriate police response. The
Local Safeguarding Board has signed up to this initiative and it is due to be
launched in the coming weeks.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 137



A female Met Police officer has been appointed to the CSE role based in MASH.
The Police officer will be undertaking mainly office based operational tasks and
some initial home visits to potential victims of CSE.

Assurance meetings with LSCB have taken place regarding other subject areas
of concern which include FGM, trafficked and radicalisation.

Six weekly meetings will continue regarding the growing concern of drugs and
serious youth violence in Hillingdon and outside of the borough.

Annual programme to support CSE awareness Day on 18 March 2016.

CSE champions in Children's' Social Care (CSC), Early Intervention and partner
agencies.

Data performance for CSE within CSC has been collated from the point of
contact. In the past 12 months, 80 contacts have been received where a CSE
concern has been raised.

A CSE audit is due to be sent to all partner agencies to complete within a set
timescale. LSCB are leading in gathering all the information from the audit.

5. Suggested Committee Activity

1. To note the work being undertaken to implement the Child Sexual Exploitation
Strategy.

2. The Committee may wish to seek further updates in relation to progress made.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 138



Agenda ltem 9

aoueuld =q4

uopessIUIWPY = QY

S9IAIG aJe) |BID0S }NPY =SISY S92IAISS S,9|doad Buno pue uaipjiyd= SdAD

oouelg ‘'ybnoiog sy} ui payeonpa
youi4 ueyjeuopr ualp|iyo Joy saoe|d jualolns JaAljap 0} yoel} uo desay
() Aqgog /| 41D /39D pue sajjioe} spelbdn 0} JopJo ul swwelbold [eyde)
ajeALd $99)|Nsu09| 390 Jowied| spuowwis [ooyog 8y} ssaiboid 0} JopJo ul suoisioap Alesseosu| djepdn swwelboud
/oland ajesodio)| uesr - Sy piaeq 41D snouep Aue 1sanbal pue jouiqe) aiepdn |im podal sy [eyde) jooysg| |S
ooueig jodau
puewAeypn ueyjeuor ‘uonisod [eudeo pue snuaaal s [10Uno) ay) jieyep| Bulioyuow - Jebpng
Ined - a4 10 V| ulino Bumas podal Ajlyluow e SaAlgdal Jauiqe) ay | [19uno9 Alyjuo IS
uewez Auo |
/ (uewureyn "UOIJUB}JE PUB UOI}O. Binjny Jo} safjlioud
Juspuadapul) soliuapl pue uopbuljiH ul Buipsenbajes s .ualp(iyo
29)IWwwWo) Aolysy 390 10 SSOUBAIJOBYS U0 MBIA B U}IM SIaquId|y paloslg Joday [enuuy
MBIAIBAQ aAd)S| spuowwis sopinod 3 (990S7) pleog ualpjiy) Buipsenbajes ‘pieog ualp|iyo
Aoljod - SdAD| pPneqlid v [BO0T 8Yj} JO poday [EnuUy By} dAI808M [|IM Joulqe) | Bulpsenbajeg [edo| z9
3
ooueig ‘diysieumo Ayued paiyy ui si }salsiul pjoysaly m
() uosiajed ueyjeuopr By} aloym saqua) s,ualp(iy) 4O Jaquinu e Uo ases| sosed| O
d)eAlld AN - SY 1D V| JeeA Gz e bunuelb Jopisuod 0} payse aq ||Im Joulqed|  sasua) s,ualpliyd|a 9
slowleyo "UOIB)NSUO0D JapIM Joj Wiay) ysiignd| sjooyas Ajiunwwo)
Auuap 390 pue sjooyos Ajunwuwo) Jo} saoeld [00yds 9)ed0|e 10} eLd)Id
/ Apsuuay|| spuowwis 0] pasn eLIB}ID SUOISSIWPE Jualind ay} 0} buibueyo suoIssiwpy 3y} o}
M3N ueq - SY piaeq 41D 1\¥ Jo} sjesodoud JapIsuoo 0} payse aq ||Im Jauigen| sabueys pasodoidd| 89
"S$90JN0SaJ 9S8y} JO BulUOISSIWIWOD-31 10/pue
uoneJinBiyuooal a|qixall aiow Bulgqeus ‘spoenuod|  ¥Z-91L pabe ajdoad
39D 8U] 8)eUIWIS)-02 ||IM S82IAISS 8Y) 0] suoisualxa| Buno, 1o) oddng
() SOOIAIDS| W] ulepy| Spuowwis 9say] "s]oeljuod poddns paseq uolepowwodoe| pue uoljepowwoady
dleAlld| M3N S,uaipliyn|- d4/SOSVY| PiAeq D ¥ JO Uolsud)xa 8y} Joj Jybnos si [eroidde joulqed jouoisinoud ayy| 99

G10Z 49903120 7T - Sul3daw jauiqe)

SQOIAIDG SJUBPISaY = SY :Ssjuawiedaq |19unoH

ayj} uo

uois129p
uone}nsuo)

Jaypny

1o} Joeju0D
192130

uoijew.ojul

jouIqe)

a|qisuodsay
(s)raquiapy

[*)

|19uno

(=3

N4 A

uolIsIoap [eulq

(s)parem

uoljew.iojul Jayn4

uoisigsag

9y




oouelg

WU

SOl - AV

390
spuowuwis
pineq

J1D 8 39N
j004ippnd
Aey 11D

v

G10Z 19qUSAON 61

"Ao1j04 podsuel] jooyos 0}

M3INDY Adljod
aoue)siIssy [aAed]
|ooyog 0} dSWOoH

BWOH pajepdn ue anoidde 03 uone}nNsuod Buimojjo4

G107 1940300 - SUOISLID

ueyjeuor
uosiayed| 4o /39D 'snje}s Awapeoy 0} U8AUOD
[SeydllN| Spuowwisg 0} YsIm oym sjooyds oy sases| buo| Bunuelb [1ouno) SUOISI9AUO)
- Sy piAeq Ji1D snouep| ayjJoj |leaosdde yeses 0} Jauiqe) o} Jodal piepuels Awopeay| |g
oouelg ‘ybnolog ay} ui pajeonpa
youi4 ueyjeuor uaJp(Iyo Joj saoe(d JuaIoINS JaAIIBp 0} yoel} uo doay
() Aqgog /| 41D /39D pue sapjioe} spelbdn o} JapJo ul swwelbold [eyde)
aleAlid S99} NSU02| JgO Jawled| Spuowwis |[ooyos a8y} ssaiboud 0] Jeplo ul suoisioep Alessedau| 9jepdn swweiboid
/a1qnd ajelodion| uesr-gy piaeq J|1D snouep Aue 1sanbal pue 1ouiqe) ajepdn |im Jodal siy] leudes jooyssg| |
oouelg yodau
puewAeypn ueyjeuor ‘uonisod |endes pue snuaaal s jIouno) ay) |lelep| Buliojiuow - J@bpng
[ned - a4 ilte} Y| ulino Bumaes uodal Ajlyluow e saAld@dal Jaulqed ay | [1I9uno) Ajyjuop m IS

GG

@ Joquiay 39uiqe)

oouelg
ueyjeuopr
uosiayed| 4o /39D 'snje}s Awapeoy 0} USAUOD
[9eydllN| Spuowwig 0} YsIm oym sjooyds o} sases| buo| Bunuelb [1ouno) SUOISI9AUO)

- Sy piAeq Ji1D snouep| 8yjJoj |leaosdde yeses 0} Jauiqe) o} Jodal piepuels Awopeay| |5

aoueuld =04 uopessSiUIWPY =Y S9DIAI3S ale) [el00S }INPY =SJSY S92IAIaG S§,9|doad Buno) pue ualpiyd= SdAD SOJIAISS SJUBPISaY = Sy :Ssjpuawiedaq [IDuno)
2 0 O 5 2 T T

eS¢l 3§ m. e m W m m& 2 | (s)hprem uoljewWIoUl J8YN4 uoisioaqg sy
pr o g mo
a2 3388 8 T3 3 Eo
o = =0 = ® D oO=9Q
S & 2 5% - - o
= b =h M T O,
| § 8 g2 @,
=] o o
=




aoueuld =q4

uopessIUIWPY = QY

S9IAIG aJe) |BI20S }NPY =SIJSY S92IAIaS S,9|/doad BunoA pue uaip|iyd= SdAD

oouelg ‘'ybnoiog sy} ui payeonps
youi4 ueyjeuopr ualp|Iyo Joy saoe|d jualoiyns JaAljep 0} yoeJ} uo deosay
() Aqgog /| 41D /39D pue sapjioe} spelbdn o} JopJo ul swweibold [eyde)
ajeALd $99)|Nsu09| 390 Jowied| spuowwis |[ooyos a8y} ssaiboud 0] Jeplo ul suolsioep Alessedau| 9jepdn swweiboid
/o1and ajesodio)| uesr - Sy piaeq 411D snouep Aue 1sanbal pue 1ouiqe) ajepdn |im Jodal siy [eyde) jooyssg| |S
oouelg yodau
puewAeypn ueyjeuor ‘uonisod |eudeo pue snuaaal s [1oUno) ayj |ieyep| Bulioyuow - }Jebpng
[ned - a4 10 V| uiino Bumes podas Ajyluow e saAl@dal Jauiqe) ay | [19uno) Ajyjuo IS
sJofedajel
9 sassauisng
Uiim ~—
UOI}e}NSU0D 3
Aoimers (0]
pue ssao0.d (e1ep NHOM3INVHS @
a9)lwwo) aAlasal) "uoljBIBPISUOD 10) SJual WYY H 8yl apnjoul| AJIT0d ® 139dnd o
MBIAIBAQD oouelg 9102 os|e [|Im sIy] ‘sieaA unoj Buimojjo} ayy Jo} suoosfoad Le/oecoc
Aolj0d ueyjeuor| Alenige- aAljeoIpul yum Buoje ‘uoieyNsuod 1o} /1/9102Z - /1/910Z }seda404
ay)} ybnouy) JID % 39| SZ109102 Joj swwesboud [eydeo pue 18bpng aaiasal pun4 |eldueulq w9
uoneyNsuod| puewABYpA j004ippnd| Ateniga4 [elauas) Jelp 8y} sepnjoul yoiym ‘(441 IN) 1seosso4 wnipay - }obpng
allgand Ined - a4 Aey 111D 8l 1\ [EIOUBUI WIS ] WNIP3A 8y} IO }3S [|Im Jodai siy | S,jldunoj ayl| el9
‘S|00Y9os
s,uopbul|iH ulylIm uoiednpa Jo splepuels a|qissod
1s8q ay} Buunsus 1e pawie ‘ue|d ay) Buinoidde
39D 0] UOljBIBPISUOD BAID |IM Jaulge) ‘ue|d Juawanoidw|
Apsuuayj| spuowwis [00UOS Jelp B UO SISP|OYayels Jaylo pue sjooyos ue|d
M3N [slueq - Sy piaeqd IO IV Yim }Insuod 0} uoisioap sjaulqed GLog Aine Buimojjo4| Juawanoidwi jooyds| qoy

G10Z 49qwada( /| - Sul@aw jaulqe)

S@DIAIDG SJuapISay = SY :sjuawiedaq |19uno)

ayj} uo

uois129p
uone}nsuo)

Jaypny

1o} Joeju0D
192130

uoijew.ojul

A (2 [ K=]
am_e o< 5
¢ 3 T S To
83| 34
So® 0=
o

22" T 3
2 2}
o o

=

(s)parem

uoljew.iojul Jayn4

uoisigsag

9y




Awapeoy ue Jo 10}08li] JO JOUIBAOS) B 8q 0} W_
JaquWIa JO 18210 Aue asuoyine os[e 0] "SUOIjN}ISUO0D o)
S92IAIBS 390 Apoq Bulutanob jooyos o) sebueys Aue anoidde oy pue siousanon|
oljesoowa| spuowwis siousanob Ajuoyine [eo0| Jo sjuawiuioddeal axew pue pue saipog| -
-avy pineq 4190 V/N sjuswiulodde ajeuiwou ‘syuswiuiodde saosdde o Buluianon jooyos IS
W HDOV3 A3Y3AISNOD SWALlI QYVANVLS 40 LSIT - SNOISIDIA 43gwaw ._.m_z_m<u7
uolbuUIUBH
SIBYIIN
| uosiajed oouelg AlUNWWo9 JapIm
(€) [_YdIN ueyjeuopr By} pue sjuspisal Jiysusq jey) suonesiueblo 10309s Joday sasea]
ajeALd - Sy i[[te} 1\¥ AJejun|oA 0} sasea| pajunoasip uo podal Jejnbay 10)99g Aiejunjop| S
oouelg
ueyjeuopr
uosiayed| 4o /39D 'snje}s Awapeoy 0} USAUOD
[9eydllN| Spuowwig 0} YsIm oym sjooyds o} sases| buo| Bunuelb [1ouno) SUOISI9AUO)
- Sy piAeq Ji1D snouep| 8yjJoj |leaosdde yeses 0} Jauiqe) o} Jodal piepuels Awapeoy| |
aJueuld =04 uonessiulWpPY = QY SOJIAISS aIe) |elo0S }NPY =SOSY  S92IAIag s,9]doad BUnoj pue uaipjiyd= SdAD S9DIAISS SJUapIsay = Sy :sjuswiedeq 1oUn0H
238 3 mw, § 3 g w g 55 | Gpem uonew.oul JayuNy uoisioaq o
032 328 6 8 T3 =y
° " = D Q" 588 28§
5 g8z 3 o 5 0,
g| 3 < == &
=




Agenda ltem 10
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

Contact Officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655
REASON FOR REPORT
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is
a standard item at the end of each agenda.
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

1. To confirm dates for meetings; and
2. To make suggestions for future working practices and reviews.

WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

24 Jun 2015 | Major Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

CR5 School Admissions Update

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Strengthening
the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

15 July 2015 | Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - progress
report
CR5

Budget Planning Report for Education & Children's Services 2016/17

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

9 Sep 2015 Major Review — Witness Session 1

CR5 Quarterly School Place Planning Report

Annual Complaints Report 2014/15 for Children and Young People's
Services

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 143



7 Oct 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 2

Consideration of topics for minor review

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy - Implementation Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

25 Nov 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 3

Minor Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon 2014/2015

Update Report - Progress on Implementation of previous review
'Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs and
Disability (SEND) Reforms

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

13 Jan 2016

CR5

Minor Review - Witness Session

Major Review - presentation of draft final report

Budget Proposals Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

17 Feb 2016

CR4 and
CR4A

Minor Review - Presentation of Draft Report

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

16 Mar 2016

CR5

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Reducing the
Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-Social
Behaviour

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 144




13 Apr 2016 | Quarterly Child Social Care Audit Update 2015 /2016

CR5 Quarterly school place planning

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

*all meetings begin at 7pm.

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 7 October 2015

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



	Agenda
	4 To Agree the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 9 September 2015
	5 Major Review - The Effectiveness of Early Help to Promote Positive Outcomes for Families - Witness Session 2
	Witness Submission - Performance, Policy and Standards
	Witness Statement - Early Intervention
	Witness Statement - Key Working Service
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Witness Statement - Public Health

	6 Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Progress Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	7 Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Implementation Update
	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme 2015/16

